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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEHREUREEEN®RE DM

On behalf of the board (the
“Directors”) of AVIC International Holding (H

“Board”) of directors (the
K) Limited (the
“Company”), | am pleased to present the annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2019.

OVERALL REVIEW

In 2019, the Group recorded revenue from continuing
operations of HK$1,458,003,000 (2018: HK$1,341,223,000)
and loss from continuing operations of HK$54,016,000
(2018: HK$127,132,000). The loss attributable to owners of
the parent was HK$54,016,000 compared with a profit of
HK$398,968,000 for the same period of last year because
a profit from the discontinued operation attributable to
owners of the parent of HK$526,100,000 was recorded in the
same period of last year for the property development and
investment business disposed of in 2018.

The decrease in the loss from continuing operations from
HK$127,132,000 to HK$54,016,000 was mainly because:

(1) the general aviation aircraft piston engine
business recorded a loss of HK$20,310,000 (2018:
HK$84,773,000) for the year; and

(2) fair value loss on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss of HK$30,573,000 was recorded in the
same period of last year;

which were partly offset by the increase in the share of
losses of joint ventures and associates from HK$2,470,000 to
HK$38,689,000.

Basic loss per share amounted to HK ¢ 0.58 (2018: basic
earnings per share amounted to HK ¢ 4.47). The return on
equity, calculated on the basis of profit/loss attributable to
owners of the parent as a percentage of equity attributable to
owners of the parent as of 31 December 2019, was -2% (2018:

11%).
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CHAIRMAN'’'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the Group has only one reportable operating
segment, the general aviation aircraft piston engine business,
which is engaged in the design, development and production of
general aviation aircraft piston engines and spare parts as well
as the provision of aftermarket services and support for piston
engines.

In 2019, the general aviation aircraft piston engine
business recognised revenue of HK$1,458,003,000 (2018:
HK$1,341,223,000) and gross profit of HK$376,523,000
(2018: HK$270,961,000), respectively, and recorded loss of
HK$20,310,000 (2018: HK$84,773,000). Had the effect from
the fair value adjustments on the identifiable assets acquired
from the acquisition of the business charged to current year’s
profit or loss of HK$55,644,000 (2018: HK$105,065,000)
been excluded, the general aviation aircraft piston engine
business would have recorded profit of HK$35,334,000 (2018:
HK$20,292,000).

In 2019, the sales of our traditional avgas-powered engine
products dropped, while sales to original equipment
manufacturers (“OEMs"), sales of aftermarket spare parts as
well as maintenance, repair and overhaul (“MRQO") sales rose.

Like other competitors, we started to face some major supply
“USA") in
the second quarter of 2019 which have had a negative impact

chain issues in the United States of America (the

on our capacity performance. We are working closely with key
suppliers on a restoration plan and anticipate that the supply
chain issues can be resolved by the second quarter of 2020.

The construction of the factory under the Blue Marlin factory
modernisation program (“Blue Marlin Program”) completed on
schedule in the third quarter of 2019. Most of the workers as
well as some major manufacturing and distribution operations
have already been relocated to the new factory. The overall
progress remains on schedule currently and it is expected that a
full relocation of the production lines will be completed by the
end of 2020.
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a] ~ 21 A
FEREUREEENRR DN

Our research and development projects aimed at bringing new
engine variants to the market. In 2019, our focus was on the
certification of new engines including the 10-370, CD-170,
CD-300, and GTSIO. These projects have completed major

milestones and entered into an installation and flight-testing
phase.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Convertible bonds

As at 31 December 2019, the Group held convertible bonds
issued by Peace Map Holding Limited (“PMH") (stock code:
402) which is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the ‘Stock Exchange”), and a convertible bond issued
by an unlisted company in the USA. These convertible bonds
are managed and their performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, and were included in financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. Fair values are mainly influenced by the prices or
valuation of the underlying securities. The convertible bonds
issued by PMH matured in 2018 but PMH failed to redeem
them, therefore they were stated at the fair value of zero as at
31 December 2018 and 2019. The convertible bond issued by
the unlisted company was stated at fair value of HK$1,938,000
as at 31 December 2019.

In 2019, no fair value gain or loss on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss was recorded in respect of the
convertible bonds held by the Group, whereas a fair value loss
of HK$30,573,000 was recorded in the same period of last
year.
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Listed equity investments

As at 31 December 2019, the Group held shares issued by PMH
and AVIC Joy Holdings (HK) Limited (“AVIC Joy”) (stock code:
260), also listed on the Stock Exchange, which were classified
as equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Net changes in fair value are recognised
as other comprehensive income. Gains and losses recorded in
other comprehensive income for the equity investments will
not be recycled to profit or loss when the investments are
derecognised.

Since 2018, PMH's shares have been suspended for trading
and PMH is in liquidation process. As at 31 December 2019,
the fair values of the shares issued by PMH and AVIC Joy were
assessed to be Nil (2018: Nil) and HK$34,041,000 (2018:
HK$53,642,000) respectively.

Joint ventures and associates

During the year, the Group recorded share of losses of joint
ventures and associates in an aggregate of HK$38,689,000
(2018: HK$2,470,000) mainly because a joint venture made
provisions for impairment losses on certain assets and for losses
on litigations.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses consist of salaries and wages, product
liability expenses, engineering expenses, legal and professional
expenses and other general expenses. During the year, the
Group recorded administrative expenses from continuing

operations of HK$374,095,000 (2018: HK$351,248,000).

Investment property

During the year, the Company moved its office from United
Centre to Admiralty Centre. The Company is seeking a tenant
for the property at United Centre. The property was transferred
from property, plant and equipment to an investment property
and it was stated at fair value of HK$151,500,000 as at 31
December 2019.
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ETRBEUAREEENRE DM

LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has consistently maintained sufficient working
capital. As at 31 December 2019, the Group had current
assets of HK$1,654,279,000 (2018: HK$1,892,118,000),
including cash and bank balances and time deposits in an
aggregate of HK$990,386,000 (2018: HK$1,191,575,000).
The Group's current liabilities as at 31 December 2019 were
HK$527,355,000 (2018: HK$540,746,000).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s equity attributable
to owners of the parent amounted to HK$3,573,694,000
(2018: HK$3,619,168,000), comprising issued capital of
HK$930,337,000 (2018: HK$930,337,000) and reserves of
HK$2,643,357,000 (2018: HK$2,688,831,000). The Group's
interest-bearing debts included interest-bearing bank
borrowings of HK$225,161,000 (2018: HK$121,249,000) and
lease liabilities of HK$320,610,000 (2018: Nil). The Group's
gearing ratio, calculated on the basis of the interest-bearing
debts as a percentage of equity attributable to owners of the
parent plus the interest-bearing debts, was 13% (2018: 3%).

The Group's banking facilities are mainly utilised for general
working capital requirements.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

Details of the charges on the Group's assets are set out in note
32(b) to the financial statements.
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EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

As most of the Group’s business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in the functional
currencies of the operating units, the Group’s exposure to
foreign currency risk is minimal.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Group had no material acquisitions or disposals during the
year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities (2018: Nil).

ENVIRONMENTAL AND REGULATORY
COMPLIANCE

Environmental protection and the effective use of natural
resources have gradually become an important concept in
modern economic growth. The Group has been keeping track
on the major trends in environmental protection around the
world and has been making an effort to integrate the concept
of environmental protection in its operations. Based on new
technology and management approach, the Group strictly
controls its environmental impact and resource usage such
that cleaner production featuring lower pollution and lower
emissions thus sustainable development can be achieved.

The Group strictly complies all applicable laws and regulations
released by the relevant authorities which are material to us.
Throughout the year of 2019, there was no incidence of non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group.
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ETRBEUREEEFNRR DT
EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2019, there were 650 (2018: 691)
employees in the Group. The employees’ wages and salaries for
the continuing operations, excluding directors’ remuneration,
amounted to HK$293,581,000 (2018: HK$252,989,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2019. The Group recognises
the importance of good relationship with employees. The
Directors believe that the working environment and benefits
offered to employees have contributed to building good staff
relations and retention. The Group’s remuneration policies are
formulated based on the performance of individual employees
and market conditions and are reviewed regularly. The Group
also provides other staff benefits including medical and life
insurance, and grants discretionary incentive bonuses and
share options to eligible staff based on their performance and
contributions to the Group.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The recent outbreak and the spread of novel coronavirus
has had an adverse impact on market sentiments and posed
challenging situation to the whole world. The Group will
continue to pay close attention to the impact of the situation
on the operation of the Group and will take all possible and
reasonable measures to mitigate and limit the impact on our
Group's operation.

OUTLOOK

Across the five market sectors accessible to the piston engine
aircraft business: Certified General Aviation Business and
Pleasure, Certified General Aviation Pilot Training, Uncertified
General Aviation, General Aviation Light Sport and Unmanned
Aircraft, our strategy is to have the widest breadth of product
offerings and to invest heavily in new product development
and certification so as to continuously generate future growth
opportunities. In addition, we strive to improve operational
profitability and cost effectiveness by establishing an affordable
cost structure and implementing Blue Marlin Program.
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“U.S. economic growth and opportunity coming from the
general aviation industry is increasing”, said Peter Bunce, the
President and Chief Executive Officer of the General Aviation
Manufacturers Association. With that, we deeply understand
our potential growth opportunities and current operational
challenges. Hence, we have built our strategy of “"P.A.C.E”
(Profit, Affordable Cost Structure, Culture, Execution) and
accordingly a 5-year roadmap. Through completing Blue Marlin
Program, building a flexible and affordable cost structure,
continually developing new technology and product lines,
and implementing “P.A.C.E.” strategy, we expect our product
quality and profitability can be raised which in return can assure
a steady growth in our operating results.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my appreciation
to my fellow Directors and all our staff for their support, hard
work and dedication.

By order of the Board
AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

Lai Weixuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 13 March 2020
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENREEREBZER
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lai Weixuan, aged 55, has been an executive Director
since June 2015 and the Chairman of the Company and a
member of the remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) since August 2019. He is a senior
accountant, holding doctorate degree in Management of Tongji
University and an EMBA of Guanghua School of Management,
Peking University. Mr. Lai is now the Chief Executive Officer of
AVIC International Holding Corporation (“AVIC International”)
and a director of AVIC International (HK) Group Limited (“AVIC
International (HK) Group”). Mr. Lai joined AVIC International
Shenzhen Company Limited (“AVIC Shenzhen”, a wholly
owned subsidiary of AVIC International) in 1983. He previously
served as the deputy general manager of AVIC Shenzhen,
the Chairman of Fiyta Holdings Limited (“Fiyta”), the deputy
chairman of Tianma Microelectronics Co., Ltd.(“Tianma”)
and the chairman of Rainbow Department Store Co., Ltd.
(“Rainbow Department Store”). Fiyta, Tianma and Rainbow
Department Store are companies listed on Shenzhen Stock
Exchange. Mr. Lai has rich experience in finance and operation
management, and once acted as an executive director of AVIC
International Holdings Limited (“AVIC IHL"”), the issued shares
of which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange,
from 2004 to 2012 and was appointed as an executive director
again in 2014.
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Mr. Fu Fangxing, aged 46, has been an executive Director since
August 2018 and a member of the nomination committee of
the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) since August
2019. He obtained a Bachelor's Degree in Investment,
Economics and Management from Central University of Finance
and Economics in 1996 and a Master’s Degree in Accountancy
from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics in 2005.
Mr. Fu is currently an executive director of AVIC IHL. He is
also the director and the head of financial management
department of AVIC International, a substantial shareholder of
the Company and the director of AVIC International (HK) Group
and Tacko International Limited. He previously served as the
executive director of AVIC Joy, the deputy head of the financial
management department of AVIC International, the deputy
chief accountant of AVIC-INTL Project Engineering Company,
the chief accountant of AVIC International Aero-Development
Corporation. He is also the director of two subsidiaries of
the Group. Mr. Fu is a senior accountant and has extensive
experience in financial management, investment and financing
management as well as mergers and acquisitions.

Mr. Zhang Zhibiao, aged 46, has been an executive Director
since August 2018. Mr. Zhang is currently the head of the
operations management department of AVIC International,
a director of AVIC Sunda Holding Company Limited ( F1 12
ERMARRAR),

Shenzhen Stock Exchange and an executive director of AVIC

which shares are listed and traded on the

Joy. Mr. Zhang previously served as the president assistant of
AVIC Securities Co., Ltd (FMEH BB 7)) (formerly known
as SouthChina Securities Co., Ltd.* (IFEEESARET A A])),
the head of SouthChina Financial Research Institute* (T Fj< &t
35 A7) and the deputy office manager of the capital operation
office of AVIC International. Mr. Zhang was also the office
manager of international aviation business, the head of the
administrative management department and the head of the
planning and development department of AVIC International.
Mr. Zhang has over 22 years of working experience in the areas
of management, aviation business, strategic development,

industries research, securities, investment and initial public

offerings.
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EENREEREBZER

Mr. Yu Xiaodong, aged 47, has been an executive Director
since August 2018. He obtained a Master's Degree in
International Trade from University of International Business
and Economics in 1997. He previously served as the project
manager of AVIC International, the assistant general manager
of AVIC International Harbin Company* (FF fii BIBE 5 &
J&/2 7)), the operations management vice director of the
international cooperation department of AVIC International, the
organisational performance director of the human resources
department of AVIC International, the vice general manager
of the human resources department of AVIC International
and the general manager of the auditing department of AVIC
International. He is also the director of four subsidiaries of the
Group.

Mr. Zhao Yang, aged 49, has been an executive Director and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company since August 2019.
Mr. Zhao previously served as the Chief Financial Officer of
the Company starting from January 2017. Mr. Zhao is also a
director of Tacko and certain subsidiaries of the Company. He
holds a Bachelor’s degree in Finance from Nankai University and
EMBA degree from China Europe International Business School.
Mr. Zhao is a senior economist. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Zhao held senior management positions in different companies,
of which two are Shenzhen listed companies. Mr. Zhao has over
25 years of experience in accounting and finance.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chow Wai Kam, /p, aged 72, has been a non-executive
Director since June 2015. He obtained a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Architectural Studies and a Bachelor of Architecture
degree from the University of Hong Kong in November 1970
and November 1972, respectively. He has been an Authorised
Person (List of Architects) and a Registered Architect since July
1976 and January 1991, respectively. He was also admitted as
a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Architects since August
2001. He is currently an executive director of CK Asset Holdings
Limited (“"CKAH"), a company listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Chow joined the Hutchison Group in July
1995 and was the group managing director of the property
and hotels divisions of the Hutchison Group since 2000. He is
now the group managing director of Hutchison Property Group
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of CKAH. He has over 40
years of experience in project management and architectural
design for various developments, including hotel, residential,
commercial, industrial and school projects in Hong Kong, the
Mainland China and overseas.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David, /p, $85, aged 76, has been an
independent non-executive Director since May 1999. He is
also a member of Nomination Committee and the Chairman
of each of the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Chu
received his Master of Business Administration degree from
Harvard University after degrees in Electrical Engineering and
Management at Northeastern University and was awarded an
honorary Doctor of Public Service degree from Northeastern
University. He worked for a number of sizeable international
corporations such as Bank of America, General Electric Co.
and Jardine Matheson & Company Limited. Mr. Chu is an
independent non-executive director of Chuang’s China
Investments Limited, Chuang’s Consortium International
Limited and Zhuhai Holdings Investment Group Limited, all
being listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
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EENREEREBZER

Mr. Li Ka Fai, David, aged 64, has been an independent non-
executive Director since December 2007. He is also a member
of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of Science honours degree in Chemistry
and Administration. He is the deputy managing partner of Li,
Tang, Chen & Co. CPA (Practising) till 31 December 2019 and
thereafter, he is the senior advisor of SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited. Mr. Li is also a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, UK. He is an independent non-
executive director of China Merchants Port Holdings Company
Limited, China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited,
Cosmopolitan International Holdings Limited, Goldlion Holdings
Limited, Shanghai Industrial Urban Development Group Limited,
Wai Yuen Tong Medicine Holdings Limited and CR Construction
Group Holdings Limited, all being listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Zhang Ping, aged 55, has been an independent non-
executive Director since May 2017. He is also the Chairman of
the Nomination Committee and a member of Audit Committee.
He received a doctoral degree in Economics from Chinese
Academy of Social Science Graduate School (/[ #t & f £
BTt oE b ) .
Economics under Chinese Academy of Social Science (&
HE R B & EM I AT) since July 1988. He once led and
organized key national research project on economics. He

Mr. Zhang started working at the Institute of

published several essays based on theory research and surveys.
His major research fields are the growth of China economy and
macroeconomic policies. Mr. Zhang was an independent non-
executive director of AVIC IHL, until December 2014. He is
currently an independent director of Minsheng Tonghui Asset
Management Co., Ltd (RAEBEEEEZ AR AF) .
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lin Jining, aged 48, joined the Group in June 2018 as
Deputy Chief Financial Officer and is responsible for the
Group's corporate finance, accounting and treasury functions.
He holds a Bachelor’s degree in accounting and economic from
University of Xiamen. Mr. Lin held senior management positions
in different companies. He has over 25 years of experience in
accounting and finance and international aviation business.
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EEERRSE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining good standards of
corporate governance practices by emphasising transparency,
accountability and responsibility to its shareholders.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company applied
the principles of, and complied with all the code provisions
and, where applicable, the recommended best practices of the
“Corporate Governance Code” (the “CG Code"”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), except as noted
hereunder:

Other than the Non-executive Director appointed on 23 June
2015 and the Independent Non-executive Director appointed
on 26 May 2017, the other two Independent Non-executive
Directors were appointed without specific terms (code provision
A.4.1), details of which are mentioned under the section
headed “NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS” in this report.

The Company will periodically review and improve its corporate
governance practices with reference to the latest development
of corporate governance.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the Company's
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
A reminder is served by the Company to each Director twice
annually of the black out period that Director cannot deal in
the securities and derivatives (if any) of the Company.
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The Directors are required to notify the Chief Executive
Officer (who is also a Director) and receive a dated written
acknowledgement before dealing in the securities and
derivatives (if any) of the Company. In the case of the Chief
Executive Officer himself, he must notify the Chairman and
receive a dated written acknowledgement before any dealing.

Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard as set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Company has also established a written guideline no less
exacting than the Model Code for securities transactions by
relevant employees (including any employee of the Company
or director or employee of a subsidiary who, because of his
office or employment in the Company or a subsidiary, is likely
to possess inside information in relation to the securities of the
Company). No non-compliance was noted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by the Board which has the
responsibility for leadership and control of the Company. The
Directors are collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising the Company’s
affairs.

Currently, the Board comprises five Executive Directors, and
four Non-executive Directors, including three Independent Non-
executive Directors. An Independent Non-executive Director has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as prescribed by the Listing
Rules. 8 out of the 9 Directors served the full year for the year
ended 31 December 2019. The biographical details of the
Directors are set out on pages 10 to 14 of this annual report.
There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship) between Board members.
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Notwithstanding any contractual or other terms on which
any Director may be appointed or engaged at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every three years. The Directors to
retire in every year shall be those who have been longest in
office since their last election but as between persons who
became Directors on the same day those to retire shall (unless
they otherwise agree between themselves) be determined by
lot. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election. A new
Director appointed by the Board after the preceding annual
general meeting shall hold office only until the next following
general meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a casual
vacancy) or until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company (in the case of an addition to the existing Board)
and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

The nomination committee under the Board will carefully
consider the qualifications and experience of each candidate,
before making evaluation and submitting its recommendations
to the Board on the candidates for the appointment of new
Directors, re-election of Directors and filling any vacancy in
the Board. After the Board approves the proposal in relation
to the nomination of candidates for Directors, the proposal
will be submitted to the shareholders’ general meeting for
consideration and approval. During the year, the Board
recommended the appointment of Mr. Zhao Yang as an

executive Director.
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The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain
diversity on the Board in order to maintaining a competitive
advantage of the Board. The Company seeks to achieve board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to the talents, skills, regional and
industry experience, background, gender and other qualities.
The Board will consider and if appropriate, set measurable
objectives to implement the Policy and review such objectives to
ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives. The Board will review the
Policy, from time to time, to ensure its continued effectiveness.

The Board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors
its financial performance and maintains effective oversight
over the management. The Board members are fully committed
to their roles and have acted in good faith to maximize the
shareholders’ value in the long run, and have aligned the
Group's goals and directions with the prevailing economic and
market conditions.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions under the requirements of the CG
Code. The major role and functions of the Board regarding its
corporate governance include:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Company;

3. to review and monitor the Company's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;
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TEERRE
4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and 4. FIE RAREEAAFEERESD
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees of BIEARERFM(OE) &

the Company and Directors; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code 5. R AR FETAEERTRINERK
and disclosure in this report. MARENRIREE o

The following is a summary of the work of the Board in respect U TREFEREE-ZT—NF+_A=+—
of corporate governance matters during the year ended 31 HIFFEARPEEASTEN IIEME:
December 2019:

1. performed corporate governance duties under the CG 1. BAEEESTAETNREEE R
Code; '
2. reviewed the Company's corporate governance policies 2. BN A AB 2 BEEBRBERRER

and practices;

3. reviewed the connected transactions and the continuing 3. RN AEECHERSMNFBEBRER
connected transactions of the Group; Z
4. reviewed the compliance with the CG Code; and 4. B R G ETREESRTE K

5. reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and 5. BBREZZBSRNAAAE R
internal control systems of the Company through the ERRANNEZERGET AN -
Audit Committee.

The senior management of the Company is delegated HRARBZEERFRERE ARREESE
with responsibilities in the day-to-day management and ZEREBEAQRAZHERITHRER WiEL
administration of the Company and makes operational and & MEM EZREK

business decisions within the control and delegation framework

of the Company.
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The Company has issued formal letters of appointment for
Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of their
appointment.

The Company had arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal actions against its Directors and officers. The
Company reviews the extent of insurance cover each year.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary who is responsible for ensuring that
board procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations, are
followed; and also regularly updates the Board on governance
and regulatory matters. Any Director, in the furtherance of
his or her duties, may take independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances through the Chairman at the
expense of the Company. The availability of professional
advice extends to the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration
Committees.

Minutes of Board meetings were taken by the Company
Secretary and, together with any supporting Board papers,
are available to all Board members. During the year ended 31
December 2019, six regular Board meetings were held by the
Company.
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The attendance record of Directors at regular Board meetings

and other Committee meetings as well as general meetings
during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the

EENBE_ZT-NF+-_A=+—RHLFE
AHFEEFETHeAREMZESEAUR
BRREHCHIAN T K

table below:

Number of regular meetings or Number of general

meetings attended/held meetings attended/held
HE/EBITEHERRERRE HEETRRAERY
Remuneration Nomination Audit
Board Committee Committee Committee Annual Special
Director B2 EEEg §MEEE REEEE ERZEE BE 5 Bl
Executive Directors HITEE
Liu Hongde* Bt iE 4/4 11 - - 11 0/0
Lai Weixuan BES 6/6 - 212 - 0/1 171
Fu Fangxing B HE 6/6 = = = 0/1 0/1
Zhang Zhibiao KEE 5/6 - - - 0N 0N
Yu Xiaodong TER 6/6 = = = 17 171
Zhao Yang** HIm** 212 = = = 0/0 171
Non-executive Director ~ FEHiTEE
Chow Wai Kam B &% 6/6 - - - 11 il
Independent BUHHITEE
Non-executive Directors

Chu Yu Lin, David ENAL 6/6 171 212 33 11 0/1
Li Ka Fai, David FRE 6/6 11 - 33 11 11
Zhang Ping R¥ 6/6 - 2/2 3/3 01 i
e Mr. Liu Hongde resigned on 23 August 2019. Up to the date of his  * BIREAER_ZE-AEFENAZ+T=BEIE-

resignation, four Board meetings and one general meeting were
held during the year.

*x Mr. Zhao Yang was appointed as director of the Company on 23
August 2019. Two Board meetings and one general meeting were
held during the period from the date of his appointment up to the

end of the year.

Save for the annual general meeting, one special general
meeting was held during the year 2019.
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R—REERKRE -
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ARARER NI 2B ESFFESM
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BRRRBFEARGIIN R_T-NFREFTT —
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed director was given a comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction training to ensure that he is fully
aware of his responsibilities under statute and common law, the
Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements.

All directors were encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. According to the records provided by the
Directors, the Directors received the following training during
the year 2019:

EEERRSE

EERIIREXRER

BEFEONEFRLTRE ERARKAR
MR FRIEN  UBRIEME2MEESE
ERRERE ETREEE REMESS
ETRRBE -

ARABBERETSEBBEIXER ER
WEHEMBE K- RIBEFRHUNCE
EER T -NFARBIATEI:

Type of continuous professional
development programmes

BESERRITEER
Reading materials Attending briefing
and updates sessions/seminars

Director 2= MEMBREHER HESNS/ANE
Executive Directors HITEF
Liu Hongde* £t v v
Lai Weixuan FEE v v
Fu Fangxing 1% 75 B v v
Zhang Zhibiao RERE v v
Yu Xiaodong FEER v v
Zhao Yang** e v v
Non-executive Director FHITEE
Chow Wai Kam A& % v ¥4
Independent Non-executive Directors B FEH7TE F
Chu Yu Lin, David oK 4 Bk v %
Li Ka Fai, David FRE v &
Zhang Ping R v v
* resigned on 23 August 2019. & RZE-—NENAZ+=HEE-

* appointed on 23 August 2019.

o RZFB-—NFNAZ+=BRZEEF-
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EEERRSE
CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the role of the
Chairman is separated from that of the Chief Executive Officer.
Currently, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company are Mr. Lai Weixuan and Mr. Zhao Yang respectively.

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring the effectiveness of the Board in all aspects of its role
and for setting its agenda and taking into account any matters
proposed by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda.
Agendas and accompanying Board papers are circulated where
possible at least three days before the time of a Board meeting.
The Chairman is also responsible for making sure all Directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings. The
Chief Executive Officer is delegated with the authorities to
manage the business of the Group in all aspects effectively.

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer has been clearly established and set out
in writing.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors bring a wide range of skills and
experience to the Group. They serve the important function
of providing adequate checks and balances for safeguarding
the interests of shareholders and the Company as a whole.
The Company had received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
Independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Board considered that the independent non-executive Directors
are independent in character and judgment and fulfill the
independence guidelines set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

Other than the non-executive Director appointed on 23 June
2015 and the independent non-executive Director appointed
on 26 May 2017, the other two independent non-executive
Directors were appointed without specific terms, but are
subject to retirement by rotation as explained above under
section headed “BOARD OF DIRECTORS".
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one
Executive Director, Mr. Lai Weixuan, and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David
(as chairman) and Mr. Li Ka Fai, David. The Remuneration
Committee is responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the Company's policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration. The role, authority
and duties of the Remuneration Committee are clearly set out
in its terms of reference.

One meeting was held during the year 2019 to review and
recommend the remuneration of newly appointed executive
Directors to Board. The attendance of each member is set
out in the table above under section headed “BOARD OF
DIRECTORS”.

The primary goal of the remuneration policy on executive
remuneration packages is to enable the Company to retain
and motivate Executive Directors by linking their compensation
with performance as measured against corporate objectives.
Under the policy, no director or any of his associates is allowed
in deciding his own remuneration. During the year 2019,
the Remuneration Committee has adopted the model “to
determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management”.
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Details of remuneration of members of senior management of

the Company by band for the year ended 31 December 2019
are set out below:

BE_ZT—NWF+-_A=+—HIFE &R
AEESBZHMESHEAINWT

Number of
individuals
Remuneration M & A
HK$1,000,000 to HK$ 1,500,000 2

Details of Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16
to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial
statements respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established
in compliance with rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the
purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Group's financial reporting process, risk management
and internal control systems and the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal audit function. It currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chu Yu Lin,
David (as chairman), Mr. Li Ka Fai, David and Mr. Zhang Ping.
The Audit Committee met three times during the year 2019
to assess the ability of external auditor and review the interim
and final results, the interim and annual reports, the external
auditor's engagement letter and fee, the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal audit function and the continuing
connected transactions. The attendance of each member is set
out in the table above under the section headed “BOARD OF
DIRECTORS”. The duties of the Audit Committee are clearly set
out in its terms of reference.
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Full minutes of meetings are kept and sent to all members of
the Board. Matters raised at the meetings were reported back
to the Board so that due consideration was given as to the
action to be taken.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has a Nomination Committee which was
established in compliance with code provisions A.5.1 to
A.5.4 of the CG Code for the purposes of reviewing the
structure, size and composition (including skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board and making recommendations
to the Board regarding any proposed changes, identifying
candidates with suitable qualifications as directors, selecting
and making recommendations to the Board, assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors, and
making recommendations to the Board on matters relating to
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors. It currently comprises one executive
Director, Mr. Fu Fangxing, and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Zhang Ping (as chairman) and Mr. Chu Yu
Lin, David. The duties of the Nomination Committee are clearly
set out in its terms of reference.

The Nomination Committee met two times during the year
2019 to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board, assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors and making recommendations to the Board regarding
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors. The attendance of each member is set
out in the table above under the section headed “BOARD OF
DIRECTORS”.
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BOARD NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee shall endeavor to find individuals
of high integrity who have a solid record of accomplishment in
their chosen fields and who possess the qualifications, qualities
and skills to effectively represent the best interests of the Group
and its shareholders. Candidates will be selected for their ability
to exercise good judgment, and to provide practical insights
and diverse perspectives. Candidates also will be assessed in
the context of the then-current composition of the Board,
the operating requirements of the Group. In conducting this
assessment, the Nomination Committee will, in connection with
its assessment and recommendation of candidates for director,
consider diversity (including, but not limited to, gender, race,
ethnicity, age, experience and skills) and such other factors as
it deems appropriate given the then current and anticipated
future needs of the Board and the Company, and to maintain
a balance of perspectives, qualifications, qualities and skills on
the Board.

The Nomination Committee considered the following
qualifications at a minimum to be required of any Board
members in recommending to the Board potential new board
members, or the continued service of existing members:

the highest professional and personal ethics;

o broad experience in business;

o ability to provide insights and practical wisdom based on
their experience and expertise;

. commitment to enhancing shareholder value;

o sufficient time to effectively carry out their duties;

o compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and
o ability to develop a good working relationship with other

Board members and contribute to the Board’'s working
relationship with senior management of the Group.
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AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

Ernst & Young are the auditors of the Company. The services
provided by them include audit and non-audit. Fees for auditing
and non-auditing (including interim review, taxation and other
professional services) services for the year ended 31 December
2019 amount to HK$3,000,000 and HK$3,413,000 respectively.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors are responsible for monitoring the preparation of
financial statements of each financial period and ensuring those
financial statements provide a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for the
relevant financial period. In preparing the financial statements,
the Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies
and applied them consistently, adopted Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, made a prudent and reasonable
judgment and estimation, and, prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

The Company has timely announced and published its financial
results in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The auditors are responsible for forming an independent
opinion, based on their audit, on those financial statements
and to report their opinion solely to the members of the
Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies Act”), and
for no other purpose.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting
responsibilities is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report of
this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's risk
management and internal control systems and for reviewing
their effectiveness through the Audit Committee. These
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement, losses or fraud. Procedures have been
designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or
disposition, for maintaining proper accounting records; and for
the reliability of financial information used within the business
or for publication. Procedures have also been designed for
compliance of applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Reviews of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, were conducted by the internal audit section of the
Group from time to time. The results and recommendations
were reported to the Audit Committee and thereafter to the
Board. The adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group's
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions
had also been reviewed by the Board and Audit Committee.
During the year ended 31 December 2019, internal audit
section of the Group evaluated the effectiveness and adequacy
of the Group's risk management and internal control systems
by adopting an integrated risk assessment approach. In
addition, the Group also engaged an independent internal
control consultant to conduct independent evaluations on its
internal control, and the review report was presented to the
Audit Committee and the Board for review in March 2020. No
material deficiency was identified. The Board considered that
the Group's risk management and internal control systems were
adequate and effective and the Company had complied with
the provisions on risk management and internal control of the
CG Code. The Board confirms that systems and procedures
are in place to identify, control and report on significant risks
involved in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives.
Exposures to these risks are monitored by the Board with the
support of Audit Committee, internal audit section and senior
management.
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The Company has implemented Corporate Disclosure Policy,
which sets out the reporting procedures for the handling and
dissemination of inside information.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Kwok Chi Ho, the Company Secretary, is an employee of
the Company and responsible directly to the Board. He has
complied with all the qualification, experience and training
requirement under the Listing Rules.

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The updated Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws of
the Company had been posted on the Company's website at
www.avic.com.hk and the Stock Exchange’s designated website
at www.hkexnews.hk. During the year 2019, there was no
change in the Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws of the
Company.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening of a special general meeting by
shareholders

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company and the Companies
Act, the Board shall, on the requisition of shareholders holding
at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of such of the paid-up capital of the Company as at
the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed duly to convene a
special general meeting of the Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
registered office of the Company (the "Registered Office”),
which is presently situated at Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31
Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda, and may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.
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If the Board does not within twenty-one days from the date
of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the
said date.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, either any number of
shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date
of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which the
requisition relates; or not less than one hundred shareholders,
can request the Company in writing to (a) give to shareholders
entitled to receive notice of the next annual general meeting
notice of any resolution which may properly be moved and
is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to
shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting
sent to them any statement of not more than one thousand
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the requisitionists must be
deposited at the Registered Office with a sum reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses, not less
than six weeks before the meeting in the case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution; and not less than one week
before the meeting in the case of any other requisition.
Provided that if, an annual general meeting is called for a date
six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the
requisition though not deposited within the time required shall
be deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes
thereof.
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Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director

Regarding the procedures for proposing a person for election as
a Director, please refer to the procedures made available under
section Corporate Governance of the Company’s website at
www.avic.com.hk.

Procedures for directing shareholder’s enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose
contact details are as follows:

Unit A, 20/F, Tower 2, Admiralty Centre
18 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong
Fax: (852) 2915 0867

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
general meetings of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is committed to fair disclosure, comprehensive
and transparent reporting. Effective communication with
shareholders has always been one of the Company’s priorities.
Information in relation to the Group is disseminated to
shareholders in a timely manner through various formal
channels, which include interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars.

The Company has established a shareholders’ communication
policy which is subject to review on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness.
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General meetings of the Company provide good opportunities
for direct communications between the Board and its
shareholders. The Chairman of the Board, all other
Directors and senior management endeavor to attend any
general meeting of the Company and answer queries from
shareholders. Separate resolution is proposed for each issue by
the chairman of the meeting at each general meeting. Notice
of general meeting is served together with the circular to the
shareholders at least twenty clear business days or twenty-one
clear days, whichever is the longer, before an annual general
meeting and at least ten clear business days or twenty-one
clear days, whichever is the longer, before a meeting called for
passing of a special resolution, and, at least ten clear business
days or fourteen clear days, whichever is the longer, before a
meeting other than an annual general meeting or a meeting for
the passing of a special resolution.

Detailed procedures for conducting a poll are to be explained
by the chairman of the meeting at the commencement of
the general meeting. Any questions raised from shareholders
regarding voting by way of a poll may also be answered by the
chairman of the meeting.

The 2019 annual general meeting of the Company was held
on 24 May 2019. At the meeting, a separate resolution was
proposed by the chairman of the meeting in respect of each
separate issue, including re-election of retiring directors, and
voted by way of poll. The Company announced the results
of the poll in the manner prescribed under the Listing Rules.
All Directors except for three executive Directors and an
independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee, a member of the
Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee and a member
of Nomination Committee, attended the 2019 annual general
meeting and had effective communications with shareholders.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Group is pleased to present this environmental,
and governance report. Through reporting to stakeholders on
sustainable development issues and performance, the Group
has improved the transparency and responsibility of information
disclosure and increased public confidence; at the same
time to helping stakeholders better understand the Group's
sustainability progress and development direction.

social

SCOPE OF REPORTING

This report specifies the Group's environmental,
governance performance for the fiscal year 2019 (1 January
to 31 December 2019), which runs consistent with the annual
report of the Group. The Group adopted the materiality
principle in planning and preparing this report.
otherwise stated, this report covers the general aviation piston
engine business in the United States which represents the
majority of Group's environmental and social impacts.

social and

Unless

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
GUIDELINES AND REPORTING

The Group's environmental, social and governance guidelines
are designed to continually improve the transparency and
responsibility of information disclosure. Therefore, the report
is released annually by the Group for public review. The Group
will strive to follow such principles as part of the Group’s
practice and governance, and is committed to contributing to
the sustainable development of the society and environment.

The Board endeavours to contribute to sustainability.
Meanwhile, the Board is responsible for assessing and
identifying the Group’s environmental, social and governance
risks. By identifying and managing such risks, the Board can
formulate well-defined environmental, social and governance
policies and ensure the solid implementation of relevant policies
and guidelines.
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RiR #HEgRERERS
BASIS OF PREPARATION

This report is prepared and presented with reference to the
Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Reporting Guide
set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules:

1. Materiality: the threshold at which ESG issues become
sufficiently important to investors and other stakeholders
that they should be reported.

2. Quantitative: KPIs need to be measurable. Targets can
be set to reduce a particular impact. In this way, the
effectiveness of ESG policies and management systems
can be evaluated and validated. Quantitative information
should be accompanied by a narrative, explaining its
purpose, impacts, and giving comparative data where
appropriate.

3. Balance: The report should provide an unbiased picture
of the Group’s performance. The report should avoid
selections, omissions, or presentation formats that may
inappropriately influence a decision or judgment by the
report reader.

4. Consistency: The Group should use consistent
methodologies to allow for meaningful comparisons of
ESG data over time. The issuer should disclose in the
report any changes to the methods used or any other
relevant factors affecting a meaningful comparison.
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COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group believes that effective feedback from stakeholders

not only contributes to the comprehensive and impartial

evaluation of the ESG performance but also enables it to

improve its performance based on the feedback, such as interim

reports, annual reports, announcements and circulars. During

the Reporting Period, the Group continued to maintain an open

dialogue with stakeholders to review and update the key areas

identified as important to the Group’s business operations. This

can help the Group to develop sustainability plans in line with

the business strategy.

A.

ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group upholds the philosophy of “Low-carbon
economy will become the norm of future economic
development” and is committed to aligning its business
model with this philosophy. The Group implemented
a series of environmental management measures on
air and greenhouse gas emissions, water and land
discharges, as well as the generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes. This can reduce the damage
caused by daily business activities to the environment
and enable the Group to achieve a green production
mode with low pollution and low emissions, which leads
the Group towards a low-carbon economy.

1. GREENHOUSE GAS AND AIR EMISSIONS

In line with the Group’s environmental
protection policies, the Group has formulated
internal guidelines. Through establishing
relevant environmental guidelines, the Group
systematically integrate the use of resources and
emission management into daily operations. Also,
the Group has established the environmental
management committee, and the global human
resources director and plant facility manager lead
the communication with various stakeholders,
balance different opinions and implement
environmental protection guidelines.
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RiR #HEgRERERS

In an effort to practice environmental protection,
the Group regards the management of
greenhouse gas and air emissions as part of the
operational decisions. Along with the strategy,
the Group also takes effective measures to reduce
greenhouse gas and air emissions, in addition
to comply with relevant government laws and
regulations and keeping abreast of the latest
environmental developments around the world.
The Group's air emissions mainly come from its
general aviation piston engine business, which

AEEEAEREMERERE
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REWINOX) * &Y (SOX)

involves air pollutants from transportation and K AJ iR A RERL )
testing of engines. The air emissions include
nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulphur oxides (SOx) and
respirable suspended particulates.
Emission Unit (kg)
2358 e (Tx)
2019 2018

—EB-NF —B-N\F
Nitrogen Oxides (NOX) AE/L P (NOX) 2,630.84 2,721.00
Sulphur oxides (SOX) WAL (SOX) 145.15 73.00
Particulate matter L Ry 1,995.80 1,996.00

Table 1 — Total emissions during the reporting period
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The Group’s greenhouse gas emissions come

from the operations of the aircraft factory,

including fuel consumption for testing aircraft

engines. During the reporting period, the Group

produced a total of approximately 1,800 tonnes

of carbon dioxide equivalent of greenhouse gases,

representing an emission density of 4 tonnes of

carbon dioxide equivalent per employee.
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Scope of Emissions Intensity
greenhouse Emission (Tonnes of carbon (Emissions per Total emissions
gases emission source dioxide equivalent) employee) (In percentage)
HME
(AR = 4L BE 3,40
RERBHREE BHORR &) (HHE/8I) (B2 )
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
ZB-NEZE-\FZB-NE ZE-\F ZE-RE ZB-N\E
Scope 1 Direct emissions HE1EBER
Aviation fuel fZ A 92321 54333 2.07 1.31 51.95 47.71
Unleaded gasoline Eigit b 11.14 10.28 0.03 0.02 0.63 0.90
Liquefied petroleum gas RILA#ER 27.75 96.29 0.06 0.23 1.56 8.46
Kerosene o8 251.89 90.98 0.57 0.22 14.17 7.99
Diesel & 1.30 0.23 0.00 0.00 0.07 0.0
Natural gas AR 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Acetylene Vs 0.00 0.04 0.00 0.00 0.00
R22 refrigerant R22ELZ 0.00 6.57 0.00 0.02 0.00 0.58
Carbon dioxide fire k0
extinguishers 22.00 3.82 0.05 0.01 1.24 0.33
Scope 2 Indirect #E2
emissions B HH
Purchased electricity BEE 7.56 6.92 0.02 0.02 0.43 0.61
Scope 3 Other indirect #E3
emissions HeBEZHER
Disposed paper waste EES 0.02 50.11 0.00 0.12 0.00 4.40
Employee flight mileage BIRMTEH 53218 33046 1.20 0.79 29.95 29.01
Total @t 1,777.05 1,138.92 4.00 2.74 100.00 100.00

Table 2 - Total greenhouse gas emissions during the

reporting period

R2-BREHANBEREBHREE
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RiR #HEgRERERS

The Group’s business units take different
measures to reduce air pollutants and
greenhouse gas emissions. In order to reduce
power consumptions and emissions from office
operations, the Group prefers using low-power
electrical appliances or products, and avoids using
unnecessary high-power equipment. For example,
the Group preferably chooses LED or low-wattage
with bright lighting systems to effectively reduce
power consumption. So as to achieve the purpose
of reducing greenhouse gas emissions.

Besides, the Group is committed to using
appropriate machinery and equipment. Pollution
control devices have been installed in paint shops,
sandblasting machines and treatment tanks in
the factory to effectively control and reduce the
emissions of carbon monoxide, volatile organic
compounds, harmful air pollutants and particulate
matters, thus achieving the goal of reducing
greenhouse gas emissions.

(a) Waste Management

The Group adheres to the principles of
waste management and strives to properly
handle and dispose of all wastes generated
from business activities. In order to reduce
environmental impact, the Group classify
and recycle wastes where feasible to
increase the potential of downstream
recycling, and properly dispose of non-
recyclable wastes.
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By implementing waste assessment
procedures, the Group assesses the
emissions of air, water and solid waste,
special waste, hazardous and non-
hazardous waste for newly added
machines and processes. Meanwhile,
the Group classifies hazardous and non-
hazardous waste in the factory to meet the
requirements of local laws and regulations.
The hazardous waste is handed over to
four qualified hazardous waste collectors
for disposal. When selecting a suitable
hazardous waste collector, the Group
requires the supplier to obtain a hazardous
waste transportation permit issued by the
U.S. Department of Transportation.

Waste

3]

Emission (Tonnes)

RiR #HEgRERRS
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Intensity
(Consumption per
employee)

BE
(B8 /81)

2019 2018
“E2E-hF ZB-N\F

Total hazardous waste BEREZEWEE
Total non-hazardous BEBEEYEE

waste

0.04 0.06

0.43 0.59

Table 3 — Waste generated during the reporting
period

During the reporting period, the Group
strictly complied with the relevant
environmental laws and there was no
case of prosecution against the Group for
violation of environmental laws.
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2.

USE OF RESOURCES 2. EREA
The Group adheres to the concept of energy AEEBERTEHERBENES
conservation and emission reduction that ERGBEEE - RETARRKRE
achieves green production. In order to fulfil its SAKRECEREZEERER
environmental commitments, the Group has FeeRmE - R AR EFAK
implemented a series of measures to improve E-RBBEBRERREEEIRME
energy efficiency and reduce paper and water A AEBETRESERFERM
consumption. By monitoring and managing the KOELERERERIFAR
use of resources, the Group aims to improve B BOEGBEER - BHEERR
resources utilisation efficiency, achieve low-carbon KERBEZFBEER T ESD
practices and emission reduction in operation, BE
and reduce the use of resources.
(a)  Resources @ EBF
During the reporting period, the resources RBEHN REEBAR
directly consumed by the Group for EENEEHEREERN
operations are as follows: Ik
Intensity
(Consumption per
employee)
Consumption BE
Resources Unit HEE (H¥E/8I)
Bk B 2019 2018 2019 2018
“B-hnE ZB-Nf ZBE-NF ZF-NF
Power kilowatt hour 14272.00  13,056.00 32.07 31.38
EW)) TRE
Aviation fuel litre 379,629.14  223,422.57 853.10 537.07
fZE i A
Unleaded gasoline litre 4,112.30 3,797.53 9.24 9.13
B TH At
Liquefied petroleum gas litre 9,198.00 31,916.70 20.67 76.72
R AR AF
Kerosene litre 103,576.91 37,411.22 232.76 89.93
oy A
Diesel litre 469.81 41.64 1.06 0.10

S DTt
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RiR #HEgRERRS

Intensity
(Consumption per
employee)
Consumption BE
Resources Unit HEE (H¥E/8I)
ER By 2019 2018 2019 2018
“B-hnE ZB-N§ ZE-NF ZE-NF

Natural gas cubic metre 1,545,875.00 756,037.35 3,473.88 1,817.40
Acetylene kilogramme 0.00 11.04 0.00 0.03
LBk NIy
R22 refrigerant kilogramme 0.00 3.63 0.00 0.01
R2282H RF
Carbon dioxide fire

extinguishers kilogramme 22,000.00 3,819.70 49.44 9.18
k-t 40 S NIy
Water cubic metre 71,687.00 5,692,900.00 161.09 13,684.86
N IAK
Steam cubic metre 22,995.00 21,042.00 51.67 50.58
Packaging materials for

finished products (plastic)  tonnes 34.80 31.90 0.08 0.08
HmBENH (2H) i
Packaging materials for

finished products (paper)  tonnes 202.80 185.90 0.46 0.45
HmBENH (HK) i
Packaging materials for

finished products (wood)  tonnes 169.14 196.01 0.38 0.47
B mBEMH (KH) i

Table 4 - Consumption of resources during the

reporting period

R4 - HEHANERBRR
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(b)

The Group has been implementing the
“5S methodology” (standing for “Sort”,
“Set in order”, “Shine”, "Standardize”,
and “Sustain”) as the core model for
the daily management, implementation
and discussion. Furthermore, the Group
conducts lean management and waste
reduction management to realise the
“Zero emission plan”. The plan is aimed
at encouraging employees to redesign the
use of resources from many aspects to
prolong the life cycle of resources. Through
effective use of products or materials, the
plan can help reduce the use of resources
and generate less waste.

In addition, the Group attaches great
importance to energy management in
order to make effective use of power
resources. The Group gives preference to
the use of energy-efficient equipment,
including energy-saving lighting
fixtures, with a view to reducing energy
consumption in the long run.

Water Consumption

Sustainable and responsible use of water
resources is a major global issue. The
Group is aware that water shortage,
excessive demand and overuse of water
can cause serious problems. In view of
this, the Group has in place wastewater
treatment equipment. Through waste
minimization plans, neutralization,
chromate reduction, and alkaline
chlorination of cyanide, the Group
effectively reduce wastewater effluent
characteristics and the discharge in the
factory.
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ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

As a socially responsible enterprise, protecting
nature and the environment has become an
integral part of the Group’s corporate culture.
The Group constantly looks for ways to maximize
benefits with minimal resource consumption and
environmental impact and continue to strive for
sustainable development.

The Group continuously identifies, assesses
and manages potential adverse impacts on
the environment, and strives to maintain a
balance between business development and
ecological environment for long-term sustainable
development. When reviewing its business
strategies and planning for future business
development, the Group will take environmental
protection and conservation of natural resources
into consideration.

The Group is dedicated to taking a series of
effective measures to avoid and mitigating the
impact on the environment and surrounding
areas, including reducing noise, emissions and
indoor air pollution. The Group has engaged
qualified environmental consultants to review its
environmental projects regularly. For example, the
Group ensures that the factory is in compliance
with the Resource Conservation and Recycling
Act (RCRA), the Air Emissions Permit, and the
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
(NPDES) permit.

RiR #HEgRERRS
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During the reporting period, the Group did not
have any major environmental accidents.

CLIMATE CHANGE

The Group’s business scope includes the general
aviation aircraft piston engine business in the
United States. Accordingly, the Group has
identified and assessed climate change risks and
has developed measures to protect the safety
of the Group and employees, including strictly
following relevant extreme weather guidelines
issued by the government. The Group regularly
reviews climate change policies to ensure
effectiveness.

B. SOCIAL

1.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group reckons that employees are the most
valuable assets and have a critical impact on the
quality of the Group's products and services. They
are also the cornerstone for sustainable corporate
development.

The Group strives to build a safe, healthy,
fair and non-discriminative work environment
and maintain a harmonious relationship
with employees, so as to bring together all
employees to promote the long-term sustainable
development of the Group.
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Equal Opportunity Policy

The Group is convinced that equal
employment relations can improve
employee satisfaction, which in turn
helps retain and motivate outstanding
talents and thus promotes the Group's
business development. As such, in order
to prevent prospective employees from
being discriminated against in the hiring
process, the Group has formulated relevant
recruitment procedures to ensure that
recruitment decisions are made based on
the capabilities, knowledge and experience
of job applicants related to the open
positions irrespective of such factors as
gender, age, race, family status, religious
belief and disability.

Compensation System

The Group provides a fair and competitive
compensation package, including basic
salary, incentives bonus, mandatory
provident fund, and other fringe benefits
to attract and retain quality talents. In
addition, the Group continually reforms
and improves its employee compensation
policies and systems and fully considers
increasing employee compensation in
tandem with the Group’s performance,
in an effort to ensure that employees
are rewarded fairly based on their
contributions. The Group considers a
variety of factors to assess and determine
pay levels, including employees’
workability, the Group's performance, and
pay levels in the market.
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Moreover, the Group also has a set
of comprehensive human resources
management policy to support human
resources function. The policies include
compensation and benefits, working hours
and holidays, recruitment and selection,
performance management, promotion,
employment termination, training and
development.

During the reporting period, the Group did
not have any cases of violation of relevant
employment laws and regulations, nor
did it receive any complaints related to
recruitment.

With a view to increasing the transparency
of the report, starting from the reporting
period the Group shall disclose its key
performance index in the social area, so as
to address stakeholders’ aspirations. Data
comparison will be provided in the next
reporting period.
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Number of Percentage
employees of total
ETAE H#EZESIL
By gender 4 Bl
Male B4 371 83.4
Female e 74 16.6
Total HEt 445 100
By age = F iRl
18-30 18-3073% 47 10.6
31-45 31-455% 135 30.3
46-60 46-6073% 182 40.9
over 60 615 A E 81 18.2
Total et 445 100
By employee category BITHER
Senior management RRERE 9 2.0
Middle management FREERE 63 14.2
General employee —MET 373 83.8
Total HBEt 445 100

R5 - MEHMARIER - Fikd
MREBTHEMNEDHE THA

Table 5 — Breakdown of employees by gender, age
and employee category
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2.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group values the health and well-being of
every employee. The Group has established a risk
assessment program that consists of a number of
sequential procedures, such as risk identification,
analysis, evaluation, treatment, monitoring and
reviewing based on the existing controls and
recommendations to reduce risks which are not
deemed to be under acceptable limits.

The Group identifies workplaces that are in high
risk. Accordingly, the Group has implemented a
series of occupational health and safety measures
to protect the safety of employees. The Group
requires employees to strictly comply with
the safety policy and guidelines which specify
workflows, various safety measures and guidance
as well as employees’ responsibilities for their
health and safety at the workplace.
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The Group has set up a safety committee to
take charge of its occupational health and safety
matters. The committee, which consists of the
human resources director, safety manager and
fire specialist, as well as hourly team members
from the shop floor, is responsible for the Group’s
occupational health and safety matters. The
committee meets once per week to discuss health
and safety issues brought up by team members,
formulate safety management measures for
compliance, and advise internal departments
on government standards and regulations. On
the other hand, the Group incorporating safety
performance into the annual performance
appraisal. As such, the Group effectively improves
occupational health and safety.

In addition, the Group has developed measures
for drug abuse prevention. According to the
Employee Assistance Program, professionals are
engaged to diagnose whether local employees
have drug and alcohol abuse problems and
advise them thereon, and to provide professional
guidance, training and consultation in this regard.
In addition, the Group requires all employees to
attend monthly safety meetings. Such meetings
cover the latest information on occupational
health and safety, internal safety policies and
safety accident review.

During the reporting period, the Group found
no cases of violation of laws and regulations
related to occupational safety and health, nor did
it receive any complaints about work conditions.
Also, there was no work-related death or injury
within the Group.

RiR #HEgRERRS
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3.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group recognises the importance of skilled
and professionally trained employees to its
business growth and future success. Through
employee developments and training, the Group
help employees demonstrate their potential and
facilitate the Group's objectives.

On this ground, the Group encourages employees
to participate in personal development and job-
related training courses. Through the formulation
of employee training policies, the Group has a
comprehensive training system, which specifies
the management responsibilities of training
leaders in various departments, and provides
corresponding learning and training courses for
employees to continuously increase their work
knowledge and skills.

In daily operation, the Group provides induction
training for new employees, experienced
employees act as mentors to guide newcomers.
Further, the Group has established the
Educational Assistance Plan which provide
educational subsidies to employees on job-related
internal training courses and support them to
take external training courses. The Group believes
such arrangement can be the best practice to
facilitate communication and team spirit, improve
technical skills and managerial capability, as well
as encourage employees for further development.
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Training rates of employees during the reporting R|EAA - ZER R ETER
period by gender and employee category are as OB ITHEIEMT :
follows:
Number of Percentage
employees of total

BETA# GHRAHEI

By gender % 5l
Male Bt 371 83.4
Female gegid 74 16.6
Total mEt 445 100
By employee category BT EH
Senior management SRERE 9 2.0
Middle management FREERE 63 14.2
General employee —MRET 373 83.8
Total HBEt 445 100
Table 6 — Training Rates of Employees by gender and =6 - MEHARNIZER R E THERE S
employee category BB TR
LABOUR STANDARDS 4. HIER[
(a)  Prohibition of Child Labour and Forced @ ZUREFETHNEFHEET
Labour
The Group is firmly against child labour ARERTREUET RS
and forced labour, and prohibits the BETHMERA FIER
employment of any child labour and forced Ef] & & KRG T EE AT
labour in any operations and services. AIETMRHIET -



54

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMZE TEERER (F8)EBRAT
Annual Report 2019 =& — [ FEFR

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HERERRE

All employees of the Group must reach
the statutory minimum working age.
Before hiring any candidate, the Group
will check the age-related documents to
verify his/her age. The Group adheres
to the principle of fair and voluntary
recruitment, strictly forbids forced or
fraudulent recruitment, ensures that all
employees work on a voluntary basis, and
prohibits forced labour in any form. Where
employees are needed to work overtime
in the production process, the Group will
formulate overtime arrangements with the
employee representatives and employees,
and the working hours will not exceed
the maximum legal limits. Moreover, the
management personnel will not force
the employees to carry out work with
significant safety and health risks or illicit
work.

During the reporting period, the Group
found no incidents in violation of the laws
and regulations on labour standards.
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5. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT 5. HEEER

The Group emphasises promoting good REERAREREREHEY
communication and cooperation with business RIEFHBEESIERE B4
partners to jointly maintain the quality and safety EERERBENEENLZ R -F
of products and services. In addition, the Group - AEBREBEAESI BT
implements supplier management in accordance ERERAAEHERNEZE-
with internal guidance which governs the HEENEEDRERENER
engagement of suppliers. Based on the quality HEITEEMG(EIET -

and price, suppliers are chosen to subject to
screening and evaluation procedures among the
suppliers.
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In order to ensure suppliers’ capability in
quality assurance, safety and environmental
responsibility, the Group will arrange field visits
to suppliers’ productions sites to evaluate their
production capacity and quality, so as to assess
their environmental and process certifications
including AS9100 (quality management systems
for the aviation industry). The evaluation reviews
the production capacity, technology level, quality
assurance capabilities, supply capacity, safety
and environment management qualifications
if needed. Only the highly qualified suppliers
complied with regulatory requirements are
eligible for the supplier selection by the Group.
The Group also carries out regular assessments
on suppliers’ overall capabilities, assets position,
nature of the business, reputation in the
industry, quality of products, goods delivery and
compliance with law and regulations.

In addition, the Group also request that the
suppliers utilize Solumina Supplier Rating System
software to select and validate vendor codes. To
ensure product quality and management, as well
as motivating suppliers to make improvements,
suppliers are required to certify its products via
third-party certifications.

During the reporting period, the Group has 226
active suppliers.

RiR #HEgRERRS
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6.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

(a)

Quality Assurance

The Group strictly controls every aspect of
the product trade and carries out stringent
quality management. Accordingly, the
Group has formulated different policies in
the design, planning and production stages
to ensure that the products meet the
relevant quality and safety requirements.
Before delivering products to customers,
the processes stipulated by the Group's
internal quality procedures are completed
to ensure that the products meet the
quality standards stipulated in laws and
regulations and the quality requirements of
the Group.

The Group's general aviation piston
engine business in the United States has
obtained ISO 9001 quality management
system certification and applies the Plan-
Do-Check-Act (PDCA) model to continually
improve quality management in the
procurement process. The Group will strive
to ensure that its products meet regulatory
requirements and customer expectations
on a continuous basis.

In addition, the Group regularly accesses
its internal production processes to ensure
customer satisfaction and compliance with
the requirements of 1ISO9001, AS9100 and
the Federal Aviation Administration.
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During the reporting period, the Group
found no violations of laws and regulations
related to products or services.

Customer Data Protection and Privacy
Policy

To ensure the protection of customer
data, all orders and data of the Group's
customers are processed and saved
by dedicated personnel, and other
employees are not allowed to access
them. In terms of safeguarding and
protecting intellectual property rights, the
Group will select products provided by
legitimate manufacturers or suppliers to
prevent pirated goods from entering into
the market through its sales channels.
Furthermore, all software used by the
Group is licensed. The Information
Management Department monitors the
use of software and conducts regular
inspections to ensure that there is no
unauthorised software being used.

During the reporting period, the Group
recalled a total of 760 orders for safety
and health reasons, all of which have
been followed up and handled. The Group
abided by relevant product liability laws
and there was no case of prosecution
against the Group for violation of laws
related to product responsibility and
privacy protection.
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7.

INTEGRITY

The Group endeavours to advocates honest
operation and fair competition, and expects
all employees to observe the highest ethical,
personal and professional standards. The Group
has developed a sound risk management code
and internal control code, including setting out
the relevant policies in the employee handbook
and guides the employees to abide by the code
of conduct. The code of conduct provides a clear
definition of the provision and acceptance of
interests, such as gifts and souvenirs, and ways to
deal with conflicts of interest.

The Group has established and implements
an internal integrity system to strengthen the
integrity of employees in management practices.
Also, the Group has established an effective
whistle-blowing procedure, encouraging the
employees to report directly any misconduct
and dishonest behaviours, such as bribery, fraud
and other offences. Furthermore, the Group has
specified in the employee handbook that the
Group is entitled to terminate the employment
contract with any employee who is bribed with
money, gifts or commission, etc., and reserves the
right to take further actions against such person.

7.

HEERZ

TEBEBRNRREEBHELER
NEFEF - WHAEMA B TS
BaMEE BAAREERTE
Ble REE DB ETHENRRE
BsrRIRAFES SR BIER
EEFMPEHTIBBBENSIZ
EEESFRTHEA R SPAERIA
BAE TR RLSHENZD
IR R B X LA R AR ] B 38 ) 2 B

RER B B E I B 5 A ER AR IR
- inse 8 T ERRNEGE
P th AN NEBE T A ME R
B HBEI BEABMNE
EREREMAETR/MIRER
B PINEDS - BRGF - AREAMIE
FIOR-H BT FMAHAE
EH WRETIKRESE Y
MEFHE NEEAREEZ
BTRIMEBANOLREENY
AATFRE-—FBRITH-



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMETIEXERER (FEB)ERAT

Annual Report 2019 —Z — h FF 7R

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group provides clear guidelines against
misconduct such as bribery, corruption,
embezzlement, insider trading and swindling
to ensure that employees can report matters
of concern through various channels in a
confidential manner. Where a case of misconduct
is found valid after investigation, the Group
will take appropriate corrective measures and
disciplinary action against the person(s) involved.
If there involves any criminal offence, the Group
will hand over the suspect(s) to the competent
authority. In addition, the Group engages a third-
party agency to audit its financial statements each
year.

During the reporting period, the Group found
neither corruption incidents nor violations of
relevant laws and regulations.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

The Group understands well of the importance of
making positive contributions to the community
where it operates and considers community
benefits as one of its social responsibility.
The Group considers that enterprises and
communities are inseparable as a whole.
Enterprise development is also inseparable from
the support and help of the community. In order
to better fulfil its social responsibilities, the Group
is committed to participating in community
activities and undertakes the responsibility as
a good corporate citizen to contribute to the
communities by encouraging employees to
provide charity and social services.
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RiR #HEgRERERS

The Group will continue to regularly review
its objectives for community investment, and
supervise community investment, sponsorship
and donation activities and the relevant approval
policies. The Group will also examine each year
whether the social performance is in line with
the Group’s community investment policy and
objectives for community activities to ensure that
such policy is well implemented in all departments
while overseeing and improving the team's
capabilities in this regard.

OUTLOOK

The Group believes that the implementation of current
measures regarding environmental and social responsibility
measures is sufficient for compliance with the relevant laws and
listing rules, though necessary reviews and amendments are
needed from time to time to meet the requirements of laws,
listing rules and internal management. Going forward, the
Group will continue to carry out more measures beneficial to
the environment, society and governance in business operations
to live up its commitment to the environment and society.
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap 622 of the laws
of Hong Kong), including a description of the principal risks
and uncertainties faced by the Group and an indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business, can be found in
the Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and
Analysis set out on pages 2 to 9 of this annual report which
forms part of this directors’ report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
the Group's financial position at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 82 to 260 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2019.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”), pursuant to which the Company may declare and
distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company to

allow the shareholders to share the Company’s profits.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining
the dividend amount, the Board shall take into account, inter
alia, the following factors:

(1) the Group’s actual and expected financial results;

(2) the Group's working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

(3) the Group’s liquidity position; and
(4) any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

The payment of dividend is subject to the compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, including the laws of Bermuda
and the Company'’s bye-laws. The Board will continue to review
the Dividend Policy from time to time.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements, is set
out on page 261 of this annual report. This summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in the Company’s share capital
during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to
HK$330,697,000. In addition, the Company's share premium
account, in the amount of HK$1,857,729,000, may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of the Group’s purchases attributable to the
Group's major suppliers are as follows:

FEHREEREF

REETEREEAIEAEE 2 RBEE S
mF

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
% %
Percentage of purchases: HEREBEA DL
From the largest supplier REZAHES 4
From the five largest suppliers KERKRHEER 17 15

The percentages of the Group’s sales attributable to the
Group’s major customers are as follows:

AEEFERFPAGMASEZHEB D L
T

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
% %

Percentage of sales: HHERD
To the largest customer RKEEREP 32 30
To the five largest customers KEAKREP 63 61

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers and customers.
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DIRECTORS

The Board during the year and up to the date of this report
comprises:

Executive Directors:

Liu Hongde (resigned on 23 August 2019)
Lai Weixuan
Fu Fangxing
Zhang Zhibiao
Yu Xiaodong
Zhao Yang (appointed on 23 August 2019)

Non-executive Director:

Chow Wai Kam

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Chu Yu Lin, David
Li Ka Fai, David
Zhang Ping

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Chu Yu Lin,
David, Mr. Li Ka Fai, David and Mr. Zhang Ping will retire by
rotation. All of them, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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The Company has received an annual confirmation from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors of his
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules on the
Stock Exchange. The Company, as at the date of this report,
still considered all the Independent Non-executive Directors as
independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 10 to 15 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of employees (including Directors and senior
management of the Group) is determined with reference to
their qualification, expertise and experience in the industry,
competence, duties and responsibilities within the Group,
the performance and profitability of the Group as well as
the market benchmark and the prevailing market conditions.
Employees shall also be eligible to receive a discretionary year-
end incentive bonus, which shall be determined by the Group
at its absolute discretion taking into account, inter alia, the
Group’s operating performance, market conditions in which
the Group operates and the individual’s performance, payable
at such time as the Group may consider appropriate, and
discretionary share options.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No Director or entities connected with the Directors had
a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company’s holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
during or at the end of the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

Except for certain Directors who had non-beneficial interests
in certain subsidiaries of the Company held for the benefits of
the Company, as at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company had an interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (a) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"); or (b) as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section of “Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures” above and in the section of “Share
option scheme” below, during the year no rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company had been granted to any of the Directors or
their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age;
no such rights had been exercised by them; and none of
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting held on 28 May 2014, the
Company adopted a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
to contribute to the business development and growth of
the Group and to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre
employees and attract or retain human resources that are
valuable to the Group. The share option scheme is valid and
effective for a period of 10 years from the date of its adoption.
Further details of the share option scheme are disclosed in note
36 to the financial statements.

Since the adoption of the share option scheme, no options
have been granted, exercised, lapsed, cancelled or outstanding
thereunder as at 31 December 2019.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER FERRRAEMATRRG KBRS
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND 2R
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, the following interests of 5% or WR-TZE—AF+-_A=+—8 AR aREZ
more of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded % N EIE G E33616FE 2 R E2MATL
in the register of interests required to be kept by the Company %8I KRR FIS%E A F BB ITRAER DT
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions: Ha:
Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share
capital as at
31 December
Number of 2019
Capacity and ordinary R=ZE-1&
nature of shares +=-A=+-H
Name of shareholders Notes interest held ERQARAB BT
BRRAE liogz3 SO RERMEE FEEERYA BAZBEDH
Tacko International Limited (“Tacko”) (a) Beneficial owner 1,895,559,000 20.37
ERBEBA
AVIC International (HK) Group Limited (a) Beneficial owner
("AVIC International (HK) Group”) 2,421,341,390 26.03
B (B8 SEERAA EnEAA
(THmBER (FE)&R])
AVIC International (HK) Group (a) Through a controlled
TRER (BEE)&EE corporation 4,316,900,390 46.40
BB -EXEEE
AVIC International Holding Corporation (a) Through a controlled
("AVIC International”) corporation 4,316,900,390 46.40
PEMERMBERERERAE ([RRERE]) BB -EXEEE
Aviation Industry Corporation of China, Ltd (a) Through a controlled
("AVIC") corporation 4,316,900,390 46.40
HEMEIEEEARAR ([FMIE]) BR—HAXELE
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Notes:

(a) According to notices of disclosure of interests filed with the
Company, Tacko is a wholly-owned subsidiary of AVIC International
(HK) Group, which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of AVIC
International. AVIC International is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary
of AVIC (91.14% interest controlled by AVIC as at 31 December
2019). Accordingly, each of AVIC International (HK) Group, AVIC
International and AVIC is deemed to be interested in the shares held
by Tacko.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, no person
had any interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTION

During the year, the Company had the following continuing
connected transaction, certain details of which are disclosed in
compliance with the requirements of Charter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Sale services of engines and engines parts

On 24 October 2017, the Company and AVIC entered into a
sale framework agreement (the “Sale Framework Agreement”)
for the sale of engines and engine parts to AVIC and/or
its associates as defined under the Listing Rules (excluding
the Group) for use in new aircraft manufacture and the
sale of parts into the aftermarket for maintenance, repair
and overhaul for a term from the effective date of the Sale
Framework Agreement to 31 December 2019. The price lists
are determined based on a fair and reasonable basis based on
the published price list and discounts provided based on factors
including, but not limited to, volume levels. Further details
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 24
October 2017.

The continuing connected transaction of the Company is
included in the disclosure of related party transactions in note
42 to the financial statements.
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The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the
above continuing connected transaction pursuant to Rule
14A.55 of the Listing Rules, and had confirmed that the
continuing connected transaction had been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(3) according to the terms of the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole.

The total amounts of the sale income disclosed above during
the year under review have not exceeded the annual cap
amounts of US$24 million (equivalent to approximately HK$186
million).

Ernst & Young, the Company’s external auditors, were engaged
to report on the Group’s continuing connected transaction
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information,
and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their unqualified
letter containing the findings and conclusions in respect of the
non-exempt continuing connected transaction disclosed above
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.
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Save as disclosed above, there Is no related party transaction
or continuing related party transaction set out in note 42
to the financial statements that falls into the category of
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction that
needs to be disclosed under the Listing Rules. The Directors
confirmed that the Company had complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, the following Director had interests in the
following businesses conducted through the company named
below which are considered to compete or be likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group, as defined in the Listing Rules:

Name of Director

Expgs

Name of company

ACEE BEMtE

Nature of interest

B Lt ¢ FE SN - R EL A B DI R0 B FS IR B
2NEMNER TR ZAFEBBR T IZEN L
MARABETETEENEERSIFEBER
Z - ERZWRARACDET ETRAE14AE
ZIRETIABE -

EERBFURB L2ER

FA- - TIEFBERBTARAFE T EBH
Bm MZEFBRELTHRNTEWSE AH
AEENEKERF A BEEELIHEES
%

Nature of competing business

BEEBME

Chow Wai Kam

FE%

CK Asset Holdings Limited

RIEXEEERAF MITER

The Board is of the view that the Group is capable of carrying
on its business independently of, and at arms length from the
Excluded Businesses. When making decisions on the businesses
of the Excluded Businesses of the Group, Mr. Chow, in the
performance of his duties as Director, has acted and will
continue to act in the best interest of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the
year 2019.

Executive director -

Property development
and investment
("Excluded Businesses”)
MEZERIRE
([#BREB])

EXERRAEEBRNBILLRERE BT
SREEREEG -EAKERERREHE
TRRER AALEGERTEESRER &
Wi EBRENRNEE Z ZEMRITE-

FERX
RADFREROFRT T IOBEEX (FH
RIBBDRGHDREER IR -F—A
FREER-



SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company'’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements of the Company and the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2019 have been audited by Ernst
& Young who shall retire and will not be re-appointed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. The Board has resolved
to appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) as the new
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

Lai Weixuan
Chairman

Hong Kong
13 March 2020
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e

Ernst & Young BB RSB Tel E&E: +852 2846 9888
EY 22/F, CITIC Tower BEEPRREE R Fax 8 H: +852 2868 4432
ﬁ?i 1 Tim Mei Avenue pEKRE2218 ey.com

Central, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of AVIC International Holding (HK)
Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of AVIC
International Holding (HK) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 82 to 260, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

FHAVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter

REETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RMWETNMEE@ARETEER

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

BEREEEER B E

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had goodwill
and intangible assets amounting to HK$400 million
and HK$1,766 million, respectively, which are related
to the
business in the United States of America”

“general aviation aircraft piston engine
and the
“general aviation aircraft piston engine business in
Germany” cash-generating units (“CGUs").

Management engaged an independent professional
valuer to determine the valuation models for the
impairment assessment.

The determination of the recoverable amounts,
being the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value-in-use, requires significant management
judgement and estimates of variables such as
expected growth in revenue, gross margins and

discount rates.

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 17 and 18
to the consolidated financial statements.

RZE-AF+-A=+—H SEE£EENRENER
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EraukoesE BAFERELEXRAREREERE
MNREE AEEEBELERHB R ES M 0EH
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HERBINGEEMBHRERME17R18 -

We assessed the competence and objectivity of
the independent professional valuer engaged by
management.

We reviewed management’s assessment of the
recoverable amounts. Our audit procedures included
examining and recalculating management’s
discounted cash flow projections for the
determination of value-in-use and assessing key
assumptions by comparison to the historical
performance of the CGUs. We also performed
sensitivity analyses on the assumptions used in the
cash flow projections. Further, we involved our
internal valuation specialists to assist us with our
assessment of the methodology and the discount
rates used to determine the recoverable amounts of

the CGUs.

We also assessed the related disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HRESTSR BN ETNAEEBRRESSE

Impairment provision in a joint venture

P& &2 7] 49 )6 16 7 1

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had an interest | We evaluated the application of the valuation

in a joint venture amounting to nil. As the joint

venture sustained losses, management performed
an impairment assessment on the assets of that
joint venture. The determination of the recoverable
amounts of the assets of that joint venture is

dependent on a range of estimates and assumptions.

Relevant disclosures are included in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

T-hF+T_A=+—H' EBEXEEREERQF
ZT& iIRE-ARGERARKERR EEEHZAE
ARAMEBEEETREN G BETXAERAREENT

Wm S BIBURN Z @&t R R& -

HERBEINGEE M BERERME9 -

methodology for estimating the recoverable amounts
of the assets of that joint venture and key valuation
parameters.

We involved our internal valuation specialists to assist
us to assess the bases and assumptions adopted in
the valuation.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B M #Z H T3k &

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this

report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B #Z H TR &

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B M #Z H T3k &

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Lai Ho Yin.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
13 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS &R & B &

Year ended 31 December 2019 EHEZE-—ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
Notes HKS'000 HK$000
ok FET FET
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BRECEEYR
Revenue W= 5 1,458,003 1,341,223
Cost of sales HEMR (1,081,480) (1,070,262)
Gross profit EHM 376,523 270,961
Other income and gains H AW A R E 5 49,837 51,355
Selling and distribution expenses HEREHER (90,768) (83,367)
Administrative expenses TREEREH (374,095) (351,248)
Finance costs B HE 7 (10,850) (18,854)
Share of profits and losses of: DR REE:
Joint ventures EE LT (38,361) (2,941)
Associates kN (328) 471
Other operating expense Hit@ &R 6 (302) =
Reversal of impairment losses HREEZREBE
on financial assets, net o 6 4,511 2,519
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate WRALEHE DA ZFE 20 - 3,561
Loss on disposal of an associate HEBE B2 EE 20 - (909)
Fair value loss on financial assets BEATERABRELZ
at fair value through profit or loss MBREEZATEERE - (30,573)
LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING REBELSEEB2
OPERATIONS MBI R 6 (83,833) (159,025)
Income tax credit mEhEe 10 29,817 31,893
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING REFBESELE
OPERATIONS rEFA (54,016) (127,132)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION CRIEREEK
Profit for the year from REBREEEEY
a discontinued operation ZARE G F 11 - 507,569
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR XEHRR (BB) (54,016) 380,437
Attributable to: TH AL
Owners of the parent BREfEE (54,016) 398,968
Non-controlling interests R = (18,531)
(54,016) 380,437
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE BAREREEREEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EhESRER (FE)
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 13
Basic and diluted BERKEE
~ For profit/(loss) for the year —-REREH,/ (BBE) (HK0.58 cent) HK4.47 cents

(0.587 i) 4.477%4
— For loss from continuing operations —RERBELEEB I EE (HK0.58 cent) (HK1.43 cents)
(0.58381L ) (1.437%40)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME #r & & H W 25 &

Year ended 31 December 2019 EHEZE-ZT—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
o X e
Notes HKS'000 HK$'000
ik FET FAET
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR KERF,/ (BR) (54,016) 380,437
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hih 2 H k&
Other comprehensive income that may be REBBEAEERHEE
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent BRcHEM2EKE:
periods:
Exchange differences: BN ERE:
Exchange differences on translation of REBIEBESE
foreign operations ZEREE (3,090) (117,307)
Reclassification adjustment for a foreign AEHEZBINET
operation disposed of during the year ZEMNERE 39 - 114,803
Reclassification adjustment for a foreign REFHBINER
operation deregistered during the year ZENAERE 39 (1,721) =
NET OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME THAT REZBETHEHIEZE
MAY BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFITORLOSS #EHzHtM2EWEFE
IN SUBSEQUENT PERIODS (4,811) (2,504)
Other comprehensive income that will not be  REZHRTEEHIEE
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent Bz B2 E i
periods:
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined EEBMNAERE
benefit plans B/ (EE) 33 (5,247) 1,333
Income tax effect et 2 620 (338)
(4,627) 995
Equity investments designated at fair value BRATESARLMEE
through other comprehensive income: Was  REIRE
Changes in fair value NTEEEH (19,601) (137,499)
Gain on property revaluation MEE R 2B 15 130,615 -
NET OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME THAT RE#AHBFEEH I EE
WILL NOT BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFITOR ~ B#zHt2 E W FHE
LOSS IN SUBSEQUENT PERIODS 106,387 (136,504)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME REHMEEKE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (MRBiER) 101,576 (139,008)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AERHBEAE
FOR THE YEAR 47,560 241,429
Attributable to: THALERG:
Owners of the parent HREIMEE 47,560 279,595
Non-controlling interests RS = (38,166)
47,560 241,429

y -

83



84

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMZETEEREZER (F8)BRAH
Annual Report 2019 —Z — hEF 7R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 4R &

31 December 2019 —ZT—AF+=-A=+—H

BRI

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
st FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME BEMRE 14 410,880 335,243
Investment property REME 15 151,500 =
Right-of-use assets FREEE 6 317,688 =
Goodwill BE 17 399,821 400,094
Other intangible assets HwEFEE 18 1,765,634 1,781,157
Investments in joint ventures BENBIZEKE 19 - 39,174
Investment in an associate BENT 2K 20 11,781 12,446
Equity investments designated at fair value BRATEAREMEE
through other comprehensive income Wk 2 REIZE 21 34,430 54,031
Financial assets at fair value through profitor & AFEFABEZ
loss BREE 26 1,938 =
Total non-current assets IRBDEERE 3,093,672 2,622,145
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories 53 22 490,265 473,753
Trade receivables EE F &R 23 103,672 102,711
Due from fellow subsidiaries [ GEE NG 24 20,011 29,566
Due from an associate NG 20 1,093 575
Loans to an associate A2 A RIRENER 20 8,889 9,143
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables ~ TBFUB & REf
JE Uk B 3K 25 39,963 84,795
Financial assets at fair value through profit or A FEF ABZEZ
loss MBEE 26 - =
Cash and cash equivalents BekBReEE 27 990,386 1,191,575
Total current assets MBEERE 1,654,279 1,892,118
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION & & Bt B iR R &

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-A=+—8H

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Jiokz3 FET FET
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Due to intermediate holding companies JER R REZERA A 28 27,846 28,815
Trade payables FEFTE SRR 29 85,219 90,152
Other payables and accruals HibENRFKEFTER 30 94,030 114,727
Provisions and other liabilities BEREMEE 31 42,633 49,445
Tax payable eI 46,560 137,389
Interest-bearing bank borrowings HERITEE 32 225,161 120,218
Lease liabilities HE&E 32 5,906 =
Total current liabilities MEEELE 527,355 540,746
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 1,126,924 1,351,372
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES ZE#ABERGEHEE 4,220,596 3,973,517
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Other payables and accruals HiER R ET &R 30 31,109 29,520
Provisions and other liabilities BREREMLER 31 35,526 47,539
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FERITEE 32 - 1,031
Lease liabilities HEaE 32 314,704 =
Defined benefit obligations TERMEMT 33 15,756 6,905
Deferred tax liabilities EREBEEE 34 249,807 269,354
Total non-current liabilities FREBEERE 646,902 354,349
Net assets EE%E 3,573,694 3,619,168
EQUITY B
Issued capital BETRA 35 930,337 930,337
Reserves fE 37 2,643,357 2,688,831
Total equity EmEE 3,573,694 3,619,168

Lai Weixuan
BEE
Director

EF

Fu Fangxing

BrRE

Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY &R &= B Bk

Year ended 31 December 2019 EHEZE-—ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

Share
Issued premium
capital account
BEITRA & 17 )4 (B AR
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
At 1 January 2018 RZE—-—N\F—A—H 551,959 609,080
Profit for the year R i F = =
Other comprehensive income for the year: AFEEMEERE
Exchange differences related to N EBREACELZE
foreign operations - -
Actuarial gains on defined benefit plans, EREBMNABBENE
net of tax (MErTEE) = =
Changes in fair value of equity investments BAFEFAEMEZE
designated at fair value through other Wz RARE 2 AT EE
comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year AE2HMEEE - -
Issue of shares (note 35) BT (HraE35) 378,378 1,248,649
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHRB AR - -
At 31 December 2018 R-_E-N\F+-A=+—H 930,337 1,857,729*
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY Z&R &= B B 5k

Year ended 31 December 2019 EHEZE-ZT—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAMBEREER

Fair value
reserve of
equity
investments
designated
at fair value
through other Exchange Non-
comprehensive Reserve fluctuation Retained controlling Total
income fund reserve profits Total interests equity
BRAFEFA
Hth2EaE
ZBRAREZ N
NFERE EEe f## BEar CH R R EngE
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000
FHET FET FET FET FHET FET FHET
(note 37)
(H5t37)
(628,135) 23,655 (48,819) 1,204,806 1,712,546 521,063 2,233,609
- - - 398,968 398,968 (18,531) 380,437
- - 17,131 - 17,131 (19,635) (2,504)
= = = 995 995 5 995
(137,499) = = = (137,499) = (137,499)
(137,499) = 17,131 399,963 279,595 (38,166) 241,429
- - - - 1,627,027 - 1,627,027
= (15,865) = 15,865 = (482,897) (482,897)
(765,634)* 7,790* (31,688)* 1,620,634* 3,619,168 = 3,619,168
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY &R &= B Bk

Year ended 31 December 2019 EHEZE-—ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

Share
Issued premium
capital account

ERITRAE IR 13 72 B fR

HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET
At 1 January 2019 RZF-NE—H—H 930,337 1,857,729
Loss for the year AEEE = =
Other comprehensive income for the year: AFEEMEERE
Exchange differences related to NI EBREACELZE
foreign operations = -
Actuarial losses on defined benefit plans, EEENFEREER
net of tax (MErTEE) = =
Changes in fair value of equity investments BAFEFAEMEZE
designated at fair value through other Wz RARE 2 AT EE
comprehensive income = =
Gain on property revaluation MEE LT = =
Total comprehensive income for the year AERERGEE = =
2018 special dividend (note 12) ZE-N\ERERRE (HF12) = =
Deregistration of a subsidiary THME AR - -
Transfer from retained profits BREENER = =
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+=-A=+—H 930,337 1,857,729*
e These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * ZERBEBRGEAEVBEMRRAXFPBOE
HK$2,643,357,000 (2018: HK$2,688,831,000) in the consolidated & #1#2,643,357,0008 L (=T — )\ :

statement of financial position. 2,688,831,000/% 7T ) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY &R &R B B R

Year ended 31 December 2019 EHEZE-ZT—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

Fair value
reserve of
equity
investments
designated
at fair value
Asset through other Exchange
revaluation comprehensive Reserve fluctuation Retained Total
reserve income fund reserve profits equity
ROFETTA
Hip2EK &
ZREREZ ERKED
EEEMREE AV ERE wES Rk BEEA EEREE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
(note 37)
(H5t37)
= (765,634) 7,790 (31,688) 1,620,634 3,619,168
= = = = (54,016) (54,016)
= = = (4,811) = (4,811)
> = = = (4,627) (4,627)
> (19,601) = = > (19,601)
130,615 = = = = 130,615
130,615 (19,601) = (4,811) (58,643) 47,560
> = = = (93,034) (93,034)
- - (2,604) - 2,604 -
= = 124 = (124) =
130,615* (785,235)* 5,310* (36,499)* 1,471,437* 3,573,694
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS#ZEHE&RER

Year ended 31 December 2019 EHEZE-—ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
“E-hE —E-N\%F
Notes HKS$'000 HK$'000
Jiofz3 FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& ZB HEERE
Loss before tax: BREE A8 -
From continuing operations RERBECEER (83,833) (159,025)
From a discontinued operation REBRIEEEES 11 = (58,396)
Adjustments for: HE
Finance costs B 10,850 67,965
Share of profits and losses of joint ventures DhEERA RS
and associates NEZ & R EE 38,689 2,470
Bank interest income RITH WA (13,832) (2,744)
Interest income on financial assets BATEGABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss BEEZFMEMWA 5 (78) (186)
Interest income on loans to an associate BNk
BRZFBHA 5 (541) (787)
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary B RRLZFE 5 (1,721) =
Gain on disposal of other intangible assets HEEMELEE FHE 5 (28,210) =
Gain on disposal of items of property, HENE BEMRE
plant and equipment EEZMAE 5 (1,217) (221)
Reversal of write-down of inventories to net ~ FEMEZ AR
realisable value FEEE 6 (14,338) (2,335)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME- -BEMREINE
equipment 6 64,934 58,789
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAREEIHE 6 8,219 =
Amortisation of other intangible assets EMBREE & 6 82,731 75,807
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of B E SRR ZRE
trade receivables, net (CRERR)FE 6 (2,178) 969
Recovery of an other receivable previously Yem %R E M2 Kot
written off JE W BR 3K 6 (252) =
Reversal of impairment of other H A e AR T2
receivables, net B EFE 6 (3,781) (3,488)
Impairment of a loan to a joint venture DX -UNSIE L3
ERZRE 6 1,700 -
Loss on dissolution of a joint venture BHAEERAZER 6 302 -
Fair value gains on investment properties REWE 2 A TFENE 15 = (1,744)
Gain on deemed disposal of associates BRALEHERAZFE 20 = (3,561)
Loss on disposal of an associate HEBLARZER 20 - 909
Fair value loss on financial assets BRATFEMABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss WHREEZATEBE - 30,573

57,444 4,995
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS iR R & RE R

Year ended 31 December 2019 # %=

—E-AFFTZA=t+—HIEFE

2019 2018
—B-hF —N&
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Jiokz3 FET FET
Increase in properties under development and EEFMELBIEHEZ
completed properties held for sale B EEm = (41,081)
Decrease in inventories FERL 6,628 106,882
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables W B SRR,/ () 2,510 (30,769)
Decrease in amounts due from fellow FE UG A 2B B 2 R FUB IR
subsidiaries 9,555 458
Increase in an amount due from an associate  FEUCH & 3 Bl IR A (517) -
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, HAFIE R REAM
deposits and other receivables YR TR A/ () 49,181 (32,633)
Decrease in trade payables BB SRR D (4,187) (35,490)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and HiENRRARESER
accruals #n/ (Rd) (17,370) 38,959
Decrease in provisions and other liabilities BREREDLEERD (17,691) (20,172)
Increase in defined benefit obligations EEERFEEEM 3,604 1,232
Cash generated from/(used in) operations BEELY/ (FRIZES 89,157 (7,619)
Interest paid BERFE (7,014) -
Overseas tax paid ERBINEIE (4,724) (16,147)
Net cash flows from/(used in) RETEHEE,/ (FR)
operating activities Zfﬁimgﬂigﬁ 77,419 (23,766)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZBHzRERE
Purchases of items of property, BAME BENZERE
plant and equipment 14 (171,608) (66,973)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME- Jﬁﬁ%ﬂ?&ﬁlﬁ B
property, plant and equipment kS8 4,339 7,746
Additions to other intangible assets fﬂﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ/éﬁ 18 (75,633) (54,862)
Proceeds from disposal of HEHMWELEEMGIE
other intangible assets 32,713 2,666
Receipt on maturity of a convertible bond AR E %‘*i‘lﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁlmlﬁ - 51,775
Acquisition of subsidiaries uﬂz,ﬂﬁ {DPE=PA 38 - (926,080)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBR 39 - 2,157,548
Repayment of an amount due from an associate f& i & It ’éﬁ%’& HE - 582
Bank interest received BUIRITH B 13,832 2,744
Interest received on financial assets BN FEHAEBRZ
at fair value through profit or loss MBEEZNE 78 186
Interest received on loans to an associate BlRBERRRENERZ
& 541 804
Disposal of an associate & B % NG| - 4,388
Purchase of an equity investment BARRTEFAHM
at fair value through other FEMNGEBRAKE
comprehensive income - (389)
Purchase of a financial asset BARRNFEFABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss BBEE (1,938) -
Increase in a loan to a joint venture A5 EDRIRENEFTIEMN (1,700) -
Overseas tax paid H/i@ﬁﬂlg (72,992) -
Net cash flows from/(used in) REEZHELE/ (FR)
investing activities ZHRERBFHE (272,368) 1,180,135
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS#ZEHE&RER

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-_ZT—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
“E-NEF —E-N\F
Note HKS'000 HK$000
Hrat FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES REZEH<HEHRE
New bank loans MIRITER 116,312 236,724
Repayment of bank loans BEBRITER (12,400) (167,400)
Decrease in amounts due to non-controlling ~ FEAFH B 2 8] 2 FE42 A%
shareholders of subsidiaries RRFIBR D = (4,896)
Repayment of loans from a non-controlling BEREMNBARZIFRK
shareholder of a subsidiary REME R = (50,740)
Repayment of loans from an intermediate BEREFHRERAANER
holding company - (486,285)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to e R R R AR A B 3R IE
intermediate holding companies #wm,/ Cad) 812 (7,484)
Decrease in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries JE{S R &M E 2 85 IBHE - (18,304)
Principal portion of lease payments ?ﬂfﬁ RZ AR (5,295) =
Interest paid BERFE (3,766) (67,851)
Dividend paid BERRE (93,034) =
Net cash flows from/(used in) BEERHEL/ (FH)
financing activities ZIREeREFH 2,629 (566,236)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) INCASHAND H&RBE&%E
CASH EQUIVALENTS i/ (HD) BE (192,320) 590,133
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F¥zH & MELEE 1,191,575 627,140
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net ~ [EXEEF L 55 (8,869) (25,698)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZBERALEHE
AT END OF YEAR 990,386 1,191,575
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERFESEEERZON
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances ReERRITHET 27 183,686 1,191,575
Non-pledged time deposits with original BEERINBALIE=EA
maturity of less than three months CEERTEHER
when acquired 27 806,700 -
990,386 1,191,575
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARAREEER
AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited is a limited AVIC International Holding (HK)
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The Limited R Bl Ze T ¥ B IER (FH)
registered office of the Company is located at Victoria ERARA—HREREAMKILIZE
Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM 10, RAT] e AR A 2 31l 9% E R & Victoria
Bermuda. Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street,
Hamilton, HM 10, Bermuda °
During the year, the Group was mainly involved in the FR - AEEFENETRAMEREE
general aviation aircraft piston engine business. SEEF B ME TS
In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding EERRARARELIERATATEM
company of the Company is Aviation Industry ETHEEBRRA] ZARIKFEA
Corporation of China, Ltd, which is incorporated in the RAEFME ([FE])FMKL -
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").
Information about subsidiaries EEMBATNER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as AAREEMBRRIZFRBELOT :
follows:
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/
registration registered Percentage of equity Principal
Name and business share capital attributable to the Company activities
EMEL, DRTEER
&% EMRE £ EMBRE AATEGERAEZAESL FEEE
Direct Indirect
HE i
Billirich Investment Limited* British Virgin US$1,000 100 - Investment holding
Islands/ 1,000 7T REER
Hong Kong
EBELHE/
B
Motto Investment Limited British Virgin US$68,200,000 100 - Investment holding
("Motto" )* Islands/ 68,200,000% 7T BEER
Hong Kong
EBELTHE/
&5
Continental Motors British Virgin US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Deutschland Limited? Islands/ (E REER
Hong Kong
EBELHE/
B
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31 December 2019 —ZT—AF+=-A=+—H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

1. 2AAREEESR (&)

FRWBARNESR (&
AARETEMBRARIZHBEOT :

follows: (continued) (#&)
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/
registration registered Percentage of equity Principal
Name and business share capital attributable to the Company activities
310 BRTLEER
8 BN F 3 HEfREA  AARELCRAEZASILE TEXK
Direct Indirect
HiE e 4
Continental Motors, Inc. United States of us$10 - 100 Design, development
("cMI1") America ("USA") 10% T and production of
ENRERE aircraft engines
(T%=E]) and spare parts and
provision of repair
and maintenance
services for aircraft
engines
et FEREERE
BRI NEMHIAR
REREEER
HERERS
Continental Aerospace Germany EUR25,000 - 100 Design, development
Technologies GmbH == 25,0008 7T and production of
(formerly known as aircraft engines and
Technify Motors GmbH) spare parts
Continental Aerospace Rt REREERE
Technologies GmbH HENH BN
( BT 78 A Technify
Motors GmbH )
CATIC General Aviation British Virgin Islands/ us$2 100 = Dormant
Holdings Limited* Hong Kong 2ETT gmex
RBRIES/
BB
Wahman Investment Limited*  British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 - Dormant
Hong Kong (E Emex
EBRAZHES/
BB
Kingspot Investment Limited*  British Virgin Islands/ HK$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong 17T REER
KBRS/

A
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

DNEREEER (&)

ERNBLARNESR (&)
ARREIEMBRARZHBMOT

follows: (continued) (#&)
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/
registration registered Percentage of equity Principal
Name and business share capital attributable to the Company activities
HEMRL, BRAEER
=p AR A AmBRA  AAEEGRAESZASE ETEXHB
Direct Indirect
HiE ) 4
Yipon Investment Limited* British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 - Dormant
Hong Kong (E gmex
REBELES/
N
CATIC Helicopter (H.K.) British Virgin Islands/ Us$2 100 - Investment holding
Limited* Hong Kong 2ETT BEER
REELES/
N
# None of the statutory financial statements of these J FiE LS B R RBEE M S HmKE I

subsidiaries was audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or
another member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

The above tables list the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

M KEBRITKEHBEEMBKE R

BEZ

ERINHESRA/HEARENAFE R
RRTEFENIEAKREEEFEEX
BONARFAMBRAR -EFAR K
BEMMEARNEMNILH  FSAR
BRITEK-
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2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for investment property, equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2019. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

2.1

mREXE
AHBREIDREESGAHAE ([F
AREAE]) B2 EEWHERELE
Al ([EEMBHREER]) (AP
2HEEYHHRE LR FBGHEL
(IEEEFTER]MNRE) BEEE
KAz &5 RAAREE R FHES RO
BRERR A BHRRRIFE LKA
AR HEREME BAFEFAR
fhzmias c BARE A RIZAFE
AFARBZMBEERIN (ARFER
B) APBHMRIAETZS BFAEE
BEHMEAAEREL 2 T8 (FR3E
ABHHA) -

FeEXE

HEMBRREBEARBLENERT
(G AEEDBE_F-NAF+=
A=+ —-BUEFEZHBERR-HBER
AINARFEERIMREF 2ER (8
REBLEER) EXAKER2ERER
BERAEEMB A ZEHEHRA R R A
EREFAEN LEMRKIIRE R FE
REBNOAZEDREHE (NESEARE
BRSNS R E AR ZERE B 2B
M) - BIMCRAN SR B A 1 Il -
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

(0) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

2.1

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-A=+—8H

mAEE (F)

REEE(E)
MARAEEXEEEEHIRE QT
MR ERSELEM DR KRS H - AR
SERNFHERTHAHRKRERAZ
BOIKSEZE—UIMHEBEERER &
SEaE

BRAHMEREFAAZ
B

(a)

z

o> OB
A Mo

1%
#

N

(b) EHMBANTHAMELZEN: &

e

ERE

(0 AKEZREENE

f 8 AR M R MRS IR R AR A
MR WERABERNRE] -G HE
RE-MBRAREEEAEEREE
HEEBEFAGRAMBHRRA L —
Bt ABEZZIEHEERLEERL-

e @ SR ERE S BAL AR
BaEkHEMEEY R SERIBO SR
BRAEBEGRRMAE RIFERE
moBAKEERERREZRHEEZ
FEREARRHEEMRAE #m-
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 21 RBEEE(E)
Basis of consolidation (continued) EEEE(E£)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s
share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.

i 2 B S B 0L IR BR | 3P it = TR 2 Il
REEF-HXZHEEAE AAKES
ERRENARNRREAR -HEA
Bl HRAEERELEZE BIRKE
EHIER - RS R H AR

HMAEBEREMBLR ZEGE Alg
BRIEERONZMBRARZEE (BERD
B)RAE: (MEASHERED ZRE
BR(iGt AR Rt REE5H  WHE
ROBRREZRFE: (NVERERE
BE 2 DA R (i) E A7 B e & A 3
FAABRZBRLEM  EAMRNEME
s ERZARBRERD TR
HARBERLEHEHREEXLREMR
RZHEREE BIFBEREFSBRERE
SR BFHEA -
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation
HKFRS 16 Leases
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment,
Curtailment or Settlement
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 3,
HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and
HKAS 23

Other than as explained below regarding the impact of
HKFRS 16, the adoption of the above new and revised
HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect on these
financial statements.

2.2

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-A=+—8H
B BEREEZES

AEEDRANFENM BRI ERR
MATHAT REETRBRBRSE E
Al

BEURE ALBHMEHIET
RENEORM  EHAM
o)

BEURE HE

ERIE 165

BAEGRTER AT BHEAEE

F19RMIEE]
BERESFERN REELFIRAE
F28RAER] A AIRIRAIER

B (BRMS FEHEER

HERE THEE 14
%ZB8%)
— B EE235

BB HHEE BRMBREER

Rl —ZFE—mF FH3IN FEUB
E-F—tF WEEAFE1R
By B ER

F U #E F12 RBEEE

HERIFE 235 IEET

BRTXAFl e BEBY B REEAF16
SRR B R LR REERT 2
BEMBRELENEAMBERRLEE
RUMBEE-
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2.2

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int
4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and
HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets
out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees
to account for all leases under a single on-balance
sheet model to recognise and measure right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, except for certain recognition
exemptions. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors continue
to classify leases as either operating or finance leases
using similar principles as in HKAS 17.

The Group adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective method with the date of initial application
of 1 January 2019. Under this method, the standard has
been applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect
of initial adoption recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits at 1 January 2019,
and the comparative information for 2018 was not
restated and continues to be reported under HKAS 17
and related interpretations.

2.2

B RERME RS ()

EEMBHRELENFIEDNRELS
AAEREVIREE BE (BEREMK
HBERBEZES) RERIRETL
HEZBRAHE BE(FH2EZE
g) —RERISRLLEHE-EFELE
B(EHREBERES) —BBE27RF
B HRBEZEEARXZHAE %%
AR FE 2R KEEEDN
REN W ERKABRARAEEERE—
BERBERAEAAR UEANGE
ERREENAERE HEETHERRM
BRSO BRMBHRE LR F 165 A
HAEAGERFEI7TRALBEANE
ARESA - HEABEREEREETE
SRFERFEI7TRBUNRAEHEEN 1R
RREHESRERE -

AEEFERAEETEWERATE
HBmELRE 165 R —T—NF
—A—BEXRER-REIWIE BB
BRERZER - Wik ERRAE RETF
EHEAREN _ZT-NF-—A—HE’F
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)
New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains a lease, if
the contract conveys a right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer
has both the right to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the identified asset and
the right to direct the use of the identified asset. The
Group elected to use the transition practical expedient
allowing the standard to be applied only to contracts
that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 at the date of initial application.
Contracts that were not identified as leases under HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 were not reassessed. Therefore,
the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16 has been
applied only to contracts entered into or changed on or
after 1 January 2019.

2.2

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-A=+—8H
B BERREEZ2EE (£)

HECHER
REBEFEMBERELEANE 165 f—17
BHNABRBNKEMRELE —BREEA
EREENEEZESE  MZENE
—REEdBEE-RHEE -HEFAE
ESEREIREEZRABNEE
Mk BRIECHPEEZER B
ZHIED TRE - ARBEEERAER
U ERBETE RAZERNEER
REMRBXERBHERATES
EUE17TRRER (BRMEHRERE
Z88®) REZMESHNIREEZ
BH-RBEEBGTENBITREEE
(BRPBHREREREES) —REF4
FARBRNASEEZENTEERNTE -
Rt BEVBRELERNFE15RE T
HEETEEERAR _T-—NF—H—H
BRI HEBE 24
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 E©xBEREECEF (&)

DISCLOSURES (continued)

As a lessee - Leases previously classified as
operating leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land
and buildings and motor vehicles. As a lessee, the Group
previously classified leases as either finance leases or
operating leases based on the assessment of whether
the lease transferred substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group. Under HKFRS
16, the Group applies a single approach to recognise
and measure right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for all leases, except for two elective exemptions for
leases of low-value assets (elected on a lease by lease
basis) and leases with a lease term of 12 months or less
("short-term leases”) (elected by class of underlying
asset). Instead of recognising rental expenses under
operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease
term commencing from 1 January 2019, the Group
recognises depreciation (and impairment, if any) of
the right-of-use assets and interest accrued on the
outstanding lease liabilities (as finance costs).

Impacts on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were recognised based
on the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at 1
January 2019. The right-of-use assets were measured at
the amount of the lease liability, adjusted by the amount
of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
the lease recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position immediately before 1 January 2019.

ERFBA -2 BEREEHEEZ
HE

BB BHRERRF165 2 HEME
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BREPBRELEAE 165 NEBRA
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

As a lessee - Leases previously classified as
operating leases (continued)

Impacts on transition (continued)

All these assets were assessed for any impairment based
on HKAS 36 on that date. The Group elected to present
the right-of-use assets separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group has used the following elective practical
expedient when applying HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019:

o Applying the short-term lease exemptions to
leases with a lease term that ends within 12
months from the date of initial application.

Financial impact at 1 January 2019

The impact arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16 at 1
January 2019 was as follows:

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-A=+—8H

22 EFERERERz28 (£)

ERAFABA-RAI P EARKEHEZ
HE (&)

BEZE (F)

BEZEEERZARBE RS ELSE
3MAEABRE - AREEERZS
MBEAAREB2INEREEE-

RZE—NF—HA—BERBEUHR
EAEBIE 165 REBEHATAE
ENERERRE:

HHEEHN VR ER B 12
BEARNTEENHERRERHEE
ko

R-ZB-NF-A—-BZHE®

R—T—NF—A-BRABTEVHR
SENBIRELEZFENT :

Increase
2
HKS'000
FET
Assets BE
Increase in right-of-use assets FREEEEN 35,091
Increase in total assets B EBEEN 35,091
Liabilities =R
Increase in lease liabilities HEAGZEN 35,091
Increase in total liabilities BEAEFEEN 35,091
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 E©xBEREECEF (&)

Financial impact at 1 January 2019 (continued) REZB-NF-A-—BZUHBRE
(%)
The lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 reconciled to RZE-—NF-—A—BzHEAFEHER
the operating lease commitments as at 31 December —E-NFFT A=+ -BZEEHRE
2018 are as follows: AEZHERENT
HK$'000
FHET

Operating lease commitments as
at 31 December 2018
Less: Commitments relating to short-term leases
and those leases with a remaining lease
term ending on or before
31 December 2019

R=B-NFE+=-BA=+—H
IS HERE 69,022
B EEHREERFBEERR
—T-NAF+-_A=+—H
g2 HERNEE
B E (37)

Weighted average incremental borrowing rate as

R-FB-—NAF—HA—BZ

at 1 January 2019 RIS EE N R 4.6%
Discounted operating lease commitments as RZZE-NEFE—-—HA—BHK

at 1 January 2019 IREEHERE 35,091
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 R-ZE-hE—HA—HZHEARE 35,091
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business'

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform'

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of
HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28 (2011)

Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

Amendments to Definition of Material’

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

l Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

£ No mandatory effective date yet determined but available

for adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below.

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-A=+—8H
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide
additional guidance on the definition of a business.
The amendments clarify that for an integrated set of
activities and assets to be considered a business, it
must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to
create outputs. The amendments remove the assessment
of whether market participants are capable of acquiring
the business and continue to produce outputs. Instead,
the focus is on whether acquired inputs and acquired
substantive processes together significantly contribute to
the ability to create outputs. The amendments have also
narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on goods
or services provided to customers, investment income
or other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore,
the amendments provide guidance to assess whether
an acquired process is substantive and introduce an
optional fair value concentration test to permit a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2020. Since the amendments apply prospectively to
transactions or other events that occur on or after the
date of first application, the Group will not be affected
by these amendments on the date of transition.

23

MR RER 2 E BT R
HERA (&)

AV BRE LR BEIRMISTHER
B2 1E BB RIRMEINES| % F
ETHMBER M —RIEBREEEW
BhE—IEEL EEZLEENHEY
MEHEHNERELEERERNEAR
EEMHER - BAREELMENANE
BARER EBBAIUGEE - Z5E
ABRBRETMB2EERTAENES
EBURHBEEL ZENZFGE - HAR
HERHERTESHIEARESNER
MERRTHRYUEHENEFLERR
Bl-ZEBIHmINELNER S+ A
MEFRENER KRS - BERAR
BEEBHEMUA LI ZHERT
HEHMESNERSSAEETE MR
#1535 Wl AMERA A FEEF AR
INEEEFERESH—RIESHRE
ERT—HEB AEEEHFR_ZZ
TFE—A—BABZEETEBERN-
HRZEET—RELEREERNE X E
AR ZEBEEZRGEIEMENF B
HAREERBE A RERZZEETY
@,



2.3

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMETIEXERER (FEB)ERAT
Annual Report 2019 —ZF— L FEFR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B1 %8 3R & K{ st

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address
an inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS
10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require
a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective
date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a
new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments
are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. The amendments clarify that materiality
will depend on the nature or magnitude of information.
A misstatement of information is material if it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions made
by the primary users. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EAREFBERHIE

POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures BENTREEATAZRE

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long BEARNEASEHERE RAES
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the M— BN D R20%8 A% = HEI AT
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to HitMEATENZERB -EATET
exercise significant influence. Significant influence is the RAIBHEFIRE N R 2B R EETR
power to participate in the financial and operating policy SRTE - T IEFE sk R B 2 F UK o

decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby SRR R-EEERY: B BB
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement R RS T OERER
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint BENAZBEFE  LREHE TR
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of SRME THEE %‘J%Zéﬂ?? CHER
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about HEEENRE N B ZEHE 2SS
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of —HRABFFEL-

the parties sharing control.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the Group's share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The
Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures
is included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated other comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint
venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associates
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is
included as part of the Group’s investments in associates
or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues
to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the
associate or joint control over the joint venture, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment
at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the fair value
of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group's previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in
a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment property, equity
investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use
of unobservable inputs.

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-A=+—8H
EASTTHERE (&)

FEIHE
RERSHR  AEEZQFEFEHR
REMR BRAFEFAREMEZERE
Z B E RAE QAR A8 as 2 B 7%
BE-AVER/FERRAMBEL2EER
BFRZHPHEBEEMBEIABRAR
PRAS B9 V(B - A FERT E I RIRREK
HEERESHRRBENIHINEENXRA
BEBMEXR(ERETETHBERT)
RABRBHSETMIEL - TBHHZA
EBEMBSARAKEAEAZNS &
EXBENRFEDRBERDSZ2EE
REEXRETERGUKELHET
THEtE-

S

HUMBEEZATEAENERTHZ
HEERBEREEE RS REERR
FHELETHEREES RREMRR
ZHR—M5E2EE  MLHELLER
mLZBETT

AEEEREGRBRLE AR
HERMEAEAFE XEENBR
RABRRABBEREERDERATH
BRBAZE-

113



114

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMZE TEERER (F8)EBRAT
Annual Report 2019 =& — [ FEFR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 %8 3R R Hf 5T

31 December 2019 —ZT—AF+=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level T — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, contract assets, deferred tax
assets, financial assets and investment property), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)

(continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction

in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of

an item of property, plant and equipment comprises

its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of

bringing the asset to its working condition and location

for its intended use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are

as follows:

Buildings Over the shorter of lease
terms and 3% to 3'3%

Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms

Furniture and fixtures 20% - 33%

Machinery and equipment 4% — 50%

Motor vehicles 20% — 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing
costs on related borrowed funds during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Investment property

Investment property is interest in land and building
(including the leasehold property held as a right-of-
use asset (2018: leasehold property under an operating
lease) which would otherwise meet the definition of
an investment property) held to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such property is measured initially at
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment property is stated at fair value,
which reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.

24

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-A=+—8H

EXSTHEBE (&)

¥ BEMRERITE (F)

WE BEMREERR (BRNHER
ZEZWMHER)BERDE  HFEE
HEMRHETHEERREEN R
RILHER - W EXBEAMES ZEM[F
BREERNEER LEREFERAR
TR HSBER/NEEREEMSNK
HFREREECER-

EETREEENET REABER
WEBRIERENMETE KABRER
RMANEEERRARBBEEAES
MEBEREERKA - EERZTIETRIL
AERE BREFHDEEDNE BE
M & @R -

REW=R

REMEARRIESWA R, REXR
BEMJFEZ LM REF2#E (21
MEEREMEZESR HIFEREER
EZHEMER (- N\F:UKLLH
EREZHEYME) )  MIERFELEEX
HEEMAMBGLBETRRE HH
REEXRGETHEMBTE Z L RIE
TR - AEMENEREAN (BER
DA ) FTE - MR TERIL - REME
BRHRERRRRTR 2 A FEHR-

119



120

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMZE TEERER (F8)EBRAT
Annual Report 2019 =& — [ FEFR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 %8 3R R Hf 5T

31 December 2019 —ZT—AF+=-A=+—H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment property (continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of
profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment
and depreciation” for owned property and/or accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under “Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)" for
property held as a right-of-use asset up to the date of
change in use, and any difference at that date between
the carrying amount and the fair value of the property
is accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with the
policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” above.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Trademarks

Trademarks are stated at cost less any impairment losses
and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of 30 years.

Product technology, licence and completed programs

The product technology, licence and completed
programs are stated at cost less any impairment losses
and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of 10 to 30 years.

Customer relationships

Customer relationships are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line
basis over their useful lives of 15 years.

Other intangible assets are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line
basis over their useful lives of 1 to 5 years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as
incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Research and development costs (continued)

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete and
its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability
of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which
does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.
Development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis
over the commercial lives of the underlying products not
exceeding 10 to 30 years, commencing from the date
when the products are put into commercial production.

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time

in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets

representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)
(continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the
date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Where applicable,
the cost of a right-of-use asset also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset
or the site on which it is located. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:
Land and buildings 2 to 75 years
Motor vehicles 2 to 5 years
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)
(continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion
of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease
liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)
(continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)
() Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases of
machinery and equipment (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets to leases
of office equipment and laptop computers that
are considered to be of low value.

Leases (applicable before 1 January 2019)

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The finance costs of such leases are charged to the
statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable before 1 January 2019)
(continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. When the Group is
the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments
are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a
finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied
the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective
of the business model.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets,
or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with
the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held
within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

24

EXSTHEBE (&)

RENRAEMUBEE (£)

Wia R R it B ()

AEBERMBEEENEBENBEN
MERMBEENELRESRE K
BAEETRERERTREUBMANER
ERE HEMBEEIMETR R
BERADBRAEZWBEERE®
FEVBEENEBAGNRERENSE
BEARNRFE MEQAFESAEGS
mlES BN EZMBEEARE K
FAEARBKBRENRERERHEN
EBEAAFE - WIHFN LREBERX
NEFA M BEERATFEFABRR
DENFE-

MBEEZHMARREEARR S A
(AKEAFXEEEEER) R %
MEBE B R RE ™IS A f K E Bl
—REETCREARNEECHBEE

0o 25

IS =



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMETIEXERER (FEB)ERAT
Annual Report 2019 —ZF— L FEFR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B1 %8 3R & K{ st

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or
loss when the right of payment has been established, it
is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount
of the dividend can be measured reliably, except when
the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery
of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which
case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income are not subject to
impairment assessment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows: (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Dividends on equity investments classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are also recognised as other income in the statement
of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if
the economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to the host; a separate instrument with the
same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the
definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change
in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies
the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a
reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows: (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract
containing a financial asset host is not accounted for
separately. The financial asset host together with the
embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group's consolidated statement of financial position)

when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive

cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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2.4

hNE+-A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs"”) for all debt instruments not held at
fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit
risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 %8 3R R Hf 5T

31 December 2019 —ZT—AF+=-A=+—H
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component or when the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does
not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or
as loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include amounts due to
intermediate holding companies, trade payables, other
payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank borrowings
and lease liabilities.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities at
amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, and
assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted
as to use.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the
sale of certain products for general repairs of defects
occurring during the warranty period. Provisions
for these assurance-type warranties granted by the
Group are recognised based on sales volume and past
experience of the level of repairs and returns, discounted
to their present values as appropriate.

Product claim provision is made when there are
present expected claims which challenge the safety
of the products. The Group has general liability and
other insurance policies to cover product claims. Initial
recognition is based on historical experience. The initial
estimate of product claim costs is revised annually based
on current year's development of present expected
claims.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EAEHHEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, an
associate and joint ventures, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
an associate and joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated
to which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer.
The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the
Group a significant financial benefit for more than one
year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or
less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-A=+—8H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(a)

Sale of aircraft engines and spare parts

Revenue from the sale of aircraft engines and
spare parts is recognised at the point in time
when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the aircraft
engines and spare parts.

Provision of repair and maintenance services for
aircraft engines

Revenue from the provision of repair and
maintenance services for aircraft engines is
recognised over time in the accounting period in
which the services are rendered.

Sale of properties

Revenue from the sale of properties is recognised
at a point in time, when the purchasers obtain
the physical procession or the legal title of the
completed property and the Group has present
right to payment and the collection of the
consideration is probable.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using

the effective interest method by applying the rate that

exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over

the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter

period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of

the financial asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Other income (continued)

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange
for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the
Group performs by transferring goods or services to a
customer before the customer pays consideration or
before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for
the earned consideration that is conditional. Contract
assets are subject to impairment assessment, details
of which are included in the accounting policies for
impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related goods
or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e.,
transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)
Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories,
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets,
costs incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are
capitalised as an asset if all of the following criteria are
met:

(a) The costs relate directly to a contract or to
an anticipated contract that the entity can
specifically identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of
the entity that will be used in satisfying (or in
continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in
the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged
to the statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis
that is consistent with the pattern of the revenue to
which the asset related is recognised. Other contract
costs are expensed as incurred.

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is recognised for the obligation to
refund some or all of the consideration received (or
receivable) from a customer and is measured at the
amount the Group ultimately expects it will have to
return to the customer. The Group updates its estimates
of refund liabilities (and the corresponding change in the
transaction price) at the end of each reporting period.
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2.4

hNE+-A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments ("equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to
be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if
the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of
the award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised
for any modification that increases the total fair value of
the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

The dilutive effect of outstanding options, if any, is
reflected as additional share dilution in the computation
of earnings per share.

The cost of cash-settled transactions is measured initially
at fair value at the grant date taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the instruments were
granted. The fair value is expensed over the period until
the vesting date with recognition of a corresponding
liability. the cumulative expense recognised for cash-
settled transactions at the end of teach reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate
of the number of awards that will ultimately vest. The
liability is measured at the end of each reporting period
up to and including the settlement date, with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme"”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF scheme.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)
Other employee benefits (continued)
Pension schemes (continued)

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

A subsidiary of the Group sponsors a defined benefit
pension plan as well as a retiree medical and life
insurance plan. Its defined benefit pension plan requires
contributions to be made to a third party trustee
managed fund. The cost of providing benefits under the
defined benefit plan is determined actuarially. Actuarial
gains and losses for the defined benefit plan are
recognised in other comprehensive income and are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

The defined benefit asset or liability comprises the
present value of the defined benefit obligation, less past
service costs and less the fair value of plan assets out of
which the obligations are to be settled.

The Group's accounting policy for defined benefit plans
is to recognise actuarial gains and losses in the period in
which they occur in full in other comprehensive income
in accordance with HKAS 19 Employee Benefits.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when
they are proposed and declared.

24

EXSTHEBE (&)

BE KA

W 2EXEECEREE (AIRE
ERETAERERENHEZEE)
ZEERGFEBOIEERABREAMERZ
FEEZHBORA - AREERAEER
EARBAE#EE g sk i B i M B BT
BR-HEREEERFEEREEZX
HATE R AERE TR 2 R BB AR
BRABEARNZEERAT R -EE
S ER AR EERE X H - BERA
BRERERESEEZNB REMMK
o

BRE

oG AT AR B R A 14
RARME RBRBR AR BREN
R -

AR A A B 4R AR B AR KA I A4 RV T
EEHNEIRTHBE  FTARK S H
BERARE IR Bt P HBRERZ
HERNITERENSEIARAE-



2.4

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMETIEXERER (FEB)ERAT
Annual Report 2019 —ZF— L FEFR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B1 %8 3R & K{ st

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-A=+—8H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EAEHHEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transaction.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of
the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).
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2.4

hNE+-A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or
receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries,
joint venture and associates are currencies other than
the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is

recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of the overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts
assets and liabilities, and

of revenues, expenses,

their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 3. EEgMEE (&)
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued) EET N TRERE (&)
Impairment of goodwill AR E

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2019
was HK$399,821,000 (2018: HK$400,094,000). Further
details are given in note 17 to the financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade receivables. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic
products) are expected to deteriorate over the next year
which can lead to an increased number of defaults in
the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are
adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.
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HETHEREBE M EAEER
AEBAEGMABREEABE TMEED
JEHAKRRSRE  NAZELS BN
BE LHAEZEHRSRENTFE-R
—E-AFF+_AZ+—HHBEEER
{8 4399,821,0008 7L (=& —/)\4F:
400,094,000/ 7T ) < # — FFFBEE N
TEHREMIFE17 ©
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables (continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of a customer’s actual default
in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group's trade receivables is disclosed in note 23 to the
financial statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax
assets relating to recognised tax losses at 31 December
2019 was HK$114,785,000 (2018: HK$111,882,000).
Further details are included in note 34 to the financial
statements.

3.

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-A=+—8H
BEEGHAEE (&)

G T RERR (42)
FEWE 5 IR AR S B AR (4T)

HABRELEOER BANEERR
MEHEEEREZHBAERNFEBEX
M - BHEEERNEEHIRIRE
MIBREERRNBSTE - AEE W
BEE BB IR 5 M SR O A TR
BARBARKEFHRKREREN - B
MAKBERUKEZEFNEREEBR
BB R BRI B S R MY RE23

EREEB B E E IR 0] geHUS FER
MaEMAHBABE 2R KBAZRES
BzHm BEBEEEXNHLE  RiE
R TR SRR i I AT B 2 B R ORI R
KT IREIERS  ABTE AR ZIE
EHRBEEESE - R_ZT—NLE+_-A
=+t—H EERANEEBEEETCHIE
BEZEREMEAR114,785,0008 T (=
Z— N\4:111,882,0008 L) - iE—#
IR B B w34 -
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31 December 2019 —ZT—AF+=-A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 3. ERgEMET (&)
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued) EET N TRERE (&)
Impairment of non-financial assets (other than HUBEE (BEEI) ZHE

goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including right-
of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period. They
are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or
a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data from
binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value
in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset
or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.

AEBEREHRERRTE2 I
EE (RREREEE) RS FEEM
BETS WK HREREER] DA
Wmz FREETRERNR - EEEN
ReELETZRRERRAEAKES
B(HEAFERHEEXRAREGRAEE
hz&SE )R BIHBERE 2 FER
HERATDREBERBEEENARFET
MZXGHTARBEEZRORNZIHER
SRR EGHEE  RKATBEMERG
EEECEERAFE -EAHEERE
BN EEELABFKEEELRS
ELETZBHRRKRRAERE WEE
BEZTREUFEZEREREZR
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment property

In the absence of current prices in an active market for

similar properties, the Group considers information from

a variety of sources, including:

(a)

current prices in an active market for properties of
a different nature, condition or location, adjusted
to reflect those differences;

recent prices of similar properties on less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the dates of the
transactions that occurred at those prices; and
discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the
terms of any existing lease and other contracts
and (when possible) by external evidence such as
current market rents for similar properties in the
same location and condition, and using discount
rates that reflect current market assessments of
the uncertainty in the amount and timing of the
cash flows.

The carrying amount of investment property at 31
December 2019 was HK$151,500,000 (2018: Nil).
Further details, including the key assumptions used for

fair value measurement, are given in note 15 to the

financial statements.

3.

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-A=+—8H
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31 December 2019 —ZT—AF+=-A=+—H

4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services. The
Group has only one reportable operating segment, the
general aviation aircraft piston engine business, which
is engaged in the design, development and production
of general aviation aircraft piston engines and spare
parts as well as the provision of aftermarket services and
support for piston engines.

Management monitors the results of the Group's
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment loss, which
is a measure of adjusted loss for the year from
continuing operations. The adjusted loss for the year
from continuing operations is measured consistently
with the Group’s loss for the year from continuing
operations except that certain income and gains, certain
net reversal of impairment losses on financial assets,
gains or losses relating to investments in a joint venture
and associates and financial instruments, as well as
head office and corporate expenses and unallocated
finance costs and income tax are excluded from such
measurement.

4.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

4.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue

and results from continuing operations by reportable

operating segment for the year ended 31 December.

31 December 2019 =& —

REsBER (&)

NE+=ZA=+—H

MTRBET_A=1+—HLFE
®RE %ii%“%%i“%ZH&ﬁﬁ&%Zﬂ

EMIBEDH

General aviation aircraft

BYEH 2 D47

__ piston engine business Total
BRAMEREIERBRELR G
2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-NF ZT-N\E —E-NE —T-N\E
HKS000 — HKSO00  HKS000  HKS'000
FET FET FAET FET
Segment revenue (note 5): AR (Hi5)

Sales to external customers IMIEFHEE 1,458,003 1,341,223 1,458,003 1,341,223
Segment results DEEE (20,310) (84,773) (20,310) (84,773)
Reconciliation: A -

Unallocated other income and gains 7 % Bt £ Uk A B F 16,048 36,987
Corporate and other unallocated TEREMRDERE

expenses (32,586) (31,251)
Unallocated finance costs AP BRI BHEX - (15,461)
Share of profits and losses of: AR REE

A joint venture AT (38,253) (2,615)

Associates BERE (328) 471
Reversal of impairment losses on M BEE 2 AEEE

financial assets, net BEEE 2,333 3,488
Gain on deemed disposal of an WRANERERA

associate Z 7 3,561
Loss on disposal of an associate HEBENF 2B (909)
Fair value loss on financial assets at A FEzFABHEZ

fair value through profit or loss YBEEZNTEER = (30,573)
Unallocated income tax credit/ AOBAEH

(expense) %,/ (HXx) 19,080 (6,057)
Loss for the year from continuing ~ REFBLEEH

operations KEBA (54,016) (127,132)
Other segment information: HitpHER:

Depreciation of property, plantand 1% HEMRH 2N E

equipment . 64,201 57,962 64,201 57,962

Unallocated depreciation AOEME 733 827

64,934 58,789
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ FEEEEZITE 8,219 - 8,219 2
Amortisation of other intangible HhEREE CEH

assets 82,731 75,807 82,731 75,807
Capital expenditure* BARX* 247,241 121,761 247,241 121,761
Unallocated capital expenditure APBREARE - 74

247,241 121,835
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant s BERRAXBEREYE  BWEMEER

and equipment and other intangible assets.

Htp I\ EE -

y -
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31 December 2019 —ZT—AF+=-A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. RESHER (&)
(continued)
Geographical information & &R
(a)  Revenue from external customers (@) KRENBEF Yz
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
USA EH 1,152,924 1,065,749
Europe M 180,110 154,163
Others HAh 124,969 121,311
1,458,003 1,341,223
The revenue information of continuing operations FBEREEB 2 MR ERTY

above is based on the location of the customers.

BEBEREF ZHEWE D -

(b)  Non-current assets b)) FREEE
2019 2018
—EF-NF —T-N\F
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
USA =& 2,322,651 1,901,485
Europe B 571,184 593,877
Hong Kong BB 151,557 21,673
Mainland China A A 11,912 51,079
3,057,304 2,568,114

The non-current asset information above is based

on the locations of the assets and excludes

financial assets.

FRERBDEEERTDREE
ZHERE S T BEMBE
o
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from each of the major customers, which
individually amounted to 10% or more of the Group's
revenue from continuing operations, is set out below:

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-A=+—8H
rESITER ()

EFREFZEH

RESEFEREPZKREHINGOT  BF
BEAEEREFELEER 2 NE
10%3k A -

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

HKS'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Customer A BPA 471,698 402,855

Customer B ®FB 234,336 220,334

Customer C BFEC 185,487 159,254
REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS Was - H AW A K FE

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains from
continuing operations is as follows:

KEFSBELEEB WS BB AR
MBI :

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue from contracts with REEEEHZ
customers Wz
Sale of aircraft engines and spare E R E R 2 R
parts transferred at a point in time RN EGZHE 1,333,901 1,234,677
Rendering of services transferred BERF % 2 RS 2 1R it
over time 124,102 106,546
1,458,003 My,34.1,,2.2:3
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31 December 2019 —ZT—AF+=-A=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. W& -HakARFE (£)
(continued)
Disaggregated revenue information Wz &R D
Geographical markets B T 5
2019 2018
—B-NF —ZE-N\F
HKS'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
USA EH 1,152,924 1,065,749
Europe B M 180,110 154,163
Others Hi 124,969 121,311
1,458,003 1,341,223
The following table shows the amount of revenue TRETRA®E AE#ERI 25T AR
recognised in the current reporting period that were EHUzaNaEzRESE (BR

included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of BETEMEEN CBHNEL)

the reporting period and recognised from performance
obligations satisfied in previous periods:

2019
—E-hE
HKS'000
F#T

2018
—E—N\F
HK$'000
FET

Revenue recognised that was included 2t AMREET 24 4
in contract liabilities at the beginning ~ BEZ DR WS :
of the reporting period:
Provision of repair and maintenance REREEBHAEE
services for aircraft engines RER® 7,905
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31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-A=+—8H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. W& -HakARFE (£)
(continued)
Performance obligations BHEE
Information about the Group’s performance obligations AEBEBHETERBAAT :
is summarised below:
Sale of aircraft engines and spare parts HEREZEBEREH
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of BHOEARZNERETHA BB
the products and payment is generally due within 30 BN HE30RAEH
days from delivery.
Provision of repair and maintenance services for PR TR R BB AENERE IR
aircraft engines
The performance obligation is satisfied over time as EAEERERERSREER BN
services are rendered and payment is generally due MEREETHKRT TP BRKIEI0ORA
within 30 days from completion of the services and E|Hy o
customer acceptance.
The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the R+ A=+—BoEEHTEHNET
remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or (REKSIHMREK) IXFHEREEHE
partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December are as follows: N
2019 2018
—E-hE —EB-N\F
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Amounts expected to be recognised TSR NS SR
as revenue:
Within one year —F R 7,919 7,905
After one year —F1& 31,109 29,520
39,028 37,425
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

(continued)

Performance obligations (continued)

BHREE (E)

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the

remaining performance obligations which are expected

to be recognised as revenue after one year relate to
repair and maintenance services for aircraft engines, of

which the performance obligations are to be satisfied

within five years. All the other amounts of transaction

prices allocated to the remaining performance

obligations are expected to be recognised as revenue

within one year. The amounts disclosed above do not

include variable consideration which is constrained.

BHBR — FRER
BEENRSEREBESIERAFRE
PR RIS E BB ERB IR - PR A E
MHEERTERORTNRZERESE
BHERN - FAERRRE - Dl E
TR TEEZRGIA

Wzt HAW A RFE (&)

INEESRTED

RE-

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ET-)N\F
HKS’'000 HK$°000
FET FHET
Other income H g A
Bank interest income IRITH B WA 13,832 2,253
Interest income on financial assets BAFEFABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss MBEEZMERA 78 186
Interest income on loans to an M NRIRENERZ
associate FEMA 541 787
Compensation fee HEsE - 9,680
Distributorship fee income B A 775 713
Foreign exchange differences, net HNEE 3, 2= BB VR RE - 33,151
Others H A 3,463 4,364
18,689 51,134
Gains FI5E
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary & $#561/&B A 8 2 F 8
(note 39) (K75t39) 1,721 -
Gain on disposal of other intangible HEHMELEE 2B
assets 28,210 -
Gain on disposal of items of property,  HEWE  BE MR HE
plant and equipment HEB 2 AE 1,217 221
49,837 51,355
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31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-A=+—8H

LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group's loss before tax from continuing operations

6. PFRFAIEIE

AEBRAFELEEBZHHAERE

is arrived at after charging/(crediting): Bk (5EA)
2019 2018
—E-hE ZT-N\F
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost of inventories sold* HETE M A 993,441 978,304
Cost of services provided* TR AR 5 2 B AR * 102,377 94,293

Reversal of write-down of inventories to net FEREZNER

realisable value* SFE 2 B (14,338) (2,335)
Research and development costs: T pA

Current period expenditure RHEF 38,208 45,090
Provisions and other liabilities: BREREMEE:

Additional provision, net (note 31) BINEABFE (B7231) 24,971 30,402
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1% - BE & #E 2

(note 14) WE (Mit14) 64,934 58,789
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERREEZINE

(note 16(a)) (HiiF16(a) 8,219 -
Amortisation of other intangible assets HihEREE 2 # i

(note 18) (Htit18) 82,731 75,807
Minimum lease payments under REHE RERS

operating leases = 6,138
Lease payments not included in the T AHEBEHEDN

measurement of lease liabilities MERK (HF16(c))

(note 16(c)) 1,735 -
Employee benefit expense (excluding directors’ 1{& & @F| & f (N8 M T8

remuneration as disclosed RENEEMS) .

in note 8):

Wages and salaries IERE® 293,581 252,989

Pension scheme contributions** RIKEFHEI K> 15,138 13,980

Defined benefit schemes (note 33) TERBMEE (fi233) 6,604 3,806

315,323 270,775
Other operating expense: Hipic e &M :

Loss on dissolution of a joint venture BHAERRZEBR 302 =
Auditor's remuneration ZEE Y & 3,000 4,164
Foreign exchange differences, net ONEE N, #h 2 HHR 16,437 (33,151)
Reversal of impairment losses on BB EERBEBEREFE:

financial assets, net:

Impairment/(reversal of impairment) EWE 5 RN RE

of trade receivables, net (note 23) CREER)FE (H223) (2,178) 969

Recovery of an other receivable previously WEl LRI E M 2 H b

written off W AR K (252) -
Reversal of impairment of other receivables, H b M BR 3R 2 R B B [
net (note 25) ERE (Hi225) (3,781) (3,488)
Impairment of a loan to a joint AeERRRENERZRE
venture (note 19) (B1:#19) 1,700
(4,511) (2,519)
* Included in “cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of E BIEEREBEERP [HEXK] A -
profit or loss.
e At 31 December 2019, the Group had no forfeited i R-ZE-_NF+-_A=+—H ' Kx&H
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the I £ 4E fa] B 58 Yo 4 5% BT A VB R 4 oK 2R
pension scheme in future years (2018: Nil). Egﬁ??ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ HH(ZT—N\F
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31 December 2019 —ZT—AF+=-A=+—H

7.

FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations

is as follows:

7. HBRAX

T

REFBERLEEB U BRI DM

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Interest on interest-bearing bank STERITEEZAE
borrowings 3,766 17,755
Increase in discounted amounts of PEERT AL BE R EAM
provision and other liabilities arising BENTRESE L
from the passage of time (note 31) o (Haz31) 70 114
Interest on lease liabilities (note 16(b)) TMHEBEBEZFIE
(Htat16(b)) 7,014 -
Others Hh - 985
10,850 18,854




NOTES TO FINANCIAL

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8.
REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock
Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b),

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMETIEXERER (FEB)ERAT
Annual Report 2019 —Z — h FF 7R

STATEMENTS B/ 7 R 3% Ffi 5%

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-A=+—8H

EERTRASZHE

BEAEAMAERIMARAR (B
@R EMAB(TETRAL B
BN A & 28383(1)(a) ~ (b) * () & (D
RAR (BBEEENZER) AOIFE2E

(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance WEIFNEEWSOT
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Fees e 1,120 1,120
Other emoluments: HA 2 -
Salaries, allowances and o EMREMH =
benefits in kind - -
Pension scheme contributions RIKEET MK = -
1,120 1,120

(a) Independent Non-executive Directors

The fees paid to Independent Non-executive

(@ BIAFHITES
REAXNTBEILIERATEEZ

Directors during the year were as follows: wmemT:
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Chu Yu Lin, David R 4 Bk 300 300
Li Ka Fai, David FRIE 300 300
Zhang Ping ok ¥ 220 220
820 820
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31 December 2019 —ZT—AF+=-A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8.
REMUNERATION (continued)

(@) Independent Non-executive Directors
(continued)

There were no other emoluments payable to the
Independent Non-executive Directors during the
year (2018: Nil).

(b) Executive Directors and Non-executive

EERTHARSCHE (&)

(@) BIFBTES (&)

REANILEE RN T B
HTEEOME (- N\F:

') o

(b) HTESERFITES

Directors
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind contributions remuneration
¢ 2HR Bike
ok EMFE TEMR Memm
2019 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
—E-nE FET FET FET FET
Executive Directors: HITESE:
Liu Hongde AHEE(RZT-NEF
(resigned on 23 NBZ+=HBE&)
August 2019) 23 = = 23
Lai Weixuan* BREE* 36 - - 36
Fu Fangxing BHHE 36 - - 36
Zhang Zhibiao RER 36 - - 36
Yu Xiaodong TER 36 - - 36
Zhao Yang* HE (RZE-NEF
(appointed on 23 NAZT=REZH)
August 2019) 13 = = 13
180 = = 180
Non-executive Director:  JFHfTEE:
Chow Wai Kam Bl 120 - - 120
300 = = 300

* Lai Weixuan was also the chief executive officer of
the Group before 23 August 2019. Since 23 August
2019, Zhao Yang has become the chief executive
officer of the Group.

BEER-_Z-AFNA
—HtZHZARAARKELT
BEH -B T —-NAFNA
=Rk BERALEHE
TR AR, -
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8. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8.
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive Directors and Non-executive
Directors (continued)

EERTHARSCHE (&)

(b) BITESKIVTES (&)

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind  contributions  remuneration
e 2R Bk
ik EMFlE BELGES ot
2018 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\& FHET FHET FET FET
Executive Directors: WITESE:

Liu Hongde Bt 36 - - 36
Pan Linwu EWRE 24 = = 24
Lai Weixuan BEE 36 = = 36
Zhou Chunhua AEE 24 = = 24
Fu Fangxing BrHE 12 - - 12
Xu Hongge AL 24 - - 24
Yu Xiaodong FEx 12 - - 12
Zhang Zhibiao RER 12 - - 12
180 - - 180

Non-executive Director:  JFHfTEE:
Chow Wai Kam ARz 120 - - 120
300 - - 300

There was no arrangement under which a director

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year (2018: Nil).

FARBIAEZTREXRE
HEEAMES 22 (ZF—N

FoE) -
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
The five highest paid employees did not include

executive directors (2018: Nil).

Details of the

remuneration for the year of the five (2018: five) highest

hEREFHESR

DEBBHEELTOENTES (=
ToNEF ) CRFHEE (TN
FRR)REFHEE (LHAAAE

paid employees who are not a director of the Company F)zMeFERT:
are as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Basic salaries, allowances and EXFe EZMREYHZ
benefits in kind 11,038 10,512
Performance related bonuses TERIRIBEIEL 3,431 4,433
14,469 14,945

The number of non-director highest paid employees

whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as

follows:

MeE T EEr&xeHIFEFEER
B :

Number of employees

EE¥AR

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 L=
2,500,000/ 7T 2 3

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001
3,000,000/ 7T 2 1

HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 L2
4,500,000 7T 1 -

HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000

5,000,001 L E
5,500,000 7T
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INCOME TAX 10.

During the year, no provision for Hong Kong profits
tax has been made as the Group did not generate any
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong. In the prior
year, Hong Kong profits tax was provided at the rate
of 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during that year. Taxes on profits assessable

Fri&®

FR - ARAEELETARREEZ
R A - B AF h BB S A
B-EF BEREBZMAEFERBA
MIA16.5% 2 B EBRZFIEREFEHR
Bl o iR R BUE M 2 BRIB R X
BASEKEMERR EHEERER

elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax ZHEHE-
prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the
Group operates.
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current — Hong Kong: BVER— &% -
Charge for the year REREZ - 6,060
Current — Elsewhere: BVER— H Ath i [ :
Charge for the year RERX 5,967 10,931
Overprovision in prior years BEFE2BE BE (19,080) =
Deferred (note 34) B (M 5234) (16,704) (48,884)
Total tax credit for the year REBBLEER 2
from continuing operations REBIAEK 2 BT (29,817) (31,893)
Total tax charge for the year REERIEREEBLZ
from the discontinued operation AERIBFRAT 2% - 94,585
(29,817) 62,692

171



172

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMZETEEREZER (F8)BRAH
Annual Report 2019 —Z — hEF 7R

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 %8 3R R Hf 5T

31 December 2019 —ZT—AF+=-A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX (continued) 10.

A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable
to profit/(loss) before tax at the statutory rates for the
countries/jurisdictions in which the Company and the
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax credit
at the effective rate for the year is as follows:

Fri&H (&)

BARRARETEMNBARMERR
ERRIEEENEFEEARBRBA
wmAlL (BB MRERS (Kf)H
REREEMEZHIBRE 2 H R
T

2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE-)N\#F
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Loss before tax from continuing REBBELEER 2
operations I R (83,833) (159,025)
Profit before tax from a discontinued REERIEREEBLZ
operation F& B4 A v ) - 602,154
(83,833) 443,129
Tax at the statutory tax rates TE?%E%)%%E*%Z@EEIE (22,648) 52,207
Profits and losses attributable to AMhEERNRIREE R T
the joint ventures and associates 2w A & B 1R 9,668 604
Effect of withholding tax on interest R ERE EH
income from the USA FMEWANTE 3,906 8,021
Adjustments in respect of current i8 1 HA ) B ER ¢ 78 5
tax of previous periods (19,080) -
Income not subject to tax BEHBA (2,212) (23,536)
Expenses not deductible for tax TEMB 2T 549 24,944
Land appreciation tax (“LAT") in R B A3l 2 + IR E AR
Mainland China (Mg ER]) = 3,002
Tax losses utilised from previous periods %) 8+ BRI B B &5 48 = (2,550)
Tax charge/(credit) at the Group's RSB BRI E35.6%
effective rate of 35.6% (2018: 14.1%) (ZZE—N\F:14.1%)
HEZBRERY S (ER) (29,817) 62,692
Tax credit from continuing operations  REFBLEEEKE 2
MIBE R (29,817) (31,893)
Tax charge from REERIEREEBLKZ
a discontinued operation MIERAX - 94,585
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INCOME TAX (continued)

The share of tax charge attributable to associates of
HK$10,000 (2018: HK$1,000) is included in
in the consolidated

“Share of
profits and losses of associates”
statement of profit or loss.

There was no tax charge attributable to joint ventures
shared by the Group during the year (2018: Nil).

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

In the prior year, the Group disposed of the entire issued
share capital of Ease Triumph International Limited
(“Ease Triumph”) and the outstanding shareholder’s
loans and interest owed by Ease Triumph to the
Company, to Shengtong Holding Limited (“Shengtong”),
as detailed in note 39 to the financial statements.
Ease Triumph and its subsidiaries (“Ease Triumph
Group”) were engaged in the property development
and investment business. The disposal of the property
development and investment business was part of a
wider restructuring campaign being implemented by
the state-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council.

10.

11.

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-A=+—8H

8%t (&)
SIEEEE A F 2 B IE M 10,0004 7T
—ZT—)\F:1,0008T) B ALE

?E SR [ R E DR 25 R A |
7 o

FRAEETEIHEERRZHRA
R (ZE—-N\F: &) -
BRIEREER

EFE AKRELERXERERAA
(TAE])2BEHTRAURBEMN
RARBZ REEBRRER RN E T &
BERBRAR ([EAB])  FEHRHY
BBmRMEEI - hEREMB AR ([
EEERFEVEBEREREXHK D
EERIREEB 2 HETIBREK
BEEEEBEEZBEIETZER
BlEH 8-
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11.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 11. BRIEREER (Z)
The results of Ease Triumph Group included in the BREAEEFAERRT EFRER
Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss as a I EEB o HEEE CEE RN
discontinued operation are presented below: T
2019 2018
ZE-AE —E-N\F
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue W &5 - 41,095
Cost of sales 85 A AN = (19,358)
Gross profit EF - 21,737
Other income and gains H A4 A R FI = 2,285
Selling and distribution expenses HEREHER = (2,333)
Administrative expenses THEREER - (30,962)
Other operating expense Ef g = (12)
Finance costs i = (49,111)
Loss before tax from the REERIEREEXBKZ
discontinued operation G300 R = (58,396)
Income tax expense FrE A = (2,585)
Loss after tax from the REBKRIEKREEE 2
discontinued operation R B 1% B 18 = (60,981)
Pre-tax gain on disposal of BB A | 2 B AT FE
subsidiaries (note 39) (Hit39) - 660,550
Tax expense 4 18 A 32 = (92,000)
After-tax gain on disposal of subsidiaries H & i & 2 7] 2 #1458 = 568,550
Profit for the year from the REERIELEEBK 2
discontinued operation R F - 507,569
Attributable to: THA LA
Owners of the parent ISNEI Ve - 526,100
Non-controlling interests FE5 AR 7 =5 = (18,531)
= 507,569
Earnings per share: BRAEF
Basic and diluted, from the ERREE HK5.90 cents
discontinued operation KEDRIEEEED - 5.907 11l
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DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share
from the discontinued operation is based on:

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-A=+—8H

11. CRIEREER (£Z)

KEERIREXG BRERALES
BNOFEIIRIE:

2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
Profit attributable to ordinary equity NREEBEREEE ARG
holders of the parent from the discontinued K& B4 IF &2 #5525 HK$526,100,000
operation N/A RER 526,100,000/ 7T
Weighted average number of ordinary FRABETTAERZ
shares in issue during the year ANHEF B N/A TER 8,919,813,140

The net cash flows incurred by Ease Triumph Group are
as follows:

MESEEENRSREFRNT

2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Operating activities KEES - (167,922)
Investing activities WEEE = 491
Financing activities BMEED - (5,595)
Net cash outflow WE ML FE = (173,026)

DIVIDEND 12. BRE
2019 2018
—E-AE —ZT-)N\F
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Special — Nil (2018: HK1 cent per FARE -\ (ZE—NF:

ordinary share) R EEMBEW) - 93,034

The special dividend declared subsequent to 31
December 2018 was not recognised as a liability as at 31
December 2018.

RZE-NFE+TA=1+T—HBEEIR
ZHEAIRBREAR_ZT—NF+A
=t HERREE-
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13.

hNE+-A=+—H

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 13. BAREERREZEFEARLER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY ZF, (EE)
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share BRERRAN(BE)SEHRES
amounts is based on the profit/(loss) for the year RAEBEEFEABGARFE
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, (BE)RFADETEBERMNET
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of ¥ $09,303,374, 783Hx (ZZ2—NF:
9,303,374,783 (2018: 8,919,813,140) in issue during 8,919,813,140/% ) 3t &
the year.
No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings/ REBRBZE_Z-—NLFER_Z—N\F
(loss) per share amounts presented for the years ended +=A :+—E¢¢Fiﬁ4ﬁﬂﬂﬂ*ﬁigﬁ
31 December 2019 and 2018 in respect of a dilution as BETE BT AR Bt mE
the Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in ZEFESRIEREARRF, (BE)
issue during those years. TREEL RS A
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per BREAREFRAN (FBE)NTE
share is based on: ThiR$&
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary B QA EBEEZEHAE A
equity holders of the parent: PR A, (EE)
From continuing operations REFELEED (54,016) (127,132)
From a discontinued operation REERIEKEEHER - 526,100
(54,016) 398,968
Number of shares
10 B E
2019 2018
—E-AE —ZT-)N\F

Weighted average number of
INHE 15 B

ordinary shares in issue
during the year

FABHRTERBRZ

9,303,374,783  8,919,813,140
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y¥E- -BENRE
Furniture ~ Machinery Construction
Leasehold and and Motor in
Buildings improvements fixtures  equipment vehicles progress Total
i 3 HE#E HFAREE HBERRE RE ERIR At
HKS 000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FEx FEx FiEx TEr -2 TEx TET
31 December 2019 ZE-NE
+=ZR=+-H
At31December 2018and ~ RZZF—N\F
1 January 2019: TZA=+-Bk
—E-n%¥-A-R:
Cost Bk 70,557 34,061 3357 210,536 1,618 80284 400,413
Accumulated depreciation ~ ZTEIf E (9,470) (3,650) (3,246) (47,186) (1,618) - (65,170)
Net carrying amount EEEE 61,087 30,411 1 163350 = 80284 335243
At1lanuary 2019, netof ~ RZZF-hE-A—H:
accumulated depreciation B 2ENE 61,087 30,411 111 163,350 - 80,284 335,243
Additions RE = = = 24,769 = 146,839 171,608
Transfers e - 28,760 - 13,532 - (42,292) -
Transfer to investment BRZRENER
property (20,885) = = = = = (20,885)
Transfer to other intangible ~ BEZEREHEE
assets (note 18) (Hrz18) - - - - - (5,146) (5,146)
Disposals e (8) - (15) (3,085) - (31) (3,139)
Depreciation provided during & 37 & &
the year (note 6) (fis#6) (1,841) (4,844) (39) (58,210) - - (64,934)
Exchange realignment ERAR (754) = = (1,065) = (48) (1,867)
At 31 December 2019, RZZ-NE
net of accumulated +-R=+-8"
depreciation B RENE 37,599 54,327 57 139,291 - 179,606 410,880
At 31 December 2019: RZZE-NE
t-h=t+-8:
Cost S 38,456 62,821 3204 239,336 1618 179606 525,041
Accumulated depreciation ~ ZTEIf E (857) (8,494) (3,147)  (100,045) (1,618) - (114,161)
Net carrying amount EEEE 37,599 54327 57 139,291 - 179606 410,880
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% BENRE (£)
(continued)
Furniture Machinery Construction
Leasehold and and Motor in
Buildings  improvements fixtures equipment vehicles progress Total
BF BEXE HKLREE HERER nE ERIR aEr
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
T TET Tz T FET FET FET
31 December 2018 ZE-N\E
t=A=+-H
At 1 January 2018: RZZE-NF-A-R:

Cost KA 30,350 = 3,304 = 2,57 - 36,225

Accumulated depreciation ~ ZTEME (8,014) = (3,196) = (2,571) = (13,781)

Net carrying amount REFE 22,336 - 108 - - = 22,444
At 1lanuary 2018, netof ~ RZZE-\F—-A—H:

accumulated depreciaion IR EENE 22,336 - 108 - - = 22,444
Additions nE 47 372 74 8,153 = 58,327 66,973
Acquisition of subsidiaries  WEEM B L7 (47:#38)

(note 38) 49,600 33,689 - 212,240 - 24,916 320,445
Transfers B - - - 2,410 - (2.410) -
Disposals & (5,859) = S (1,666) = - (7,525)
Depreciation provided during  F i ER& & (H/zt6)

the year (note 6) (1,842) (3,650) (70) (53,227) - - (58,789)
Exchange realignment ERAE (3,195) - (1) (4,560) - (549) (8,305)
At 31 December 2018, RZE-NE

net of accumulated +-R=+-8"

depreciation NGB 2ENRE 61,087 30,411 111 163,350 S 80,284 335,43
At 31 December 2018: RZT-N\%

+=A=+-8:

Cost KA 70,557 34,061 3,357 210,536 1,618 80,284 400,413

Accumulated depreciation ~ 2EFE (9,470) (3,650) (3,246) (47,186) (1,618) - (65,170)

Net carrying amount REFE 61,087 30,411 m 163,350 - 80,284 335,243
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY REYE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZT-)N\#F
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEEE - 368,639
Net gain from a fair value adjustment ~ AF{EFHEHNFEF5E = 1,744
Exchange realignment [E 5% - (12,669)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) HEK B AR (#:239) - (357,714)

Transfer from property, W WEMERHEEA

plant and equipment 151,500 -
Carrying amount at 31 December RT+ZA=+—HZKEE 151,500 =

During the year, investment property was transferred
from property, plant and equipment and a gain on
property revaluation of HK$130,615,000 was recognised
in other comprehensive income.

The Group's investment property consisted of a
commercial property in Hong Kong. The Group's
investment property was revalued based on valuation
performed by LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited,
independent professionally qualified valuers. Each
year, the Group’s chief financial officer decides to
appoint which external valuer to be responsible for the
external valuation of the Group's investment property.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. The Group’s chief financial officer has
discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results once a year when the valuation is
performed for annual financial reporting.

Further particulars of the Group's investment property
are included on page 262.

FR-KEVEBRYE BEMZBEE
A B¥YEEHFIE130,615,000% 7T
BEREMEEmWEFER-

AEENKRENEBERBTENERY
X AEBEMREYERE B M EITA
BMERAR (BUEXEERMEERM)
ETHRERER -BF ARBZHMB
RERERESNEPEEMA T HAKE
REMEETIIMBAEE - ERERR
MEME BE - BUERECARTE
ERE-REEZMBRESF XS
LG E B 15 FR o B RO 1T A (B R S A
B AERKIEESERETEN

AEEREVENE-—THFBIARS
262E °
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15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s investment
property as at 31 December 2019:

15. REYE (&)
AR EELRHE

TRINRAEENRENER T~
Ft_A=+—HAHRFEFEFHR:

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2019 using
R-B-A%E+-A=1-H
ERANTRRETATENE

Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

REBRTE EATER EAFUERE

H®E BAHE BAHE

(B-#) (B=#) (B=R) CEi
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Recurring fair value BEENTEGE:
measurement for:
Commercial property GRS - - 151,500 151,500

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2018: Nil).

FR NP EAETEESE—FNE -
MrEER TEEASERFE =R
(ZE—NF:8|)o
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 15. BREYWE (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NFEERHE (&)

UTERZE—NF+_A=+—8&
EMEGBEMANGETEREEHA

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used
and the key inputs to the valuation of investment

property as at 31 December 2019: HE 2B E -

Valuation Significant

techniques unobservable inputs Range

fh B & AT EXRTAEENAYE &
Commercial property Market comparison Adjusted unit price HK$31,965 —
R ES approach (per square feet) HK$43,274

MGt BUA RAREE 31,965 7T —

(BFHER) 43,2748 7T

Under the market comparison approach, the property
is valued on the market basis assuming sales in its
existing state with the benefit of vacant possession and
by making reference to comparable sales evidence as
available in the relevant markets. Comparison is based
on prices realised in actual transactions or asking prices
of comparable properties. Appropriate adjustments are
then made to account for the differences between such
properties in terms of age, time, location, floor level and
other relevant factors.

A significant increase (decrease) in the adjusted unit
price would result in a significant increase (decrease) in
the fair value of the investment property.

REMSHLEE  MERMGELEET
fME EPRIUARRIEGHE X2
AT SRR 2 AL BHERE
HBETDERERR ST 2 BEREBRKA
EYMEZME - 2R RZEWEZ
B BE R BESEREMERH
REZZRFHBEERHE-

RABREEARE N ORD) BEBR
BYEMRFEKRNRIE N CORD)

o
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16. LEASES 16. #HE

The Group as a lessee KEBEREHEA

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land rEERBEZEEEFRMA L RETF
and buildings and motor vehicles used in its operations. RABEHEZHEGHN  THREFH
Leases of land and buildings generally have lease terms HERBT R2E7F MAENHEE
between 2 and 75 years, while motor vehicles generally HBE R2ESF -—RME  AKET
have lease terms between 2 and 5 years. Generally, the AmAEBEUIATERZRSHEBEE
Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the Ee

leased assets outside the Group.

(a)  Right-of-use assets @ FHEEZE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use FAREEFEAREENREE
assets and the movements during the year are as LEsnT -
follows:
Land
and Motor
buildings vehicles Total
THREF AE Bt
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET
As at 1 January 2019 RZZE-hF—-H—H 33,864 1,227 35,091
Additions NE 290,824 = 290,824
Depreciation charge (note 6) FTERZ (fiite) (7,519) (700) (8,219)
Exchange realignment B 5 AR & = (8) (8)
RZE-hF
As at 31 December 2019 +ZRA=+—H 317,169 519 317,688
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LEASES (continued) 16. #HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (continued) KEBEERFABEA (&)
(b) Lease liabilities b HEERE
The carrying amounts of the lease liabilities and FRNHERGENREERESHN
the movements during the year are as follows: Ik
HKS'000
FHET
As at 1 January 2019 RZE—NE—HF—AH 35,091
New leases e 290,824
Accretion of interest recognised N 2 R B 1L 17
during the year (note 7) (Haz7) 7,014
Payments (NE N (12,309)
Exchange realignment fE P (10)
As at 31 December 2019 RZZE-—hE+HA=+—H 320,610
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities (2018: Nil) HEBE(ZZ—N\F &)W
is disclosed in note 45 to the financial statements. HASMERERM B mEMT
45 -
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16.

LEASES (continued) 16.

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(c)

(d)

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in
relation to leases are as follows:

HE (&)
FEEEREBEA ()
(©

RERFERNEERASEN
T

2019
—E-hF
HKS'000
FET
Interest on lease liabilities HEBREME 7,014
Depreciation charge of EREEEZITERX
right-of-use assets 8,219
Expense relating to short-term HEHHEERFBGEERR T —NF
leases and other leases with A=t —Ho%RERNEMEE
remaining lease terms ended EEMER (FFATTHERER) *
on or before 31 December
2019 (included in
administrative expenses)* 599
Expense relating to leases of MEXEBEEEHERHENER
low-value assets (included in (GFATTHEEER) *
administrative expenses)* 1,136
Total amount recognised in BRbPRRACBSE
profit or loss 16,968

* Included in “lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities” in note 6 to the
financial statements.

The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in
note 40(c) to the financial statements.

@

* A BEHERMES [TEt AR
ERAEFENEENK] -

HERSRHAERERYBR
=K 5E40(c) °
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GOODWILL 17. BE
HK$'000
THET
Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2018 R -ZE—N\F—F—HZRANE@E =
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38) WEEWB AR (KiE38) 401,207
Exchange realignment PE W2 (1,113)
Cost and carrying amount at 31 December RZE-NF+ZHA=+—HBK
2018 and 1 January 2019 ZE-NEFE-—AR—AZKAKE@E 400,094
Exchange realignment M 5 3B (273)
Cost and carrying amount at 31 December RZZE-NE+TA=+—H
2019 ZHA R BREE 399,821
Impairment testing of goodwill BmEZREAR
Goodwill acquired through business combination has FREBEMHREGZEABESEET T3
been allocated to the following cash-generating units ReEXST([ReELEEBIT])AE
("CGU") for impairment testing: TTRE R
. General aviation aircraft piston engine business in . BAMEREEERSRERR
USA CGU ("USA CGU"); and XENReELST ([XERS
EEXET]) &
. General aviation aircraft piston engine business in . MAM TR R ERHREBR
Germany CGU (“Germany CGU") BERNRSELE T ([ZERE

ELXET])
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17. GOODWILL (continued) 17. BE(#&)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the
CGUs is as follows:

BEZRERR (F)

SETERSELETHHERDELN
T

2019 2018

—ZE-AF —ZT-)N\F

HKS'000 HK$'000

FET FEor

USA CGU FEREGEEET 385,770 385,770
Germany CGU EHBEEELETT 14,051 14,324
399,821 400,094

Management engaged an independent professional
valuer, Duff & Phelps, to determine the valuation models
for the impairment assessment. The recoverable amounts
of both cash-generating units have been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-
year period approved by management. The discount
rates applied to the cash flow projections and the
growth rates used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond
the five-year periods are as follows:

TEEERFEIXAEMEGETR
B EAEEEL - WERSELET
MRS ESEDRERARS RERR
RtBEZEREEMET ZRERE
AN EREEH ENTFRMBRER
A -HeRERAMEANFTEER
AREHEARFHRARERENER
RT:

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—N\F
% %

USA CGU IEHERSELER
Discount rate I8 = 12.8% 13.6%
Growth rate #RE 2.5% 2.5%

A rise in the pre-tax discount rate to 13.3% in the USA
CGU would result in an impairment. A reduction in the
growth rate to 1.9% in the USA CGU would result in an

SERCELBETHNRBAFTREAE
133%HBHRE- XERSCELET
IR EEE1.9% K EBURE -

impairment.
2019 2018
—ER-NF —E-N\F
% %
Germany CGU EHEESELER
Discount rate P38 & 15.5% 17.7%
Growth rate HRE 2.5% 2.5%



17.

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMETIEXERER (FEB)ERAT
Annual Report 2019 —ZF— L FEFR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B1 %8 3R & K{ st

GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

A rise in the pre-tax discount rate to 15.8% in the
Germany CGU would result in an impairment. A
reduction in the growth rate to 2.0% in the Germany
CGU would result in an impairment.

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculation
of the CGUs for 31 December 2019 and 2018. The
following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine
the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the
average gross margins achieved in the year immediately
before the budget year, increased for expected efficiency
improvements, and expected market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax
and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units.

17.

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-A=+—8H

mE(E)

EmEZRENR (&)
EERSELETNRBANREERAE
15.8% S BRAE - EHARSELBT
38 R KPR 52.0% 16 8 ORI 8 -

“E-AEFERE-NFT A=+
AMREeELETNEREEFEFE
ATRE - TR E IR EETRER
BRI S AT ER IR £ R E BRI PRI A
FEBRERR:

BEEMNX -BEEMNENEELIRE
BEFE 2 —FRERNFGERN R
AEWHARERUREENRE RERATS
TRMmE M-

FRE-—FRABZIFERTIRAGHR
B WRRAEREER E T2 ERR -
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OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. HMtBEEE
Product
technology,
Development licence and Total other
programs completed Customer intangible
in progress  Trademarks programs  relationships Others assets
ER&
RERR
EiTh BRAM At &R
BR:H HE HE ! EFEE Hity EEA
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HK$000
Tz FE7 FA7 7 Tz Tz
31 December 2019 ZE-NE+ZA=t-H
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NF+ZA=+-H
and 1 January 2019; RZE-NE-RA-B:
Cost A 214,373 263,080 821,526 548,502 7,765 1,855,246
Accumulated amortisation RiEEH - (8,201) (27,979) (34,436) (3,473) (74,089)
Net carrying amount REFE 214,373 254,879 793,547 514,066 4,292 1,781,157
At 1 January 2019, net of RZZ-h&—-A-R"
accumulated amortisation G2EEH 214,373 254,879 793,547 514,066 4292 1,781,157
Additions AE 75,439 = 194 = = 75,633
Transfers b (13,105) - 13,105 - - -
Transfer from property, g BRAXBEAN
plant and equipment (note 74) (Hiz#14) - - - - 5,146 5,146
Amortisation provided during FREEER
the year (note 6) (Hi3#6) - (9,703) (32,325) (38,316) (2,387) (82,731)
Disposals HE (4,503) - - - - (4,503)
Exchange realignment BEHAE (1,675) (456) (4,822) (2,115) - (9,068)
At 31 December 2019 R-B-NE+-F=1-8 270,529 244,720 769,699 473,635 7,051 1,765,634
At 31 December 2019: RZE-hE+ZA=t-H:
Cost A 270,529 262,431 829,467 546,087 12910 1,921,424
Accumulated amortisation B L - (17,711) (59,768) (72,452) (5859)  (155,790)
Net carrying amount RESE 270,529 244,720 769,699 473,635 7,051 1,765,634
31 December 2018 ZE-\EtZA=1-H
Cost at 1 January 2018 RZB-NE-R—HZKA - - - - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (mote 38)  WEEN B4 & (Ai38) 185,140 265,747 826,147 558,001 7370 1,842,405
Additions AE 54,428 = 39 S 395 54,862
Transfers 2% (16,887) - 16,887 - - -
Amortisation provided during ENEREE (Hite)
the year (note 6) - (8,732) (29,022) (34,580) (3,473) (75,807)
Disposals e (2,666) - - - - (2,666)
Exchange realignment EHAE (5,642) (2,136) (20,504) (9,355) = (37,637)
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NF+-A=1-H 214,373 254,879 793,547 514,066 429 1,781,157
At 31 December 2018: RZB-\F+ZA=+-H:
Cost A 214,373 263,080 821,526 548,502 7,765 1,855,246
Accumulated amortisation 2REH - (8,201) (27,979) (34,436) (3.473) (74,089)
Net carrying amount FEFE 214,373 254,879 793,547 514,066 4,292 1,781,157
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INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES BEDNTZRE

2019 2018
ZE-hF AN
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Share of net assets DIEREE = 39,174
The investments in joint ventures include the Group's BERRIZKREBREAEEEEZEH

right to enjoy certain economic benefits derived from a E=HFEBETTHRE 2 MM

69.4% equity interest in CATIC Siwei Co., Ltd. ("CATIC
Siwei"”) held by third parties through trust arrangements.
CATIC Siwei is registered as a co-operative joint venture
under PRC law and is holding an investment in China
which operates in investment holding.

In the opinion of the directors, notwithstanding that
the Group has the right to enjoy certain economic
benefits from the 69.4% equity interest in CATIC Siwei,
none of the shareholders of CATIC Siwei has unilateral
control over the economic activity of CATIC Siwei
pursuant to the provisions in the articles of association
of CATIC Siwei. Since the Group does not have any
power to control the financial and operating activities of
CATIC Siwei, the directors consider it is appropriate to
account for the investment as an investment in a joint
venture using the equity method of accounting as at 31
December 2019 and 2018.

CATIC Siwei was not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong
Kong or another member firm of the Ernst & Young
global network.

During the year, the Group has provided an impairment
loss of HK$1,700,000 (2018: Nil) (note 6) for a loan
to CATIC Siwei of HK$1,700,000 (2018: Nil) which
is unsecured, interest-bearing at 5% per annum and
repayable within one year.

2

RARAR ([MAEERK])69.4%K A
B2 E TRBENE - #ERIRET
BOZPIEM AR ELR IXRTEEFHA
LEREBBRZKRE-

EERK/ HALEERAOEER
69.4% M AT 0 E T A& H s i - {8
IR E KA A R R E - B
MERBRRENEERZKELBHER
B9 77 EDHR B4 o e PO AN SR B AR AR A )P
REBRZMBERERLEY EFRAE
B ES A S AR E YR =
F-NFRZF-N\F+ZA=1t—H
AAABERRIZIRE -

7O 4 E BOF R ZOK BB R K BRI
Hit K B RAR]&EZ -

FR - AEEFRMOLEEBRRENER
1,700,000 T (ZE— NF E)ET
RE RSB E%1,700,0008 7L (ZZE—N
F|) (fate)  ZERBEEE IZ
FRESEFBEREAR—FANEE-
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19. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

information of CATIC Siwei,

which is considered as

19.

BELNRZRE (&)

TRIHOMEER (R RAEEZE
BRENA)ZUMBEHNBE CHE

a material joint venture of the Group, adjusted for ATRECEMEEELRE WHEES
any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled FBHRERANRMEETHIR:
to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements:
2019 2018
—E-NF —F-N\F
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEE 20 627
Other current assets HithmeE&E 1,419 19,192
Current assets MEEE 1,439 19,819
Non-current assets ERBEE 29,127 75,402
Current liabilities mENBE (66,853) (36,251)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (156) (923)
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/ (AE)ZEE (36,443) 58,047
Less: Net assets attributable to non- W IR R RS RS
controlling interests BEFE - (2,661)
(36,443) 55,386
Reconciliation to the Group's interest ~ EAREER A E RN A
in the joint venture: B HER:
Proportion of the Group's ownership REEBEF R 2 LB 69.4% 69.4%
Group's share of net assets of KEBNEEERFIZ
the joint venture BETE = 38,438
Goodwill on acquisition WEEMEECHE 7,745 7,745
Provision for impairment ok (B 1 (7,745) (7,745)
Carrying amount of the investment "EZEREE - 38,438
Revenue I & - 499
Interest income FLEMA 1 1,991
Other expenses HE X (88,511) (1,200)
Loss for the year REFEE (91,562) (3,768)
Other comprehensive income Hth2mEka = (2,128)
Total comprehensive income AEXTHEHWRARE
for the year (91,562) (5,896)
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INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(continued)

* The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of
losses of CATIC Siwei because the share of losses of CATIC
Siwei exceeded the Group's interest and the Group has
no obligation to take up further losses. The unrecognised
share of losses of CATIC Siwei amounted to HK$25,291,000
(2018: Nil) for the year and as of 31 December 2019.

CATIC Siwei has placed a deposit for the acquisition
of a property located in Mainland China, which was
included in “non-current assets”. The directors of the
Company performed impairment assessment of the
deposit on 31 December 2019 and 2018 based on the
valuation performed by LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors
Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers, on
the underlying property to determine the recoverable
amount of the deposit. During the year, an impairment
loss of HK$44,873,000 (2018: Nil) has been provided for
the deposit.

The fair value measurement of the underlying building
is categorised as Level 3. Below is a summary of the
valuation techniques used and the key inputs to the
valuation of the underlying property:

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-A=+—8H

BENRZRE (&)

g AEBDKIEERD HEMGEROE
B EASHNEERNBEEBEAR
EER R MAEENW EREREE
—FERB-AFRR_T-—NAF+=
A=+ —BRBERZH TG ERD
E518 525,291,000 T (=T — \F:
=) -

PY 4 i R Bk U B R 5 R B A Hb B0 W
E¥TFANES ZWECRBEIERD
BE|N-ARBIEER_E—NLFR
—E-NEFE+-_A=+—BREBL
EEASBERGERMF LT EA AR
AARMEAYEETNEES RS E
TRETE  AEEZEeNIKES
B-FN DRZIESET REBER
544,873,000 L (ZZE—NF: &) -

HEBTHNRATFEFEDDBERES
o LT RATAMGEERMT 2 BEARSA
BYELENTERABE:

Valuation technique Significant unobservable input Range
b (B B i EXTUBERAHRE gBE

RMB40 — RMB48

(2018: RMB44 -RMB57)
4OTL AR 48T ARE
= 5B N A TN B

Estimated rental value
(per square meter per month)
hEtEeEE
(BRAEFEAHAK)

Direct capitalisation approach

BEEREREZ

57T ARE)
Yield rate 50-7.0%
Iy 3% & (2018: 4.2%)

(=N 452'%)
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19. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19. EE&LNTEZRE (&)

(continued)

The following table illustrates the financial information

TRHAALFEREAZAEESZER

of the Group's joint venture that is not individually Al EER
material:
2019 2018
ZE-hF —E-N\F
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Share of the joint venture’s loss SMEEERRZARFEE
for the year (109) (326)
Share of the joint venture's other ShEERRZEA
comprehensive income 2HE = = -
Share of the joint venture’s total DIEEERFIZEAE
comprehensive income U &% 48 58 (109) (326)
Carrying amount of the Group's KEEBREERFZ
investment in the joint venture HEZEAEE - 736

During the year, the above joint venture was dissoluted
and resulted in a loss of HK$302,000 (2018: Nil).

FA LA ERREE AMELE
1#8302,0008 T (ZE—\F: &) -
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INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 20. BEQTZERE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—N\F
HKS'000 HK$°000
FETT FET
Share of net assets DIHEEFE 11,607 12,272
Goodwill on acquisition WEEMEE CHE 7,500 7,500
19,107 19,772
Less: Provision for impairment R E R (7,326) (7,326)
11,781 12,446
Due from an associate included FFAREERESEE
in the Group’s current assets 2 FE W = A T 1,093 575
Loans to an associate included FAREBERBEE W
in the Group’s current assets Bt A E IR E R 8,889 9,143
The amount due from an associate is unsecured and is FEUGES = N R FRIR TR R B RE K
repayable on demand. EE-
The loans to an associate are unsecured, bear interest at A ENRIRENERSEERR BT
6% per annum and are repayable within one year. MEeEFE RER—FAREE-
There was no recent history of default and past due MEBENRNESR URSTENRE
amounts for balances with the associate. As at 31 S RBHRR - BHE_E—NFR_Z
December 2019 and 2018, the loss allowance was —NF+ZA=+—H BEEETH
assessed to be minimal. =¥ A
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20.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
(continued)

Particulars of the associate are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

Particulars of registration and

20.

BELNRZRE (&)

AR 2 BT

Percentage of ownership

interest attributable

Name issued shares held  business to the Group Principal activity
FEEC &7 gAMRL/ rEBEGERRE
£#78 R 15 A REEE BRESH TEER
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-)N\F
L REERRH Registered capital of PRC/Mainland 31.75 31.75 Research and development
Bin AR AR RMB1 each China of engineering technology
("EREER) SFRITARESN 8/ FER and electronics
HfEAR communication technology
TERMERETFRERMT
i
e Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another e I FF R 2k B A S Tk B R H A AK

member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

In the prior year, the Group's equity interest in 1t &
{=% was diluted subsequent to capital injection by new
investors to dt X#E{=Z=. A gain on deemed disposal of
an associate of HK$3,561,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for that year.

In the prior year, the Group disposed of its entire 40%
equity interests in an associate, 1k R I KM = K
MERARAT ("IERFEIE"), to China National
Aero-Technology Import & Export Corporation (“CATIC")
for a cash consideration of RMB3,839,000 (equivalent
to HK$4,388,000). A loss on disposal of HK$909,000
was recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. Since CATIC is 50% owned by Aviation
Industry Corporation of China, Ltd and 50% owned by
AVIC International Holding Corporation, the disposal
constituted a connected transaction of the Company
under the Listing Rules.

BRAEZ-

EF HREERLREERTE R
AEERLEREERIREAERE H
#E BEGSALEHE QR ZFE
3,561,000 TERZFHIFEERER
HRER

EF AEEBEREE AR RFR
HEMERMERBRAR ([HEREF
R )R 2 240% M HEH & F M
REHOBERETAR ([FHME]) -
14 R(EA3,839,000t AR (B
74,388,000/ 7T ) ° ) & /& $£909,000
BLTERGEERERER - BRF M
THEPBEMETIEESEERARESR
50% - K B3 A B 2= 4 B B 4 AR A R
NRIEAS0%  BIEEMRA - HES
BEKARRIZBERS-
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20. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 20. BERATRZRE (&)
(continued)
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TRINTAERBERIFERBERE 2
information of the Group's associates that are not BRI AR

individually material:

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Share of the associates’ profit/(loss) DAEEE R R 2 ARFE
for the year swm Al (EE) (328) 471
Share of the associates’ total DRBE AR Z 2@
comprehensive income Wk 458 (328) 471
Aggregate carrying amount of REBEBRBEAR 2IRE
the Group's investment in ZREERARE
the associate 11,781 12,446
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21.

EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED 21.
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BAFEFARMEZEKRE 2R
REE

2019 2018
—®-hE T )\F
HKS'000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Listed equity investments, at fair value: EMRAKRE  ZAFE:
Peace Map Holding Limited (“PMH") KT EEKRAR AR
(TR TEZER]) - -
AVIC Joy Holding (HK) Limited ERIER(BEB)ERAF 34,041 53,642
34,041 53,642
Unlisted equity investment, at fair value: 3F F I ANIEE - A FE:
Ampaire, Inc. Ampaire, Inc. 389 389
34,430 54,031

The above equity investments were irrevocably
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income as the Group considers these investments to be
strategic in nature.

Since 2018, the trading in PMH's shares has been
suspended and PMH's convertible bonds were in default.
Management has assessed that the fair values of PMH’s
shares and convertible bonds are zero based on available
published financial information of PMH.

HRARERSZEREBREIEE
FTAE A A REE M IE Eat IR AR B 8 E
R AFEFAEMEERE -

B-ZE-N\F&E X TEZERZERNY
FEE MATEZERNATRRESS
EH-BEREERENAZENENK
TEZRB M B AR R E R T BER R
D RkABREREFNAFERS
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31 December 2019 —E—hFE+=-A=+—H
INVENTORIES 22. ®E

2019 2018
—E-hE —N\F
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw materials R # 363,971 312,139
Work in progress E& M 110,724 121,543
Finished goods BIRY mn 15,570 40,071
490,265 473,753

TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. EWREZERX
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HKS'000 HK$'000
F# T FH#T
Trade receivables JEWE ZERER 108,066 109,283
Impairment B (4,394) (6,572)
103,672 102,711

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, where partial advanced payment is required
for certain customers. The credit period is generally 30
days. Each customer has a maximum credit limit.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. As at 31 December
2019, the Group had certain concentrations of credit risk
as 32% (2018: 37%) of the Group's trade receivables
were due from one of the Group's key customers.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

AEEEEFPZEERRETERRE
RETEPMEABNISNRIE-EE
H—RA30R -BUEFHAZBERAE
EPREE-

REBEBRKERFE 2 BUERRE TR
BEE -BEESETHRTONEH.
RZZE-—hAhF+ZA=+—RH Kx5H
EETEESHYTRER REZEAEH
MEWKRESERERZ32% (ZZT— \F:
W%)E%WK%E*%IEEﬁZ%

B RGBT EBEBEWE HRR 24
%hﬁ&ﬂﬂﬁm&EMPE%noﬁ
WEB SERRILTETE -
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23.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end

of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and

net of loss allowance, is as follows:

23.

FEWE SRR (&)

RBEEHR BRREZERZEZAH
KB ERE B RE DT

2019 2018

—E-AF —E-N\F

HKS'000 HK$'000

FETT FET

Within 1 month —@AR 76,361 76,745
1 to 2 months —ZE=m@EA 11,726 12,241
2 to 3 months —Z=={@A 2,441 3,927
Over 3 months B = E A 13,144 9,798
103,672 102,711

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of

the trade receivables are as follows:

FE W B 55 B SR 2 R (B 1S 18 1B B 4

T

2019 2018

—E—-h#F —E—N\F

HKS’'000 HK$000

FETT FET

At 1 January n—H—H 6,572 =

Acquisition of subsidiaries I BE BT B A A - 5,603
Impairment losses/(reversal of REEER, CREFERE)

impairment losses), net (note 6) HER (K ite) (2,178) 969

At 31 December R+ZA=+—8H 4,394 6,572
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. EREZRR(Z)
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting RERE BHRERBEREETRED
date using a provision matrix to measure expected At EBREEBE -BHEEDAE
credit losses. The provision rates are based on days REBBRUBEREANZERFH 48
past due for groupings of various customer segments RE @A ABET - T BRI T
with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the MgEHER BEBREEBENRRREH
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money HAESHNERBESEH SRRk
and reasonable and supportable information that is RRGEERABANEGERAZHE
available at the reporting date about past events, Be—HMms BEEZERNEHB
current conditions and forecasts of future economic B—FRBEAZBREHRITEERT
conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written off if LA SH ©
past due for more than one year and are not subject to
enforcement activity.
Set out below is the information about the credit risk TR FERBEEESITOEERE
exposure on the Group's trade receivables using a EREKEZEFNEERRBHER
provision matrix:
Past due
A
Less than 1t03 Over
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
WE HR-EA —-ZE=EA =EANL &%
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZB-h#F
+ZA=+-H
Expected credit loss rate EHEEBBX 0.25% 2.44% 17.55% 30.18% 4.07%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) SRE4E (FET) 83,220 9,230 5,960 9,656 108,066
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) TBEEEER (FET) 209 225 1,046 2,914 4,394
As at 31 December 2018 RZB-N\F
+=B=t-H

Expected credit loss rate EHEEBBX 0.49% 3.70% 14.27% 42.95% 6.01%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) SREEE (FET) 82,026 11,431 3,650 12,176 109,283
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) TBEAEEER (F5T) 398 423 521 5,230 6,572
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24. DUE FROM FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES 24,

The amounts due from fellow subsidiaries are unsecured,

non-interest-bearing and repayable within one year.

LLACEN ) PN

e Uk 7] S B 2 ) SR Y R AR AR - R EF
BREN—FRHEE-

25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25. FENRIE -ZERHEAMERERR

RECEIVABLES

2019 2018

—ER-NF —E-N\F

HKS'000 HK$'000

FET FEor

Prepayments TE R 20,145 48,235

Deposits and other receivables e R E M EWERR 61,592 83,421

Impairment allowance BB (41,774) (46,861)

39,963 84,795

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental

deposits and deposits with suppliers. An impairment
analysis is performed at each reporting date by applying
a loss rate approach with reference to the historical loss

record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect

the current conditions and forecasts of future economic

conditions, as appropriate. The loss rate applied for

where there are no comparable companies as at 31
December 2019 was 100% (2018: 100%) on the gross
other receivables in default of HK$41,774,000 (2018:
HK$46,861,000) before impairment allowance.

RekEMBUEREIEARERES R
HERRS REREEH AEEEK
AEBRXZT2EAEENBRAEIEL
BETREI T ANEERABEEBERI
F= B & AR 5 B 3 R AR A% 7 AR o A TE R
(@A) RZT—NF+=—A=+—
B @B RARBATRABEE
100% (== — )\ : 100% ) {E R B #
BB HMEWER AT (08K
AE B RT) B41,774,0008 L (= F
— J\#F : 46,861,000/ 7T ) °
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PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25.

RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of
other receivables are as follows:

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-A=+—8H

BNRIE - RER A EURRRR

(&)

H i & U PR SR 2 R 1B S 18 1 o B 4

T

2019 2018

—E-NF —F-N\F

HKS'000 HK$'000

FET FHEIT

At 1 January KR—HA—H 46,861 52,075
Reversal of impairment losses, net BB B R R R

(note 6) (Hiite) (3,781) (3,488)

Amount written off as uncollectible H 85 T AT Uk B & & B8 (57) =

Exchange realignment HEH AR (1,249) (1,726)

At 31 December R+—A=+—8H 41,774 46,861

Deposits and other receivables that were not impaired
relate to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default and past due amounts. As at 31
December 2019 and 2018, the loss allowance was
assessed to be minimal.

MARBEZESREMERERERS X
RO E A 2 o8 B R A B AR
KRB NFRZZE—NF+=A
=+—HB EBEERETHABN-
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26.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 26. BAFEFABRZUBEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
HKS'000 HK$000
FET FEor
Unlisted investments, at fair value LETRE BATE
Non-current asset: ERMBEE:

VerdeGo Aero, Inc.’s convertible bond VerdeGo Aero, Inc.

Z AR E S 1,938 -
Current asset: TENE EE -

PMH’s convertible bonds R TEZR TR ES = -
The above unlisted investments were mandatorily Lk EMRBEWRHIHE AL ATE
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit AFABE MBREE RAEEANRS
or loss as their contractual cash flows are not solely MEX MERRZMNEE RIS -
payments of principal and interest.

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and HE_Z-hFrR_ZE—NF+A
2018, the PMH's convertible bonds were in default. =t+—HIEFE K TEZERA TR
Management has assessed that the fair values of PMH's BHEEN BEEEREBEAIRZET
convertible bonds are zero based on available published BORTEIERNIHBEERTERTE

financial information of PMH. TR D R BRBRESHNAFELAS -
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 27. REeERBRLEE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —N\&F
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash and bank balances ReERBITHET 183,686 1,191,575
Time deposits EHFR 806,700 =
Cash and cash equivalents RekResH 990,386 1,191,575
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank RBERR AEBAARE(TAR
balances and time deposits of the Group denominated BIHAEZRERBIEEREHT
in Renminbi (“RMB") amounted to HK$211,854,000 K A211,854,0008 L (ZFE—N\F:
(2018: HK$707,355,000). The RMB is not freely 707,355,000/ 7C) - AR TP B HEE
convertible into other currencies, however, under BRAEMEE  AMBEFE A .2
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations MEE IR AR R A T - EIE RATEEIEAR
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of EASETERERERRING iR
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted ¥BoBRTBARBELBAEEME -
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on RITFRETARITERFERFTENZ
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are BHNEFE - RIEAEENARREF
made for varying periods of between one day and one K FENFT—RBE—FETRHEKN
year depending on the immediate cash requirements of REHEIE B R R A B B BE R
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term MERHB -RITEFRETHERETN
time deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits REFSE/REE AEEBBE 2 RT
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.
DUE TO INTERMEDIATE HOLDING 28. BEAHEERAT

COMPANIES

The amounts due to intermediate holding companies
are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable on
demand.

FHEPF'EH @G|
KA BREE

AT EEA - A5
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29.

30.

TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end

29. EREZERX

RBEEHR BNESZERZERZAH

of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as ZIERBATIT
follows:

2019 2018
—E-NF —F-N\F
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within 1 month —EAR 57,815 65,839
1 to 2 months —ZEmEA 22,559 19,182
2 to 3 months —E={@A 3,409 3,844
Over 3 months B = E A 1,436 1,287
85,219 90,152

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are

normally settled on 60-to-90-day terms.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

ZERMNE SRR TR R —RIR60

Z0RHIRBRE -

30. HiEMNRARRESER

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
Notes HKS'000 HK$'000
Jokza FET FET
Contract liabilities AMaE (a) 39,028 37,425
Other payables H b FE AT AR (b) 1,566 1,435
Accruals fEETE A 84,545 105,387
125,139 144,247

Portion classified as PEEREEENIMD
current liabilities (94,030) (114,727)
Non-current portion JEREE D 31,109 29,520
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30. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 30. HttENRRRESER (&)
(continued)
Notes: Kt -
(@)  Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (a) ABHEEFHBLOT:
31 December 31 December 1 January
2019 2018 2018
—B-nFE —T-N\F
+=A +t=A ZF-N\F
=+-—H =+—H —A—H
HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Advances received from REEFHAEAMNRK
customers
Provision of repair and R RME B MES
maintenance services for RERB
aircraft engines 39,028 37,425 -
Contract liabilities include advances received EHNBERERHERE K
to provide repair and maintenance services for HERERBOBNR-R-F
aircraft engines. The increase in contract liabilities —NERZZE-N\FaHEEE
in 2019 and 2018 was mainly due to the increase MEZAHNIRHREBEBRAES
in advances received from customers in relation to RERBAKEIRE P HTER
the provision of repair and maintenance services SRIL AN FT BN -

for aircraft engines.

(b)  Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have (b)y HMENERRIDAFERFHEH
an average term of three months. RAE=A-
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31. PROVISIONS AND OTHER LIABILITIES 31. BERHEHMEE
Product
Warranty claim Other
provision provision liabilities Total
Rig ERER Htth
BiE BB =L |t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FET
31 December 2019 ZE-hE
+t=ZRA=+t-H
At 31 December 2018 and RZE—N\F
1 January 2019 +ZA=+—8k
—E-NF—-A—H 29,272 28,458 39,254 96,984
Provided/(reversed) (note 6)  #f&,/ (&E) (#t:t6) 26,792 (8,819) 6,998 24,971
Utilised during the year FAREEHAH (29,636) (4,534) (8,696) (42,866)
Increase in discounted amounts B &5 [ 18 2 1 & 4 /)
arising from the passage of FRES RN
time (note 7) (H1iz7) = - 70 70
Exchange realignment BE B (504) - (496) (1,000)
At 31 December 2019 R-_E—NF
+-A=+—H 25,924 15,105 37,130 78,159
Portion classified as DERRBBENIH
current liabilities (25,219) (2,519) (14,895) (42,633)
Non-current portion FERBI 705 12,586 22,235 35,526
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PROVISIONS AND OTHER LIABILITIES 31. BRERHAMERS (&)
(continued)
Product
Warranty claim Other
provision provision liabilities Total
&R EmEE HAth
A B B i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr FET FET FHET
31 December 2018 —E-N\E
+=A=t+-H
At 1 January 2018 RZE-NF—-H—H = = = =
Acquisition of subsidiaries WK B A7)

(note 38) (H17£38) 24,633 59,675 36,127 120,435
Provided/(reversed) (note 6)  #f&,/ (&E) (fiit6) 29,405 (10,890) 11,887 30,402
Utilised during the year FREHH (24,226) (20,327) (6,021) (50,574)
Increase in discounted amounts B B [ i@ 2= M 22 4 /Y

arising from the passage of FIRE S FEEM

time (note 7) (Hit7) - - 114 114
Exchange realignment & H A (540) = (2,853) (3,393)
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F

+-A=+—8H 29,272 28,458 39,254 96,984
Portion classified as PERRBBEENEH

current liabilities (24,924) (10,463) (14,058) (49,445)

Non-current portion FERENE D 4,348 17,995 25,196 47,539

The Group provides warranties ranging from one to
three years to its customers on certain of its engines. The
amount of the provision for the warranties is estimated
based on sales volumes and past experience of the level
of repairs and returns. The estimation basis is reviewed
on an ongoing basis and revised where appropriate.

AEEREBOBEDHRAETFIEM
—EZFRED -RERBEERE
HERBENEERREKTZE R
HE-AEERFERSZHEEE IR
HE R HETER]
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31.

hNE+-A=+—H

PROVISIONS AND OTHER LIABILITIES
(continued)

The Group is currently involved in legal proceedings
related to product liability claims. An estimate for
the probable costs has been made for these claims
as product claim provision. This estimate has been
developed in consultation with the Group's insurers,
legal counsels, historical experience and is based upon
an analysis of potential results. In the opinion of the
directors, these proceedings will not have a material
adverse effect on the Group's consolidated financial
statements. The product claim provisions are made for
any present expected product liability claims as a result
of the assessment at the end of the reporting period.
The estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis

and revised where appropriate.

31.

BERHMEE (&)

AEEBRSREAERREREARD
AEFRFREMRBEERE A5E
B H % E R A A BERCAAE {4 ET © 5%
R DASEEERAEENRR A
7&2’:@@%‘3%%&WE'JJ%&E,%%%'
YTERHBEGRODTEL -EFR
E%'Eii?uﬁ*’\ifif‘T\Eﬂﬁiﬁ’%?\é
MBBRERERTNEE -ERRE
BB HREPRFENETAERE
Eﬁéuua&?\ﬁa’ﬁﬁ{’ﬁﬂj°$§%lﬁ%ﬂﬁ
Af R AT RS W EE R HHETE
HIE



32.

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMETIEXERER (FEB)ERAT
Annual Report 2019 —Z — W& F3R 209

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B1 %8 3R & K{ st

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-A=+—8H

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 32. FFERITEEREEES
AND LEASE LIABILITIES
2019 2018
“E-hE —E-N\F
Effective Effective
interest rate Maturity HKS$'000 interest rate Maturity HK$000
BRAE FHA FET B AIE Zl#R FET
Current: nE:
Bank loans - secured ~ HITEF—AHEA  LIBOR+1.75% 2020 84,940 LIBOR+1.75% 2019 54,250
RBRTRE RBBITRE
1 E4+1.75% FE+1.75%
Bank loans - secured  HRITEF-HHEMA LIBOR+1% 2020 139,190 LIBOR+1% 2019 53,568
RBBTRE RARITRE
FE+1% KE+1%
Bank loans - unsecured R 17 E 1 — EH A LIBOR+2% 2020 1,031 LIBOR+2% 2019 12,400
RBRTRE RBBITRE
17 E+2% FE+2%
225,161 120,218
Lease liabilities HEBR 4.14% - 5.25% 2020 5,906 N/A N/A =
TEA TEA
231,067 120,218
Non-current: FRE:
Bank loans - unsecured R 1TE 7 — &K I# N/A N/A - LIBOR+2% 2020 1,031
TEH TEA RERITRE
KE4+2%
Lease liabilities MERME 4.14% - 5.25% 2021 - 2069 314,704 N/A N/A =
TER TiER
314,704 1,031
545,771 121,249
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32. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 32.
AND LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

ARRITEEREERE (&)

2019 2018
—B-AhF —E-N\F
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Analysed into: DA
Bank loans and overdrafts repayable: ARUTEBEEERD
WITERREL
Within one year or on demand —FRHEEK 225,161 120,218
In the second year REZF - 1,031
225,161 121,249
Lease liabilities: ARUTREEEN
MEAE:
Within one year —F RN 5,906 =
In the second year REZF 5,242 =
In the third to fifth years, inclusive RE=ZZFRF
(BRERMF) 17,533 =
Beyond five years B hF 291,929 -
320,610 -
545,771 121,249
Notes: Hiat -
(a) All bank borrowings are denominated in United States (a) FrARITEEYIUNELEE -

dollars.

The Group has granted a continuing security interest in all
assets of CMI and equity interests of certain subsidiaries as

FEEERBECMIFBEEERE THE
REM AR BRI ERIERE

the collaterals of certain bank loans. TFRITEROEFSR -

As at 31 December 2019, CMI had the followings assets: R-_ZE—h&F+=-—_A=+—H8 CMI#%
BTANEE:

2019 2018
—2-nE —B-N\%F
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Property, plant and equipment M - BE MR 319,807 212,176
Right-of-use assets FRERE 317,270 =
Other intangible assets Hibh B & E 1,299,802 1,302,800
Inventories [T 376,842 358,678
Trade receivables BUE 5 ER K 97,449 96,867
Other assets HtEE 54,787 109,999
2,465,957 2,080,520
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DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 33. EHEEMNEE
Continental Motors United Auto Workers Pension RERBEKBSTETIARKESE
Plan (“UAW Pension Plan”) (TUAWER k£ 5T81])
The Group has a defined benefit pension plan. It is a AEBEHETREEIRKRSEE &t
pension plan for the United States employees which gl A HEEEENRKEF S AN
require contributions to be made to a separately BUBERERPIEHER -ZEAERKE
administered fund. This benefit pension plan is funded. e YRS REZFE EBES
Under the plan, the employees are entitled to monthly A WEGRIREF - sk fif it SR Bk
retirement benefits or early or postponed retirement HERARIK - B A WEBUR AT S HE B R
benefits when they have early or postponed retirements R - M 78 32 Ak L b i 1 o
subject to other conditions.
Continental Motors Post-retirement Life & Health REERBERAREBASEETE (A
Plan (“Life & Health Plan”) SRETE
The Group provides certain additional post-employment AEEREHESRESE TEINRIKE
medical and life benefits to employees in the United EERASEN ZERILARES-
States. These benefits are unfunded. Under the plan, RIEZTE BEE B EWEURIKE BEE
the employees are entitled to receive post-employment =Rl
medical benefits.
The actuarial valuations of the present value of the THEEMNECHENBEGEDAH
defined benefit obligations were carried out as at the Newport Group, Inc. (£ EBIFHEHD)
end of each reporting period by Newport Group, Inc., a NEREHRERIEAECEERE R
qualified actuary, using the projected unit credit actuarial BEET.
valuation method.
The principal assumptions used at the end of the RFERRFEANETERIEIIOT :
reporting period are as follows:
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZT-N\F
Discount rate P38 &
UAW Pension Plan UAWIR K & 51 & 2.80% 4.25%
Life & Health Plan AB RS 2.44% 3.88%
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33.

DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 33. EHEENEME (&)
(continued)
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant RIERREFERBRENTEHHE
assumptions at the end of the reporting period is shown AR
below:
Decrease Increase
in defined in defined
Increase benefit Decrease benefit
inrate  obligations inrate  obligations
EEREF EEEF
b EH BEERD N EEEm
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
FET FET
As at 31 December 2019 RZZE-hF
+t=A=t-8
Discount rate Fr|x 1 (6,460) (1) 7,869
As at 31 December 2018 R-ZE-N\F
+=ZA=+-—H
Discount rate e 1 (4,590) (1) 5,789

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined
based on a method that extrapolates the impact on
defined benefit obligations as a result of reasonable
changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period. The sensitivity analysis is based on a
change in a significant assumption, keeping all other
assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis may not be
representative of an actual change in the defined benefit
obligations as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions
would occur in isolation of one another.

ERAGEREDFIRENRERRER
BRERBLECAEEHHETRBNEMEL
FEFHEEMEE - FRELTHER
EFRAREMEBRTENBERA T —RE
RBRRHLE M ETT - BRE DR
RREBBHNEENERRE BZF
BRERONNEBEISERE L -
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DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 33. EHEEMNEE (&)
(continued)
The total expenses recognised as administrative expenses HBEBTERN A EFIBREARRBITH
in the Group's profit or loss in respect of the plans are as EEBRANBRAIOT:
follows:
2019 2018
—F-h#F —T-N\F
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current service cost B 87 AR 755 A A 6,395 3,615
Net interest expense MERZHEE 209 191
Net benefit expenses (note 6) BN FE (Hite) 6,604 3,806
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33. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 33.
(continued)

The movements of the defined benefit obligations and
the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

Defined benefit obligations
EHEBANER

2019 2018

—E-hE ZT-N\F

HKS$'000 HK$'000

EHEENEE (&)

mT

Fair value of plan assets Total
THEENALE EH)
2019 2018 2019 2018

“g-hE “T-NF ZB-AE “FNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000

FET FHET FET FHET FET FHET

At 1 January R—A—A 36,317 - (29,412) - 6,905 -
Pension cost charged to HBRBEMERERE

profit or loss
Current service cost B0 ER R 7% A A 6,395 3,615 - = 6,395 3,615
Net interest expense/(income)  FI BB %,/ (WA ) F5E 1,513 1,258 (1,304) (1,067) 209 191
Sub-total included in FTANBEA/E

profit or loss 7,908 4,873 (1,304) (1,067) 6,604 3,806
Remeasurement losses/ REM2ZEKEAER

(gains) recognised in other B EH it &

comprehensive income BE/ (A
Returns on plan assets HEBERR (TRE

(excluding amounts included AR EFH T FH

in net interest expense) HEH) 1,345 433 (3,777) 2,355 (2,432) 2,788
Actuarial changes arising AOBREZEBEEN

from changes in REZH

demographic assumptions (1,278) (351) = - (1,278) (351)
Actuarial changes arising RHRREYELN

from changes in REZH

financial assumptions 8,957 (3,770) = - 8,957 (3,770)
Sub-total included in other ~ FHAEMEE

comprehensive income Yo By /gt 9,024 (3,688) (3,777) 2,355 5,247 (1,333)
Others Hity
Contribution by employer EEHH - - (3,000) (2,574) (3,000) (2,574)
Benefits paid BRI (793) (690) 793 690 - =
Acquisition of subsidiaries WM B AR

(note 38) (B7#38) = 35,822 = (28,816) = 7,006
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 52,456 36,317 (36,700) (29,412) 15,756 6,905
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DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 33. EHEEBEMNEE (&)
(continued)
The major categories of the fair value of plan assets of UAWRRKR ST EIRNFTEIEEN A TEL
the UAW Pension Plan are as follows: FEHRDMT
2019 2018
—E-NF —F-N\F
HKS'000 HK$000
FET FiET
Equity instruments RATA 18,135 9,452
Debt instruments B TAE 16,417 13,147
Others EAh 2,148 6,813
36,700 29,412
The Group expects to contribute HK$3,246,000 (2018: AREBEAREBEE_ZE_ZEF+_A
HK$3,410,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019) to =+ —BLFEMZLERKRESFTEHRK
pension plans for the year ended 31 December 2020. 3,246,000 7T (ZE— N\F - BENE

E_ET-NE+_A=+—HILFEEH
K A3,410,00057T) ©

Since Life & Health Plan is unfunded, there are no plan HARASRRAEARES WHE=
assets for the disclosure for the Life & Health Plan for Z-hFERZT-NF+ZA=+—H
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. IEEEYEGEASRESSNEE
ERE-
The average duration of the UAW Pension Plan as at RZBE-NFETA=+T—08 UAWR
31 December 2019 is 14 (2018: 15) years. The average KREFENFEHHRAB14F (ZZE—N
duration of the Life & Health Plan as at 31 December F:155) RZE—AF+ZHA=1+—
2019 is 8 (2018: 8) years. H- ASRETENTHEHRA8F (=
T-N\F:8F) -
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34. DEFERRED TAX 34. EIEMHIE
The movements in the Group's deferred tax liabilities REBECHIEEEREERNFAZE
and assets during the year are as follows: EJR G NE
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIEAE
Fair value

adjustments  Accelerated
Revaluation arising from depreciation

of  acquisition and
investment of amortisation
properties subsidiaries tax purposes Total

WEKE  NERAE

RENE LQIELEN REHEHRE
2Eff AVERZ Rz &t
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TET T T T8

At 1 January 2018 RZE-NF—H—H 740 109,559 - 110,299
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to FRNK/ GEA)BREZ

profit or loss during the year ERRIE

- from continuing operations ~-REREGEER

(note 10) (Hiz10) - (41,208) 2,294 (38,914)

- from a discontinued operation —REDRILEEER 436 (873) = (437)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38)  WEENIB AR (#7:238) - 426,792 54,607 481,399
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) HEWBRR (Hi39) (768)  (104,132) = (104,900)
Exchange realignment ERAE (408) (8,362) = (8,770)
At 31 December 2018 and RZE-NE+ZRA=+—H

1 January 2019 RZE-NF—-A—-H - 381,776 56,901 438,677
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to FRNK/ GEA)BREZ

profit or loss during the year BRI (HzF10)

(note 10) - (10,157) 3,441 (6,716)
Exchange realignment ERACES = (2,758) - (2,758)
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZE-NE+ZA=+—H

at 31 December 2019 JERETERBELEE - 368,861 60,342 429,203




34.

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMETIEXERER (FEB)ERAT
Annual Report 2019 —ZF— L FEFR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B1 %8 3R & K{ st

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-A=+—8H

DEFERRED TAX (continued) 34. EERIE (£Z)
The movements in the Group’s deferred tax liabilities AEBECHEAEREERFAZE
and assets during the year are as follows: (continued) BT (&)
Deferred tax assets EERBEEE
Losses
available for
offsetting
against
future Provisions
Provision taxable and other
for LAT profits liabilities Others Total
AR5 8
THEER  ARERR BER
BE BFZER Hit 8 & Hit a5t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2018 R-_E-N&—A—H 7,892 26,656 - - 34,548
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to ~ F R A/ (k) BEFE 2
profit or loss during the year BRI
- from continuing operations ~REBBERLER
(note 10) (Hrit10) - 11,414 (1,395) (49) 9,970
- from a discontinued operation - REBRILEEER - (20) = = (20)
Deferred tax charged to other FANBREMLZE
comprehensive income during Wi 2 BREFE
the year
- from continuing operations ~REBERLER - - - (338) (338)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38) WENB AR (Hi#38) - 97,625 49,290 9,944 156,859
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) HENB AR (A1i239) (7,621) (25,723) = = (33,344)
Exchange realignment ERRE (271) 1,930 - (1) 1,648
At 31 December 2018 and RZE-\F+=-A=+—H
1 January 2019 B-E-h&—F—8 - 111,882 47,895 9,546 169,323
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to ~ EREHA/ (k) BEZ
profit or loss during the year ERBIE (H710)
(note 10) - 3,438 (5,092) 11,642 9,988
Deferred tax credited to other FRFAEMEZE
comprehensive income during Yoz 2 BRFLIR
the year = = = 620 620
Exchange realignment R A% = (535) = = (535)
Gross deferred tax assets at RZE-NFTZA=1—H
31 December 2019 JERREEERE - 114,785 42,803 21,808 179,396
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34. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 34. BEAEBIE (F)
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets RAFEINR ETEEHBEERAR
and liabilities have been offset in the consolidated EREGEMBARRATRPEIM - AT AR
statement of financial position. The following is an EBEEEHBERRVBREREMR
analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group for TED R -

financial reporting purposes:

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised 4R E& BT ISk 0 R R
in the consolidated statement of BERIBAEFE
financial position (249,807) (269,354)
At 31 December 2019, the Group also had tax losses RZE—h&F+_A=+—8 ~%£H
arising in Mainland China of HK$1,565,000 (2018: £ 7 B i 2= A 2 B IR B 811,565,000
HK$13,141,000) that would expire in one to five years Bt (ZZF—/)\F 13,141,000 7T ) A]
for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred M—ZhFANREERHERRERT R
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these FlemRZEBEERERFEATLIREBE
losses as they have arisen in the companies that have Z AR MAXTRAAEEHR ERT &
been loss-making for some time and it is not considered FIAEEN R BB B8 - Bt I M R R
probable that taxable profits will be available against EFIEE EE ©

which the tax losses can be utilised.
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DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For
the Group, the applicable rates range from 5% to 10%.
The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, no deferred tax has
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject to
withholding taxes of the Group's subsidiaries established
in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors, it is
not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such
earnings in the foreseeable future. As at 31 December
2019, the aggregate amount of temporary differences
of approximately HK$4,133,000 (2018: HK$32,731,000)
was associated with investments in subsidiaries in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities had not
been recognised.

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

34.
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ELERE (&)

RIEP EERERE - 729 B A K
MZMNETERINRREETRZEE
BEI0%EBNB -ZHRAER=ZTZTN
F-A—BABEMR BAR-ZTLF
TZA=+—H%EZWE MR E R
HANRIZEE 2 RVERRET BB KB
T RAIRAREZBINRE - HAK
Eims #ANEA%E10% - AEH
ESNiE Y=Y ee sl el b s v 3= PN Fy
BT N\F—A—BRBREAZWREM
DR Z IR B AYETEIIF -

RZE-—NFRZIZE-NF+ZA
=+—H UERAEETFERHAK
YZWEB AR AHMENE 2 RE S
Wes TN 2 BB HRETERIE - &
ERB ZENBRRATKEENRE
KR RZERF - N -_ZE—NF+ = A
=+—HB - ERRRPREAZHEA
RIZREARZEERBEREZBREE
AR B4,133,0008 0 (ZE— N
F 132,731,000/ 7T ) °

ARRAFRBRRIKEZBEHAEHME

B2 488
FEo
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35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. BAK
Shares & 12
2019 2018
—F-h#F —T-N\F
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Authorised: JETE
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 10,000,000,000% & A%
HK$0.10 each H{E0.10/8 T 2 & il A% 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRER:
9,303,374,783 ordinary shares of 9,303,374,783 T
HK$0.10 each F{E0.10/8 T 2 T i A% 930,337 930,337
A summary of movements in the Company’s share RARBRASBBM T
capital is as follows:
Number of Share
shares Share premium
in issue capital account Total
2R
RAEE RA& BB REER =X
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET
At 1 January 2018 R-_F-NE—H—H 5,519,591,000 551,959 609,080 1,161,039
Issue of shares (note) RIRG (H152) 3,783,783,783 378,378 1,248,649 1,627,027
At 31 December 2018, RZE-N\FE+ZA
1 January 2019 and =t+-HB-ZF-N%F
31 December 2019 —A—BRZT-NEF
+-A=+-H 9,303,374,783 930,337 1,857,729 2,788,066
Note: Kiat -
On 7 February 2018, 3,783,783,783 new shares of the Company RZZE—-NFZAtH" 3,783,783,783 K
were issued as fully paid to AVIC International (HK) Group Limited AAFRONEBREEITTHREERIGF M

("AVIC International (HK) Group”),

an intermediate holding

company, as part of the consideration for the acquisition as detailed

in note 38 to the financial statements. The fair value of these shares
was HK$1,627,027,000 which had been measured based on the
listed share price of HK$0.43 on that date. Accordingly, the issued

share capital and share premium account of the Company had been
increased by HK$378,378,000 and HK$1,248,649,000, respectively.

ER(EB)SEERARA([FMER(F
BIEE]) ERMBHRERMAISHFM 2
WEEEZBORE-ZLERO2ATER
1,627,027,0008 7t NEREXRLTRES
fRO43B LA E - Fit  ARABEEITRA
AR5 @ E K5 B M378,378,000% 7t &
1,248,649,0007% 7T °
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting held on 28 May 2014,
the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme"”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants to contribute to the
business development and growth of the Group and
to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre employees
and attract or retain human resources that are valuable
to the Group. Since the adoption of the Scheme, no
options have been granted, exercised, lapsed, cancelled
or outstanding thereunder as at 31 December 2019.

Major terms of the Scheme include:

1. The purpose of the Scheme is to provide
incentives to the participants.

2. The participants of the Scheme are any individual
being employees, officers or consultants of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries including
any executive or non-executive directors thereof
whether employed in Hong Kong or any part of
the world.

36.
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Major terms of the Scheme include: (continued)

The total number of shares of the Company (the
“Shares”) which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Scheme,
together with all options to be granted under
any other share option schemes of any member
of the Group, must not in aggregate represent
more than 10% of the total number of the
Shares in issue as at the date of adoption of the
Scheme. The Company may refresh this 10%
limit at any time subject to prior approval given
by its shareholders at a general meeting. The
overall limit on the total number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme, together with all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under any other
share option schemes of any member of the
Group, must not exceed 30% of the total number
of the Shares in issue from time to time. No
options may be granted under the Scheme and
any other share option schemes of any member
of the Group if such grant will result in the said
30% limit being exceeded. As at the date of
this annual report, the total number of securities
available for issue under the Scheme was
461,959,100 Shares, representing approximately
4.97% of the total number of the Shares in issue
as at the date of this annual report.

36.
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Major terms of the Scheme include: (continued)

The total number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options (whether
exercised, cancelled or outstanding) granted or to
be granted under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company to each eligible
participant under the Scheme in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number
of the Shares in issue as at the proposed grant
date.

An option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the Scheme at any time during a
period of 10 years commencing on the date
which the Board may determine at its discretion
but such date shall not be earlier than three
months after the date of the grant of such option
is made.

An option granted shall remain open for
acceptance by eligible participants for a period
of 28 days from the date of the grant of such
option together with a non-refundable payment
of HK$1.00.

36.

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-A=+—8H

BRESE (F)

ZAT B2 EBIERBIE: (&)

4. RERTEABEETERE
A& at & B A A BT H A B A
BB R RZTEIR &R
ERMSEERLZBRE (TR
BT EEHIHKRTE)M
BIRBTRERITZIENERE T
FHRAEBER L BHMEHITRN
%@%5(210/0 °

5. BRI RIRE & 2 RFRN B
ExgRBEENEH (HEHE
WABTFEREEBRER N
BH®=EA) L+ FHEA
BERSTTIE

6. BB AR & H A #1828 H
HREANESIHABER2EER
0 0 7832 A A AT AR B 5R81.00
BT

223



224

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMZE TEERER (F8)EBRAT
Annual Report 2019 =& — [ FEFR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 %8 3R R Hf 5T

31 December 2019 —ZT—AF+=-A=+—H

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Major terms of the Scheme include: (continued)

7. The exercise price of an option shall be the
highest of:

(a)

(@)

the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
on the date of the grant of the option,
which must be a business day;

the average of the closing prices of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of
the grant (subject to acceptance) of the
option; and

the nominal value of the Shares.

8. The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing on 28 May

2014 and thereafter for as long as there are

outstanding options granted and accepted

pursuant thereto prior to the expiration of the

said 10-year period and in order to give effect to

the exercise of any such options.

Share options did not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

At the end of the reporting period and at the date of

approval of these financial statements, there were no

share options outstanding (2018: Nil).
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RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 86 to 89 of this annual report.

Pursuant to the articles of association of certain
subsidiaries operating as foreign-owned enterprises in
Mainland China and the relevant PRC Company Law,
the subsidiaries shall make an allocation from their
profit after tax at the rate of 10% to the statutory
surplus reserve fund, until such reserve reaches 50%
of the registered capital of the subsidiaries. Part of
the statutory surplus reserve may be capitalised as
the subsidiaries’ registered capital, provided that the
remaining balance after the capitalisation is not less than
25% of the registered capital of the subsidiaries. The
statutory reserve will be reclassified to retained profits
upon the disposal of the subsidiaries.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 7 February 2018, the Group completed the
acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Motto
and the shareholder’s loan notes (the "“Acquisition”)
from AVIC International (HK) Group at an aggregate
nominal consideration of HK$2,400,000,000, of which
HK$1,400,000,000 was satisfied by way of allotment
and issue of 3,783,783,783 shares of the Company,
HK$200,000,000 was satisfied by cash at the acquisition
date and the remaining HK$800,000,000 was to be
satisfied by cash upon the earlier of the following
events: (i) the Company having received the proceeds
from the disposal of its property development and
investment business, resulting in the Company having a
net cash balance of more than HK$800,000,000; and (ii)
the Company having a net cash balance of more than
HK$800,000,000. The payment of HK$800,000,000 was
finally made at the end of 2018. Further details of the
Acquisition were included in the circular of the Company
dated 29 December 2017.

37.
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Motto Investment Limited and its subsidiaries (“Motto

38. ¥EXKE6t(£2)

Motto Investment Limited 5 E Ffi B A &
([Mottos [ |) RUKEEE B TR &

Group”) as at the date of acquisition were as follows: ERBEZAFERT:
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
Uit B s T T 3R
B AFE
HK$'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment (note 74) M BREMERE (At 14) 320,445
Other intangible assets (note 18) EMEREE (#:%18) 1,842,405
Investment in a joint venture BRENBIZ®’E 1,062
Inventories FE 571,852
Trade and other receivables FE UL E 5) BR 3k K H th B UK BR 5Kk 121,303
Due from fellow subsidiaries A EEY NG 30,024
Prepayments TEUR SR IE 41,896
Cash and cash equivalents RekReE 73,920
Trade payables, other payables and accruals ENESER  EMEMEZRNESER (191,534)
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings HEERKEE (51,925)
Contract liabilities BHEE (35,704)
Provisions and other liabilities (note 37) BERAEMEE (HE31) (120,435)
Due to an intermediate holding company FET R BRI A A (28,087)
Due to fellow subsidiaries FENT R RH B AR (14,198)
Loan from an intermediate holding company REFEERABHER (1,845,561)
Tax payable FET B IR (3,658)
Defined benefit obligations (note 33) FERBEMNET (HiE33) (7,006)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 34) BB AGE (W it34) (324,540)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BAFEEFENAENEEFESR 380,259
Shareholder’s loan notes acquired WEZBRREREE 1,845,561
Goodwill on acquisition (note 17) W mEmE (Kit17) 401,207
Total consideration BB 2,627,027

Satisfied by: XA

Cash consideration BeRE 1,000,000
Fair value of consideration shares REKRHD 2 RFE 1,627,027

2,627,027
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BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 38. XK&EH(EF)
The fair value of the trade and other receivables as at JEWE SR R HEMEWRRN K EE
the date of acquisition amounted to HK$121,303,000. B~ AF{E5121,303,0005 7T ° & U
The gross contractual amount of trade and other BIRAREMBURRERNESHOEE
receivables was HK$126,906,000, of which trade and /3126,906,0007% jT * H #5,603,000/%
other receivables of HK$5,603,000 were expected to be JC ) B IR E 2 AR SR N o e U AR SR TR HA
uncollectible. AU [E] -
The Group incurred transaction costs for the Acquisition AEERUBESTEEENIINER
of HK$28,694,000. These transaction costs were 28,694,000 L - ZERXRFHMALE X
expensed and were included in administrative expenses H WERGEBEREANIMETHRE R
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. BA-
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be FEHERRAPMERMEHRMmMS T A
deductible for income tax purposes. e
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the HBEEBEFELHNRSRAONOT
Acquisition is as follows:
HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration paid Xz ReERE (1,000,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FrEEmRe MRS EE 73,920
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents REE-_ZE—-—N\F+=ZA=+—H1E
included in cash flows from investing activities FEJAKRBEFSHZ2EEREZ
for the year ended 31 December 2018 RekREEERLFAE (926,080)
Transaction costs of the Acquisition included REBEE_ZE—t+tFR_F—N\F
in cash flows from operating activities FTZA=+—HIEFEIA
for the years ended 31 December 2017 and REZHHREREZKBEEE
2018 R B (28,694)
(954,774)
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 38.

Since the Acquisition, Motto Group contributed
HK$1,341,223,000 to the Group’s revenue and
HK$84,773,000 to the consolidated loss for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of
the year ended 31 December 2018, the revenue from
continuing operations of the Group and the loss for that
year from continuing operations of the Group would
have been HK$1,483,590,000 and HK$137,223,000,
respectively.

EBast(£E)

WHEEEE MottoE B AAEENE
BT N\F+_AZ+HILEEHR
AU 251,341,223,0005%8 7T M fr A& B 18
84,773,000 7T °

HEHRBEE—"Z—N\F+_A=+—
BEFERABET AIREAKH
FEREXBZZFRENKRBEAE
BRELEEB cBERAUSHER
1,483,590,000/% 7T &% 137,223,000/%8
5T o
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39. DISPOSAL/DEREGISTRATION OF 39. HE FHHBLF
SUBSIDIARIES
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Net assets disposed of: HECZEEFHE:
Investment properties (note 15) WEWE (Hit15) - 357,714
Properties under development and BERPMERFELE
completed properties held for sale 2 BT - 2,972,892
Prepayments, deposits and TENFIE ' RHEM
other receivables & W BR 3Kk - 55,550
Prepaid taxes B RIA - 25,157
Cash and cash equivalents BekBeEE - 7,504
Due to non-controlling shareholders FE AT BT B A R 2 FE IR AR
of subsidiaries fi% == - (127,621)
Due to an intermediate holding FE P BRI A A
company - (7,708)
Loans from the immediate holding REEEERARNER
company
— shareholder’s loans —ERER - (1,312,458)
Due to the immediate holding ENEEERRA A
company — accrued interests —EETF B - (90,569)
Due to fellow subsidiaries FERH R R B A A - (1,147)
Loans from a non-controlling REMB AR IEER
shareholder of a subsidiary R E = - (830,219)
Trade payables FET & 5 BR K = (94,401)
Other payables and accruals HEiEMAERARLETER - (19,613)
Contract liabilities eHamE = (349,991)
Tax payable B RLIR - (43,965)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 34) BB EE (K iE34) - (71,556)
Non-controlling interests FEFERR M A = (482,897)
= (13,328)
Outstanding shareholder’s loans and & REERR
interests disposed of BT B - 1,403,027
Exchange fluctuation reserve ME 5 Eh (1,721) 114,803
(1,721) 1,504,502
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & W B A Bl 2 F
(note 11) (Krat11) = 660,550
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary ~ FES5 T B A & 2 | H
(note 5) (H#Es5) 1,721 —
= 2, I65Y052
Satisfied by: S
Cash (note) Be (Hit) - 24654050
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39. DISPOSAL/DEREGISTRATION OF 39. HE FHEMELR (F)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash FHALEMNBEARMNRERREZER
equivalents in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as NFESFAT:
follows:
2019 2018
ZE-NF —E-N\F
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET F#ET
Cash consideration (note) RERE (HiE) - 2,165,052
Cash and bank balances disposed of FrHEcRe RRITHETT = (7,504)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents BEEENE AT HNE S KL
in respect of the disposal of ReEFEMRAFE
subsidiaries - 2,157,548
Note: In the prior year, the amount included cash consideration Wi X HeEeRBHEREEBEET
for the disposal of the entire issued share capital of Ease A& AN K9 35 & K 1B762,025,0007% 7T + A
Triumph of HK$762,025,000, and for the outstanding MAEEREERRREERFSHIE
shareholder's loans and interests on the shareholder's loans £ X181,403,027,000% 7T °
of HK$1,403,027,000.
At the time of the disposal of Ease Triumph in the EFHERER BEFRBARERME
prior year, the purchaser, Shengtong, was an indirectly SEBERARMHEEZENBLAA F
wholly-owned subsidiary of Hengda Real Estate Group EMBERAEABTEAERARISO%ME BT
Company Limited, which held 80% of the issued share B AERRKEMEEEBRAF
capital of Hangfa Investment Limited and therefore was (BREHEBS2.08%EEMMNEB AR
a substantial shareholder of KEMEZTEGFR AT, a WEZRF-BBELTHRA HEEK
52.08% owned subsidiary of Ease Triumph. The disposal AARMBARIEAMNBERS -
constituted a connected transaction at subsidiary level of
the Company under the Listing Rules.
During the year, the Group deregistered CATIC FR-ARNEETHP M E AR

Helicopter Development (Shenzhen) Limited. B ORIDBRAR



40.

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMETIEXERER (FEB)ERAT

Annual Report 2019 —ZF— L FEFR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B1 %8 3R & K{ st

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-A=+—8H

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

(b)

40. HERERERKTE

Major non-cash transaction (@ EE#RAEXRSH
During the year, the Group had non-cash FA-AEBEEHE LM -EF
additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities RABHERHE 2 FRAEE
of HK$290,824,000 and HK$290,824,000, ELAERBEMIERSBM
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for Al /&290,824,000% 7T &
land and buildings and motor vehicles (2018: Nil). 290,824,000t (Z & — N\
Fom)o
Changes in liabilities arising from b) MEITBFRELENEEEED
financing activities
2019 —E-hEF
Interest- Due to
bearing intermediate
bank Lease holding
borrowings liabilities companies
HERT B
BE HEAE BRAF
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FET FET FET
At 31 December 2018 RZFE—N\F
+-A=+-—H 121,249 - 28,815
Effect of adoption of BB AT BRELA
HKFRS 16 FI6HNTE — 35,091 -
At 1 January 2019 (restated) R—_ZE—AF—F—H
(&27%)) 121,249 35,091 28,815
Changes from RERERELE
financing cash flows 100,146 (5,295) 812
New leases HHE - 290,824 -
Foreign exchange movement ) [ % - (10) (1,781)
Interest expense FBELZH 3,766 7,014 -
Interest paid classified as DERREREREN
operating cash flows ERFE - (7,014) -
At 31 December 2019 RZFE—NF
+ZA=+—H 225,161 320,610 27,846
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40.

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 40. FERETRERMWE (&)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
Changes in liabilities arising from b) RMETBFEENEEEH
financing activities (continued) (%)
2018 —E2-N\F
Loans
from a
fellow
subsidiary/
Loans non-  Due to non-
Interest- from an controlling controlling Due to
bearing intermediate  shareholder  shareholders intermediate Due to
bank holding of a of holding fellow
borrowings company subsidiary  subsidiaries companies  subsidiaries
PELES
WBAR/
REHE WERR fEft
FERT BRRAM HER  WBRRZ JEf e ERR %
B8 ER RERMER  FERER 2O MERA
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
T THET TET TET FHET AT
At January 2018 R-F-\F-A—A - 503550 923,077 138,852 16,681 5,492
Changes from financing BERSRER
cash flows 69,324 (486,285) (50,740) (4,896) (7,484) (18,304)
Foreign exchange movement ANEE £ = (17,265) (42,118) (6,335) (761) (239)
Interest expense Flax i 3,279 15,461 5 42,163 6,948 -
Interest paid ERFIE (3.279) (15,461) - (42,163) (6,948) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBAT 51,925 = = = 28,087 14,198
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBR R - - (830219 (127,621) (7,708) (1,147)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+=A=1+-A 121,249 = = = 28,815 =
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40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 40. HFEBSRERME (&)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HERETRHARE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the AR ERERNEERESRD
statement of cash flows is as follows: EEELNT
2019
ZE-hF
HKS’'000
FET
Within operating activities LEEEN (8,749)
Within financing activities BMEEBN (5,295)
(14,044)
41. COMMITMENTS 41. &iE
(a) The Group had the following capital (@ AEERBEHREUATER
commitments at the end of the reporting AR
period:
2019 2018
—ER-NF —E-N\F
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FrET FET
Contracted, but not provided for: 2 5] 418 i K B 45 -
Plant and machinery 5% 55 Mo 1 23 132,077 158,015




234

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMZE TEERER (F8)EBRAT
Annual Report 2019 =& — [ FEFR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 %8 3R R Hf 5T

31 December 2019 —ZT—AF+=-A=+—H

41. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b)

Operating lease commitments as at 31
December 2018

The Group leased certain of its offices, factories
and cars under operating lease arrangements.
Leases for offices, factories and cars are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to
seventy-five years.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

41. FRIE(E)

b R=F-NF+=A=+-§
R IEEHEAE
ARERBEEBERHAEE
TERAZ BERER MO
= BB REWEL N
NF—FEL+AF-

R-ZBE-NF+-HA=+—8"
RETAHELEHE A&E
B ZARBEORIENKAED
HIERE T

2018

—E—-N\F

HK$°000

FHET

Within one year —FR 5,402
In the second to fifth years, F_EFERF (BREEEWTE)

inclusive 16,066

After five years AF1% 47,554

69,022
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 42. BEEARS
(@) In addition to the transactions described (a) BB ERISBEMMILZZ SN
elsewhere in these financial statements, the REBRFERNDEITATEE S

Group had the following transactions with related 5

parties during the year:

2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\F
Notes HKS’'000 HK$'000
B &t FET FET
Interest income on loans to  [A/B & A AR A E R
an associate 2 M BEWA (i) 541 787
Interest expense on loans  2RE KB AR Z IEZER
from a non-controlling BEREBHERZ
shareholder of a subsidiary F & 5% &} (i) = (42,163)
Interest expense on loans KRB HFEIER A FH
from an intermediate ERZMEXH
holding company (iii) - (22,409)
Fellow subsidiaries: CESP=PNGIE
Sale of products SHEEm (iv) 185,487 159,254
Purchase of products HKEER (iv) (256) (147)
Service income R 75 U A (v) 798 1,582
Notes: Htat -
0) Details of the loans to an associate are set out in (i) MEENEIRENERZHFS
note 20 to the financial statements. B B 5 R 3R M 5220 o
(ii) In the prior year, the interest expense was charged (ii) RF REFEeER KB WE
on the loans from a non-controlling shareholder of RElZEERBRENERGTE
a subsidiary at 6% per annum. MEZH -
(iii) In the prior year, the interest expense was charged (iii) KF RFEFEeEHKEF
on the loans from an intermediate holding company FAERARNERTER X
at 6% per annum. i o
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 42. BEEAIRS
(@)  (continued) (a) (%)
Notes: (continued) Biat: (48)

(iv)

The sales to and purchases from fellow subsidiaries
are determined between the Group and the fellow
subsidiaries.

The service income from fellow subsidiaries is
determined between the Group and the fellow
subsidiaries.

(iv)

RIEESGIENGEE k- Y =]
CES 1= PNGIEEAS DEEE RN S
BEFARNBAREE -

KA R RN E DR RBEEA
DlASEERRNEARE
=

(b)  Other transactions with related parties: (b) B T EMR 5
(i) In the prior year, the Group disposed (i) EF - AEEE@MFME
of its entire 40% equity interests in an HEAERBE RFIR
associate, b R F4& F Fto CATIC for F I8 F BI40% AR - IR
a cash consideration of RMB3,839,000 £ (83,839,000t AR
(equivalent to HK$4,388,000). Further ¥ (8 E 74,388,000/
details are included in note 20 to the To) o #E— S EFIFH R
financial statements. B FMIEE20 -
(i) In the prior year, the Group completed the (i) EF AEFEBFBER
Acquisition from AVIC International (HK) NAEIFMBEIER (F8)%E
Group, an intermediate holding company, BT EEIR AHE
at an aggregate nominal consideration 8 /&2,400,000,000
of HK$2,400,000,000. Further details TLoE— HRIBHN I
are included in note 38 to the financial & MIFE38 °
statements.
(c) Outstanding balances with related parties: () BB 2 RBEEH

(i) Details of the Group's balance with a joint (i) AEBEHEEGERANER
venture are disclosed in note 19 to the ZH BRI ERERMFE19
financial statements. = o

(i) Details of the Group's balances with an (i) RE BB 2 N B &5k

associate are disclosed in note 20 to the
financial statements.

2 SR BH S MR 320
o
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 42. BEMERS (&)
(continued)
(c) Outstanding balances with related parties: () HEM AT 2R EESEH: (&)
(continued)
(i)  Details of the Group's balances with (i) AEBHEPBZERAFZ
intermediate holding companies are BRI B HREN
disclosed in note 28 to the financial FE28 7 EE o
statements.
(iv)  Details of the Group's balances with fellow (iv) ZAEBERBRMBAFZ
subsidiaries are disclosed in note 24 to the B BRI B HREM
financial statements. FE24% 75
(d)  Compensation of key management personnel of (d AEBXZEEEKE ZHRI:
the Group:
2019 2018
—EB-NF —E-)N\F
HKS'000 HK$000
FET FET
Short term employee benefits EHE B A 2,561 2,067
Post-employment benefits EREEN 24 24
Total compensation paid to key SN EBEEEXKEZ
management personnel i 48 58 2,585 2,091
Further details of directors’ emoluments are FRESMe 2 E—FPHBIR
included in note 8 to the financial statements. BRI FES -
The sale of products in respect of item(a)(iv) above also BN @B ZHEEMITEK L
constitutes continuing connected transactions as defined MIRANFUAEFMEEZFEBEBER
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. 5o
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43.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 43. @I AESH
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of REEHR SR zeMITAREE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting N
period are as follows:
2019 —E—hE
Financial assets MBEE
Financial
assets at
Financial fair value
Financial assets at through
assets at fair value other
amortised through  comprehensive
cost  profit or loss income Total
EDYE
REBHE K EOYE FAH4ZE
FIRM  FABRZ ¢
BKEE BBEE BBEE &%
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FET FET FET
Equity investments designated at RAVTEFAHEMZE
fair value through other Wz RARE
comprehensive income = = 34,430 34,430
Financial assets at fair value BRATEFABRL
through profit or loss NBEE - 1,938 - 1,938
Trade receivables EUE 5 BT 103,672 - - 103,672
Due from fellow subsidiaries R GEENE 20,011 - - 20,011
Due from an associate JFE L Bt 2 1,093 - - 1,093
Loans to an associate AN AIRENER 8,889 - - 8,889
Financial assets included in FABRNKE RER
prepayments, deposits and H fth [ U BR 3R
other receivables BEE 19,818 - - 19,818
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeE@E 990,386 - - 990,386
1,143,869 1,938 34,430 1,180,237
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 43. £®TASE (&)

(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting T (4E)

period are as follows: (continued)

2019 (continued)

Financial liabilities

—E-NEF (&)
MBEE

RBESHR SR zeBTAREE

Financial

liabilities at

amortised cost

12 8 85 A AR

SR

BEaE

HKS’000

FET

Due to an intermediate holding company FET R EER AT 27,846
Trade payables JETTE 5 AR5 85,219
Other payables and accruals HiENERR R ETEA 86,111
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFRIRITEE 225,161
Lease liabilities HERE 320,610
744,947
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43.

hNE+-A=+—H

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

43. 2B IESE (&)

(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RBERR SEANceRm T AREE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting LU (/E)
period are as follows: (continued)
2018 —E-N\F
Financial assets MKEE
Financial
assets at
Financial fair value
assets at through other
amortised  comprehensive
cost income Total
REHEKA  RAFERA
51| B Hip 2wz
HBEE 2T ERE I
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T & T#ET
Equity investments designated ~ ZAFEAEMEE
at fair value through other Was 2 IR A E
comprehensive income - 54,031 54,031
Trade receivables & E 5 BN 102,711 - 102,711
Due from fellow subsidiaries B NG 29,566 = 29,566
Due from an associate JE Y Bk & A A 575 - 575
Loans to an associate M E N ERENER 9,143 = 9,143
Financial assets included in SAAENFIE Rk
prepayments, deposits and H e i BR 3R 8
other receivables MBEE 36,560 = 36,560
Cash and cash equivalents RehREEE 1,191,575 = 1,191,575
1,370,130 54,031 1,424,161




43.

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMETIEXERER (FEB)ERAT
Annual Report 2019 —Z — h FF 7R

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B1 %8 3R & K{ st

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY  43.

(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows: (continued)

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-A=+—8H

ERMITEDE (&)

REEBR SBR e TAREE
T (4E)

2018 (continued) —E-N\FE (&)
Financial liabilities MgasE

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
g IS IDWIN
HI| R &Y
M5 aE
HK$'000
FET
Due to intermediate holding companies FET R EER AT 28,815
Trade payables JENE ZER 90,152
Other payables and accruals HAbE R R IERTE A 106,822
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFRIRITEE 121,249
347,038
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44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY  44.
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s
financial instruments, other than those with carrying

EMTAZAFERAFESER

B E

AEEERMTAZERERAFE(H
FREESEAFEAEREERIN) &I

amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are W
as follows:
Carrying amounts Fair values
REE DFE
2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-nF ZF-N\F ZB-RF ZTN\F
HKS'000 HK$°000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FET T FHET T
Financial assets M¥EE
Equity investments designated & AFEFAEMEE
at fair value through other Wz RARE
comprehensive income 34,430 54,031 34,430 54,031
Financial assets at fair value & AFEFABZRZ
through profit or loss B EE 1,938 = 1,938 =
36,368 54,031 36,368 54,031
Financial liabilities BaE
Interest-bearing bank ARBITEE
borrowings (JEREEH)
(non-current portion) = 1,031 = 1,031
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of
trade receivables, balances with fellow subsidiaries,
intermediate holding companies and an associate,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade
payables, other payables and accruals and interest-
bearing bank borrowings (current portion) approximate
to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

The Group's finance department headed by the chief
financial officer is responsible for determining the
policies and procedures for the fair value measurement
of financial instruments. At each reporting date, the
finance department analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed
and approved by the chief financial officer and then
reported to the chief executive officer. The valuation
process and results are discussed with the audit
committee twice a year for interim and annual financial
reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

44.

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-A=+—8H

EMITAZAFERAFESER
HE (&

ERENEERA BRESRNK
FARMBAR REZRAR B
RZ &R FTARMKE Be kA
BREROMBEE REeRALS
B~ FEAH R 5 8RR o B A BR SR R JE
AHEM - AR BRITEE ORBHH)
ZRFERREAZEABRE 8
RERZSTAREHNEIS-

\

<

5

MM GREREZ AKE MR
AEEERMTAQATVEFEZBERE
F-RBERS A KBTS
MTANBEEDHIEEHETER
MEIE2E-AEHMBRERZIM
MBS TTRER -HEBEER
EREBFMRN I R FE R B RS
HEZREQETIW-

MBEERBEZAFEFABR(M
FEERBREE)RXZETRERNR
ZHUEMTAZEEA -
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44.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of interest-bearing bank borrowings
(non-current portion) have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on
quoted market prices, except for PMH’s shares, which
have been estimated based on PMH’s available published
financial information. The directors believe that the
estimated fair values resulting from the valuation
technique, which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and the related changes
in fair values, which are recorded in other comprehensive
income, are reasonable, and that they were the most
appropriate values at the end of the reporting period.

The Group invested in certain unlisted equity and debt
investments. The Group has estimated the fair value
of these unlisted equity and debt investments with
reference to the issued prices of recent transactions.

44,

EMITAZAFERAFESER
HE (&
R AT ES  SEATIAXRE

=L .

ax -

AAERITEE GERE M) NAFE
DR AR ROEK  FEER R R RERF
Hlz TARITA B2 M ERITRBHARE

ReRnEstH-

FARARE Z AFETIAMKRTERE
RER EXTEZERZBRDERIN B
TIRBRTEZEBRAIAZE TEMBE
HERFT -EFERE SEMBHRAER
RSk REERMAEEZ A FERRE
Ht2E KRS AL A FEHRBE

TEAE RBEMR HEEZRAR

=h
=

REEEEETRIELTRARBHR
& ARESEAMT HOBTERY
ZEI P HRARBEERENATEE
gt
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs
to the valuation of financial instruments together with a
guantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2019
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44, EWMTEACAFERAFEER
HE (&
UNTAR-E—HER-T—\F+=
A=+ B4R IAGBBEZESATAE

REABBERTERAREZHTE

and 2018: 2.
Significant
Valuation unobservable Sensitivity of fair value
technique input Range to the input
BRFABE DNREHEARE
fEER WABE gE ZHRE
Unlisted equity Market Issued prices HK$40 1% (2018: 1%) increase/
investment approach of recent (2018: HK$40) decrease in issued prices of
transactions recent transactions would
result in increase/decrease in
fair value by HK$4,000 (2018:
HK$4,000)
FETRAKE mi5E MM SHETE 4B T(ZT—N\F: AHXHHETEEM HD1%
40/ 7T) (ZE-N\F:1%)BBHAR
FE M, 54,0008 7T (=
Z— \F :4,00087T)
Unlisted debt Market Yield rate 7% 1% (2018: Nil) increase/decrease
investment approach (2018: Nil) in yield rate would result in
decrease/increase in fair value
by HK$169,000/ HK$185,000
(2018: Nil/Nil)
FLTEBRE 5% Iy 21 7% (ZZ—NF: &) WEEEM/ BP1% (ZF—N

£ E)BERATERDE
$1169,0007% 7T,185,0007% 7T
(ZB-NE:&/&)
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44.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 44.

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial
instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

D ESRFE
TRINTAEECHIAEZAFEAE

F

LAFEFABZEE:

Fair value measurement using

ERAUNTREETAVENE

EMTREZAFERAFESERH
HE (&)

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RERM S EATEE BEAFTAUHBE
HERE WABE WABE
(B—%) (B=&) (E=8) &t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
FET FET FET FE
As at 31 December 2019 RZ-ZE—hE
+t=A=+—-8”
Equity investments BATER AR
designated at fair ZHEHKHEZ
value through other A% E
comprehensive income 34,041 = 389 34,430
Financial assets at fair value It A FEFFABZEZ
through profit or loss MEEE - - 1,938 1,938
34,041 = 2,327 36,368
As at 31 December 2018 R=-ZE—N\E
+t=A=+—-8”
Equity investments BATEG AEM
designated at fair ZHEHKHZ
value through other PR AR E
comprehensive income 53,642 - 389 54,031
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 44.
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for financial assets (2018:

Nil).

The movements in fair value measurements within Level

3 during the year are as follows:

EMTAZAFERLFESER

HE (&
AVEERHE (%)
FR-BHEEENATEAELEES

— &
et

FR

ME_R2EER  TEEALRE
ZR(ZE-NF 8-

ESRATHEIENSBMT

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—N\F
HKS'000 HK$°000
FETT FET
Equity investments designated BATEFAEMEE
at fair value through other a2 AR E —JE LT
comprehensive income — unlisted:
At 1 January n—H—H 389 =
Addition 30 - 389
At 31 December B+=—A=+—H 389 389
Financial assets at fair value EAFEFAEBRZ
through profit or loss: BB E
At 1 January Rn—H—H - 82,348
Addition 2 1,938 =
Redemption & [l - (51,775)
Total losses recognised in profit or loss BN IESHERKNEIBEEE = (30,573)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 1,938 =
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured R-ZE—NWEFER_ZFE—NEF+=A
at fair value as at 31 December 2019 and 2018. =+ —HB AKEVEFAIZRFER
ENHKAaGE-
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44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 44. £€RITEZAFERAFEER

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) HE (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AP EEREE (&)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: EREAFTEZEE:

Fair value measurement using
ERATSERTATENE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

RERME  EAAUBRE EANATEER
H) (B BARE BARE

(B—%) (B=#&) (B=8) &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FAET
As at 31 December 2018 R=-ZT—N\&
+=ZB=+-H
Interest-bearing bank HERITEE
borrowings (JERBEH)

(non-current portion) - 1,031 - 1,031
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing bank borrowings, lease liabilities, cash
and short term deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities, such as trade receivables and trade

payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

As most of the Group's business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in the functional
currencies of the operating units, the Group’s exposure
to foreign currency risk is minimal.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk relates
principally to the Group’s interest-bearing bank
borrowings as disclosed in note 32 to the financial
statements. The Group mitigates the risk by monitoring
closely the movements in interest rates and reviewing its
banking facilities regularly.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-
rate bank borrowings at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of
liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis point
increase or decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

45.

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-A=+—8H

MEERERERFERBEEK

AEENTECHITAREABRITE
E HEaERASREMESR - LT
TRTANTIEAZERAKENZE
IR - NERE IR S B A H A I 75
BENBE DIEKE SRR NERN
BHRR NEEREZEMEL-

AEMNLBTAREENETRARR

SNERB - RS EERR KB
ARERERR EEECBRLMAE

ERUSEBOBE AN -

SN LR

MR AEENARAEBRS AER

BEHTIENEEELZEES
#'Ilitzliéﬂ%lﬁfr A B SN EE R B AR
&

=@ B

AEBETZAZAEERPERERME
2R BRI AT BRITIEE AR 2 F XA
R AEEBBTNERMNEREEHNE
HIZEMERTEERE RERRAR -

AT ED N HIRRN R EHRT R
RITEENMNEZARMETE -"EEH

AR DBRRNBEHRAEENEE
THERNEEAFEYRERE -ABRER
BB R B RN R E g R AN IE sk
HWMAI00EH BEE B TRKREEE
Frat s 2 MR S IE T gE &
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45.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45, BiIEEAREEEEREE (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued) FZE b (&)
Decrease/
(increase)
in loss
before tax
Increase/ from Increase/
(decrease) in continuing (decrease)
basis points operations in equity*
REEE
REHEK Y
BEgwm MRBAIEE M
(B2) ®WL, (Em) (R2) *
HKS'000 HKS'000
FETT FET
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZTB—h%F
+=—A=+—H
LIBOR RBUERTTRIZE & 100 (2,251) -
LIBOR WERITRIZERE (100) 2,251 -
As at 31 December 2018 R-ZZE—-NF
+=—RA=+-—-8
LIBOR WBERITRIERE 100 (1,212) =
LIBOR RBERITRIZERE (100) 1,212 =
i Excluding retained profits e TBIEBF R

The sensitivity analysis on bank deposits is not presented
as the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s exposure to interest rate fluctuations on bank
deposits is insignificant.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

BRARTERNGSRBEDINALRZ R
ARRBEZTRRAREARZNRITHE
REF R B E K -

ERAR

AEEERERUNREERINF =
TETRG AEENBREMEEE
ETEERXRSNEFPHFRBEERIT
it BE AKRERKEEFEKFOR
MRS HUIERO AR TEK -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45. HIREREEEEREE (£)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) SERR (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging BEERRERBER
The tables below show the credit quality and the TRITARTZA=Z+—H UXEE
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group's EEBRAKENEEERRAXNE
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due SEERE FEZEAREBHER HH
information unless other information is available without HEFENA BN ESHNEMER
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification BRON - AR FEREIBE R 55 48 -
as at 31 December.
31 December 2019 —E-AFE+=ZA=+—H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
=R
BHEE
B 2HBRHEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E-BE E-RB 2 (GR(473 &
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FE7 FET FET FAET FET
Trade receivables* [EUE 5 8 5 - - - 108,066 108,066
Due from fellow subsidiaries &Y [7] Z i & 2 7 20,011 - - - 20,011
Due from an associate AN 1,093 - - - 1,093
Loans to an associate AEEDRIRENER 8,889 - - - 8,889
Loan to a joint venture RAERRRENER - - 1,700 - 1,700
Financial assets included in st AARFUE - H& R
prepayments, deposits and  E s JE UL EE T A
other receivables NBEE
- Normal** R 19,818 - - - 19,818
- Doubtful** — AR *x - - 41,774 - 41,774
Cash and cash equivalents ~ B&RBELEE
- Not yet past due —HREH 990,386 - - - 990,386
1,040,197 = 43,474 108,066 1,191,737
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45.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

31 December 2018

45. HMIBEBEEEREREE (&)

EEmE (&)
BEARRFFNEE (8)
—®-NF+=A=+—§

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+=@A
BHEER
B *HRBEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E-M&E ERE E-RER #x A
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Trade receivables* B E ZBR30* - - - 109,283 109,283
Due from fellow subsidiaries  FEUT[F K[ B A &) 29,566 = = = 29,566
Due from an associate & i i A 575 - = = 575
Loans to an associate RELARRENER 9,143 = = = 9,143
Financial assets included in (T AT FE - %RE R
prepayments, deposits and L fts JE U B 4 69
other receivables NBEE
~ Normal** —IFE** 36,560 - - - 36,560
~ Doubtful** — B[ EEx - - 46,861 - 46,861
Cash and cash equivalents ~ BRE&RREEE
- Not yet past due —WARBH 1,191,575 - - - 1,191,575
1,267,419 - 46,861 109,283 1,423,563
& For trade receivables to which the Group applies the * BAEEEAEEFERENERE

simplified approach for impairment, information based on

the provision matrix is disclosed in note 23 to the financial

statements.

* The credit quality of the financial assets included in

prepayments, deposits and other receivables is considered

to be “normal” when they are not past and there is no

information indicating that the financial assets had a

significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is

considered to be “doubtful”.

SRR E - UBEER S KRN EN
MBS MR M 23 5 -

o FEAENRR B R EMEUKERRD
BBEENGEREERNRERREHNE
BENRBYBEENEERRAREY
MEFRERER] - BR MBEEN
EREZHBR AR -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45. BBEBREEBEREE (#£)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk B 1 [ e
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using AEBFMAKLEERESRE TAEZE
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the THERER - ZTAZERSRIAKM
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial BEE(WMEKREZESERF)NINEHA &
assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows EEEAMNEFRERE
from operations.
The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between AEENEZRDEEBRFBARITER
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use DRIFREMNFEEME SR TE-
of bank loans. The Group's policy is to minimise AEBNBEREEERERE-
borrowings.
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities REERR  ARBEERDETHERYST
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the RBERCHBEBEINRBEROT
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:
2019
ZB-NF
3toless
Less than than Over
Ondemand  3months 12 months  1-5years 5 years Total
ZEOR
REXE SRZBA +t-BA -E21% IEHU# CH
HK$'000 HKS000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Due to an intermediate ENREERAF
holding company 27,846 = = = = 27,846
Trade payables ERESHRR - 85,219 - - - 85,219
Other payables and accruals EENESRESER - 86,111 - - - 86,111
Lease liabilities HE&fR = 4,112 16,298 97,337 445,288 563,035
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &t B3R /TiEE - 1,039 229,873 - - 230912
27,846 176,481 246,171 97,337 445,288 993,123
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45.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities

as at the end of the reporting period, based on the

45. HMIBEBEEEREREE (&)

RENERBR ()

RBERAR NEBERSITHER
FRNR 2 BAEINHEROT

contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows: (#&)
(continued)
2018
—E-N\E
3 to less
Less than than
On demand 3 months 12 months 1-5 years Total
ZESR
REXE PRZERA +=@A —ERF CH)
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FHET
Due to intermediate JERAREERA A
holding companies 28,815 - - - 28,815
Trade payables ERE SRR = 90,152 = = 90,152
Other payables and accruals ~ EfERERREFTER = 106,822 = = 106,822
Interest-bearing bank FEBRITEE
borrowings - 2,079 121,358 1,036 124,473
28,815 199,053 121,358 1,036 350,262
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45. BBEBREEBEREE (#£)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Equity price risk R {8 = B
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of A% (5 2 Bz BN A % 32 48 UK - K (B Bl 35 5
financial instruments decrease as a result of changes in BEZEHMEEHTAQFERENR
the levels of equity indices and the value of individual R AEBEAZRAVTEFARLMEE
securities. The Group is exposed to equity price risk Wz RAIRE (B 7221) FEE £ 2 Bk
arising from equity investments designated at fair value BRRE - NEE FHRARE TR
through other comprehensive income (note 21). The FrEm - Wik E R mmEGE
Group's listed equity investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange and are valued at quoted market price at the
end of the reporting period.
The market equity index for the following stock FARKEIRERRR 5 BT EF T
exchange, at the close of business of the nearest trading BHERGIMSEREREEMERFARAZ
day in the year to the end of the reporting period, and B MEERENT
its respective highest and lowest points during the year
were as follows:
31 December High/low 31 December High/low
2019 2019 2018 2018
—E-NF &/ 1& ZE-N\F =/ &
+=-RA=+-H —E-hAE +-A=+-—H ZE-N\F
Hong Kong - BE—
Hang Seng Index BEIEH 28,190 30,157/25,064 25,846 25,916/25,683
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45.

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Equity price risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every
1% change in the fair values of equity investments, with
all other variables held constant and before any impact
on tax, based on their carrying amounts at the end of
the reporting period. For the purpose of this analysis,
regarding the equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income, the impact is
deemed to be on the fair value reserve.

BHEREEEREREE (&)

RERE (&)

TREVN EMEEMAIZEERERT
FATHRAZENGET ERX®RE
HARBRAREZEEE EAFEER
HE1%WERE - ADHBE NS
HRBAFEFAREMLEERESE 2K
AEE FERERYAFERBNE

@,
=

Decrease/
(increase)
in loss
Carrying before tax
amount of from Increase/
equity continuing (decrease)
investments operations in equity*
REFE
REEKZ
BAREZ BB AIEE EEEm/
REME R (Em) (R2)*
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
2019 —B-NE
Investments listed in Hong Kong R&EE LTz &RE
- Equity investments designated ~ — X AFEFAEMBEE
at fair value through other Wz BRAIRE
comprehensive income 34,041 = 340/(340)
Unlisted investment at fair value EAFEIEREMNIELETERE
- Equity investment at fair value ~ —RAFEFAEMBEZE
through other comprehensive i 2 R E
income 389 = 4/(4)
2018 —B-N\F
Investments listed in Hong Kong REBE LT 2K E
- Equity investments designated ~ — IR AFEFTAEMEE
at fair value through other Wz AR E
comprehensive income 53,642 - 536/(536)
Unlisted investment at fair value XA FEFIRNIFELTIRE
- Equity investment at fair value ~—IRAFEFAEMEE
through other comprehensive Was 2 AR E
income 389 - 4/(4)
* Excluding retained profits E BB A
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is the interest-bearing debts, including interest-bearing
bank borrowings and lease liabilities, divided by equity
attributable to owners of the parent plus the interest-
bearing debts.

45.

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-A=+—8H
BXEAMREEEEREE (£)

ErER
AEEERERNEERR RERAN
SEARBKEZRRNEN RAFRR
MERL R U REEBEE FE
RAHNRREE-

AEEBRBEBEEANEH RA@AE
ENRREY SREEAEBIIED
AE - BEBIABREALEE A58
A EABMRRIRENRE  ARE
REBANBEITHR AEBTEZH
REMMINBEMZERAFTR -BEZT
—hE+ZA=+—HBERZZE—N\F
+TZA=+—HLEFER - BAEEZ
BiZ BRI o

AEBUAEXRBER (GHEEH (2R
HERTEEREEAB)RUFGAF
PrEEEIGER MG BER) EREAR
BB ©
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45.

46.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45.
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods

were as follows:

EREE (&)

BEEREEREREE (&)

BERRZERBERNT

2019 2018

—ZE-AF —ZT-)N\F

HKS'000 HK$'000

FET FEor

Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFEIRITEE 225,161 121,249

Lease liabilities HERE 320,610 =

Interest-bearing debts FEER 545,771 121,249
Equity attributable to owners BARIMAEEGER

of the parent 3,573,694 3,619,168
Equity attributable to owners BARIMAEEGER

of the parent plus the et BEB
interest-bearing debts 4,119,465 3,740,417
Gearing ratio BEARBER 13% 3%

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

46.

As further explained in note 2.2 to the financial

statements, the Group adopted HKFRS 16 on 1 January

2019 using the modified retrospective approach.

Under this approach, the comparative amounts in the

financial statements were not restated and continued

to be reported under the requirements of the previous

standard, HKAS 17, and related interpretations.

EEE BT

AN B R R BT 5T 2. 238 — HEFah - A&
BEBRAEEITERTER TN
F-A-BRMEBHBHRREAF16
FoRBZ T E RUBRRFOLR
BFUWEES BEBRBELATHED
(AEBEHERE 7R MAAERE) &

REZ28]-
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF  47.

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position

of the Company at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

R BB E

BRARRARNE®E AR BT KR

ERBIIMT -

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-NF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BRE MR 57 21,673
Investment property WA 151,500 =
Investments in subsidiaries MEBARZIEE 2,249,704 2,297,320
Total non-current assets FERBEERLE 2,401,261 2,318,993
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and TEHRIERE REAM
other receivables JE UK BR 5k 2,828 2,976
Cash and cash equivalents BekBReEE 854,540 943,397
Total current assets MEEELE 857,368 946,373
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals HMENERRETER 3,191 3,415
Tax payable FE T B 18 6,060 98,060
Total current liabilities nBBEEE 9,251 101,475
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 848,117 844,898
Net assets BEFE 3,249,378 3,163,891
EQUITY s
Issued capital BT 930,337 930,337
Reserves (note) s (W) 2,319,041 2,233,554
Total equity B E 3,249,378 3,163,891
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47.

48.

hNE+-A=+—H

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

47. EQTRHMBERRE (&)

B

AR REEHR DT

Share Asset
premium revaluation Contributed Retained
account reserve surplus profits Total
BE
IR 195 B B BEfHE AR B 17 A A&t
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TFET TET T TFET
At 1 January 2018 RZE—-NF—HA—H 609,080 - 5,243 34,081 648,404
Total comprehensive REZHE BT
income for the year - - - 336,501 336,501
Issue of shares BITRRD 1,248,649 = = = 1,248,649
At 31 December 2018 and WM =T — \4F
1 January 2019 +ZA=+—Hk
—E-NF—HA—H 1,857,729 = 5,243 370,582 2,233,554
Total comprehensive REZHK BT
income for the year = 130,615 = 47,906 178,521
2018 special dividend ZE-N\FREARKRE = = = (93,034) (93,034)
At 31 December 2019 RZTE—-—NF+ZA
=+—H 1,857,729 130,615 5,243 325,454 2,319,041

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess
of the consolidated net asset value of Far East Aluminium (B.V.l.)
Limited on 20 November 1991, when its entire issued share capital
was acquired by the Company pursuant to a group reorganisation,
over the nominal amount of the Company's shares issued in
consideration for such acquisition, net of accumulated losses of
the Company set off in the prior years. Under the Companies Act
of 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed surplus of the Company is
distributable to shareholders under certain circumstances.

The Company's share premium account of HK$1,857,729,000
(2018: HK$1,857,729,000) as at 31 December 2019 may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 13 March 2020.

48.

RARZBABHRARAABRBEEREAR
ER—NAN—F+— A=+ B8 AFar East
Aluminium (B.V.l.) LimitedZ &f & 3 17X A 85 -
Far East Aluminium (B.V.l.) Limited 2 43 & B &
SFEBEANARMEARBREMBEITZRME
Bz&E YEMNMBRRBAFEEEZAQR
2EEB -BEEREARE-NAN— KAF

ZENBBEETEATAHSIRTESRE-

ARRRZZT—hhEF+ZA=+—B2ZRK
7 % B 88 1,857,729,0008 7T (— T — \ & :
1,857,729,0007 70) A AR AT 5 XD IR »
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFEHBEME

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- AEBEBEREFREFENEEREE BE
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial FIZEIERRERBIAM AT - ek E B I &S
years, as extracted from the published audited financial &M &HE WEEEEH EHHE -1t
statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set ZEBWIFLEEXTHERERAOILMD -

out below. This summary is not part of the audited financial

statements.
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t-BLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
ZE-NE ZT-N§ ZE—+tF TR ZE-1%
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FET FET FET
RESULTS %5
CONTINUING OPERATIONS HELEER
Revenue Yz 1,458,003 1,341,223 = = 7,644
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BRBAER (BR) (83,833)  (159,025) (69,434)  (688,853) 91,710
Income tax credit/(expense) FiEREe,/ (AX) 29,817 31,893 724 (382) (29,259)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FROM RERELL £z
CONTINUING OPERATIONS KERR,/ (F8) (54,016)  (127,132) (68,710)  (689,235) 62,451
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRIEREER
Profit/(loss) for the year from a REERIEEEKLZ
discontinued operation KERF,/ (BB) - 507,569 (267,833) (19,696) 21,009
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR KERHN/ (BE) (54,016) 380,437 (336,543)  (708,931) 83,460
Attributable to: THALER:
Owners of the parent BREMEE (54,016) 398,968 (288,481) (685,842) 41,820
Non-controlling interests IS - (18,531) (48,062) (23,089) 41,640
(54,016) 380,437 (336,543)  (708,931) 83,460
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON- EE BER
CONTROLLING INTERESTS FERER
Total assets BEMLE 4,747,951 4,514,263 4,384,075  5703,073 6,417,546
Total liabilities BERE (1,174257) (895,095  (2,112,143) (3,176,320)  (3,085,888)
Non-controlling interests FERER - - (539,427)  (553,481)  (594,124)

3,573,694 3,619,168 1,732,505 1,973,272 2,737,534

y -
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTY

REYEFE
Attributable
interest of
Location Use Tenure the Group
AEM
b B Az A FELRE =
Unit B, 15/F, Office Vacant 100%
United Centre,
95 Queensway,
Hong Kong
B /N =g
T IEBI5
B

15#EB=E
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
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Lai Weixuan
Li Ka Fai, David

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Zhang Ping (Chairman)
Fu Fangxing
Chu Yu Lin, David

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

AUDITORS
Ernst & Young

REGISTERED OFFICE

Victoria Place, 5th Floor
31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMETIEXERER (FEB)ERAT
Annual Report 2019 —Z — W& F3R 263

CORPORATE INFORMATION

=

BEE (/E)
{8 77 8

KGR

TERER

W (TTHARE)
[E& e
R
R+

o S *

* FPITEE
o HLHBTTEE

BEREEE
ROB (R
ERE
T
FMEES
KB ()
HEE
FRE
REZEE
RE (/)

& 77 8
Nl

ERRIT
BELBEZRITERAA

]
LK BTN E P

AMMEE

Victoria Place, 5th Floor
31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda

NEER



264

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMZE TEERER (F8)EBRAT
Annual Report 2019 =& — [ FEFR

CORPORATE INFORMATION
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HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

Unit A, 20/F, Tower 2, Admiralty Centre
18 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRARS
Principal registrars

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th floor North

Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda

Hong Kong registrars

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.avic.com.hk

STOCK CODE
232

MMBEERTEE MR

EALEERBI8Y
EEROLE ZEBEAS

RIDBFETE
FRRMDBFETE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th floor North

Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda
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